
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTICE OF AND AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING  

TO BE HELD BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

DATE:    TUESDAY, MARCH 26, 2024 

TIME:    5:30 PM 

PLACE:    PHARR CITY HALL 

    2nd FLOOR CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS 

118 SOUTH CAGE BLVD. 

    PHARR, TEXAS 78577  

     

PRESIDING: S. DAVID DEANDA, JR, CHAIRMAN 
 

An electronic copy of the agenda packet can be obtained at www.hcrma.net 
 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
INVOCATION 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM FOR A REGULAR MEETING 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

1. REPORTS 
 
A. Report on Program Management Activity for 365 Tollway Project – HCRMA Staff 

B. Report on Construction Activity for 365 Tollway Project – Ramon Navarro IV, HCRMA. 

 

2. CONSENT AGENDA (All matters  listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Governing 
Body and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no  separate discussion of  these  items; however,  if 
discussion is desired, that item(s) will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
The Governing Body may also elect to go into Executive Session on any item on this agenda, whether or not 
such  item(s) are posted as an Executive Session  Item, at any  time during  the meeting when authorized by 
provisions of the Open Public Meeting Act.) 

 
A. Approval of Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held February 27, 2024 and the Special Board Meeting 

held March 5, 2024. 
B. Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from February 8, 2024 to March 6, 2024.  
C. Approval of Financial Reports for January 2024. 
D. Resolution  2024‐16  –  Consideration  and  Approval  of  one‐year  extension  to  the  Investment  Advisory 

Service Agreement between Hilltop Securities Asset Management, LLC and the Hidalgo County Regional 
Mobility Authority.  

E. Resolution 2024‐17 – Consideration and Approval of a no‐cost time extension to the Professional Service 
Agreement with Leonel Garza & Associates to provide appraisal services for the 365 Tollway Project. 

F. Resolution 2024‐18 – Consideration and Approval of a no‐cost time extension to the Professional Service 
Agreement with HLH Appraisal Services to provide review appraisal services for the 365 Tollway Project. 

 



 
3. REGULAR AGENDA  

 
A. Resolution 2024‐19 – Approval of Award of Contract to Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Cantu Law Company, 

and Bracewell, LLP, for professional legal services to the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 
B. Resolution 2024‐20 – Approval of Award of Contract to Plains Capital Bank, to provide Banking Depository 

Services for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.  
C. Resolution 2024‐23 – Consideration and Approval of Award of Contract to Intertek PSI and MEG 

Engineers for Construction Material Testing Lab and Forensic Services of the 365 Tollway Project.    
D. Resolution 2024‐08 – Consideration and Approval of Award of Contract to MitRes Services, LLC,  for the 

Granjeno Wetland Mitigation Site Project.   

E. Resolution 2024‐24 – Consideration and Approval of Change Order number 1 to the contract with SICE, 
Inc.  to  provide  Toll  Collection  System  Installation,  Integration,  and  Maintenance  for  the  365  Tollway 
project.  
 

4. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 
A. None.  

 

5. TABLED ITEMS 
 
A. None. 

 
6. EXECUTIVE SESSION, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.071 (CONSULTATION WITH 

ATTORNEY), SECTION 551.072  (DELIBERATION OF REAL PROPERTY), AND SECTION 551.074  (PERSONNEL 
MATTERS)  
 
A. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Change Order Number 5 to that certain contract 

with Pulice Construction Inc. for the 365 Tollway Project (551.071 T.G.C.) 
B. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Financial Assistance Agreement with the Texas 

Department of Transportation for the 365 Tollway Project (551.071 T.G.C.) 
C. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Professional Service Agreements for Engineering, 

Surveying and Environmental Services to include construction material testing (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 
D. Consultation with Attorney on  legal  issues pertaining  to  the voluntary acquisition of  real property  for 

various  parcels  for  the  365  Tollway  Project  and  International  Bridge  Trade  Corridor  Project  (Sections 
551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 

E. Consultation with Attorney on  legal  issues pertaining  to  the acquisition,  including  the use of Eminent 
Domain, for property required to complete the project alignments of the 365 Tollway Project (Sections 
551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 

F. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Environmental Clearance Document for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 

G. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Professional Services Agreements (Section 551.071 
T.G.C.). 
 
 
 
 

  ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR MEETING 
 
 
 

 



C E R T I F I C A T I O N 

 

I,  the Undersigned Authority, do hereby certify  that  the attached agenda of  the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority Board of Directors is a true and correct copy and that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice on the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Web Page (www.hcrma.net) and the bulletin board in the Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority  office  (203 W. Newcombe Ave,  Pharr,  Texas  78577),  a  place  convenient  and  readily 
accessible to the general public at all times, and said Notice was posted on the  20thday of March 2024 at 5:00 pm and 
will remain so posted continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting in accordance 
with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 
                                           Maria E. Alaniz         
                Administrative Assistant 

 
Note:  If you require special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact Maria E. 
Alaniz at 956‐402‐4762 at least 96 hours before the meeting. 
 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT POLICY 

Public  Comment  Policy:  “At  the  beginning  of  each  HCRMA  meeting,  the  HCRMA  will  allow  for  an  open  public 

forum/comment period. This comment period shall not exceed one‐half (1/2) hour in length and each speaker will be 

allowed a maximum of three (3) minutes to speak.  Speakers addressing the Board through a translator will be allowed 

a maximum of six (6) minutes.   

 

All  individuals desiring to address the HCRMA must be signed up to do so, prior to the open comment period. For 

meetings being held by  telephonic or videoconference,  individuals may contact Maria. E. Alaniz at  (956) 402‐4762 

before 5:00 pm day of the meeting.  

  

 The purpose of this comment period is to provide the public an opportunity to address issues or topics that are under 

the jurisdiction of the HCRMA. For issues or topics which are not otherwise part of the posted agenda for the meeting, 

HCRMA members may direct staff to investigate the issue or topic further. No action or discussion shall be taken on 

issues or topics which are not part of the posted agenda for the meeting. Members of the public may be recognized 

on posted agenda  items deemed appropriate by  the Chairman as  these  items are considered, and  the  same  time 

limitations applies.” 

 

Note:  Participation by Telephone/Video Conference Call – One or more members of the HCRMA Board of Directors 

may participate  in  this meeting  through  a  telephone/video  conference  call,  as  authorized by  Sec. 370.262,  Texas 

Transportation Code.    



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 1A 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 X AGENDA ITEM      1A 
DATE SUBMITTED 
MEETING DATE 

03/21/2024 
03/26/2024_

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
PLANNING COMMITTEE   
FINANCE COMMITTEE 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

1. Agenda Item:  REPORT ON PROGRAM MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY FOR 365 TOLLWAY PROJECT
AND HIDALGO COUNTY LOOP

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:   X  Yes  No

Report on 365 Tollway, Section 4, and Section A West and Section C Projects

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy

4. Budgeted:  Yes  No   X   N/A 

5. Staff Recommendation: Report only. .  

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:  Approved  Disapproved   X   None 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:  Approved  Disapproved   X   None 

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:   Approved   Disapproved   X   None 

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:  Approved   Disapproved    X   None 

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:  Approved  Disapproved   X_  None 

11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:   Approved  Disapproved  None 

 Approved  Disapproved _  None 12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation: X

13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved  Disapproved  _  None 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
FOR MARCH 2024

1

www.hcrma.net

HCRMA Administrative Staff
Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Ramon Navarro IV, PE, CFM, Chief Constr. Eng.

Celia Gaona, CIA, Chief Auditor/Compliance Ofcr.

Jose Castillo, Chief Financial Ofer.

General Engineering Consultant 
HDR Engineering, Inc.

Report on HCRMA Development Activities
Chief Construction Engineer – Ramon Navarro IV, PE, CFM

HCRMA Board of Directors
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman

Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Vice-Chairman

Juan Carlos Del Angel, Secretary/Treasurer

Gabriel Kamel, Director 

Francisco Pardo, Director

Sergio Saenz, Director

Michael J. Williamson, Director

http://www.hcrma.net/


Overview
365 TOLL Project Overview

+ Granjeno Wetland Mitigation Project
 Segment 4 / Section A West Plan
Overweight Permit Summary

MISSION STATEMENT:

To provide our customers with a rapid and 
reliable alternative for the safe and efficient 
movement of people, goods, and services.

www.hcrma.net
2

http://www.hcrma.net/


www.hcrma.net3

http://www.hcrma.net/


4 www.hcrma.net

IBTC (Segs. 1-3
Total Constr. Cost (2023): $223M
Total Dev. Cost (2023): 285M
Available Funding: $18.5M
NEPA clearance expected: May 
2023

http://www.hcrma.net/


[SEGS. 1 & 2] LIMITS FROM 0.8 MI. W. FM 396 / ANZ. HWY. 
TO US 281 / BSIF CONNECTOR [365 SEG. 3 COMPLETED] 
[SEG. 4 FUTURE] LIMITS FROM FM 16 / CONWAY
TO 0.8 MI. W. FM396 / ANZALDUAS HIGHWAY

5
www.hcrma.net

NEPA CLEARANCE
07/03/2015

100% ROW ACQUIRED
PH 1: 365 SEG. 3

LET: 08/2015
COMPLETED

PH 2: 365 TOLL
SEGS. 1 & 2
LET:11/2021

OPEN: 01/2026

MAJOR MILESTONES:

http://www.hcrma.net/


6 www.hcrma.net

GRANJENO WETLAND MITIGATION SITE

http://www.hcrma.net/


7 www.hcrma.net

LETTING:
PROJECT DETAILS:
The HCRMA Granjeno Wetland Mitigation Site project is for the restoration of 23.88 acres of land, including 
approximately 17 acress planned specifically for wetland restoration. The project consists of grading and compaction 
of approximatley 19 acres to establish a wetland which includes the placement of a clay liner and plant root zone soil 
strata. It also includes berm grading and compaction of approximately 6 acres of upland area. The project includes 
construction of an access driveway and road including maintenance and brush clearing/trimming. The project includes 
construction of a groundwater well with controls, approximately 3,000 linear feet of pvc distribution pipe, associated 
equipment, and a security fence.

 (MANDATORY) In-person or Virtual Attendance Option.

Pre-Bid Meeting: Tuesday, February 20, 2024, 2 P.M. C.S.T.

 All inquiries shall be submitted by 3:00PM CST on Friday, March 8,2024.  Inquiries beyond this date will not be
responded to.

 Electronic bids via CivCast will be received until 3:00 P.M. C.S.T., Wednesday, March 13, 2024.

 Bid opening date & time: Wednesday, March 13, 2024, Until 3:05 P.M. C.S.T.

 Sole bid: MitRes Services, LLC

http://www.hcrma.net/


 8 www.hcrma.net

http://www.hcrma.net/


 9 www.hcrma.net

http://www.hcrma.net/


10 www.hcrma.net

http://www.hcrma.net/


11

www.hcrma.net

http://www.hcrma.net/


12 www.hcrma.net

http://www.hcrma.net/


13 www.hcrma.net

http://www.hcrma.net/




15 www.hcrma.net

OVERWEIGHT / OVERSIZE CORRIDOR SEGMENTS

http://www.hcrma.net/


*

16

www.hcrma.net

►ACCUMULATED OVERWEIGHT REPORT:

January 14, 2014 - February 29, 2024

Total Permits Issued: 326,942
Total Amount Collected: $  57,348,442 
▪Convenience Fees: $  1,123,842 
▪Total Permit Fees: $  56,224,600 

-Pro Miles: $   980,826 

-TxDOT: $   47,790,910 

-HCRMA $   7,452,864 
*Effective November 13, 2017, permit fee increased from $80 to $200

http://www.hcrma.net/


17

►OVERWEIGHT REPORT FOR 2024:

January 1, 2024- February 29, 2024

Total Permits Issued: 12,235
Total Amount Collected: $  2,503,880 
▪Convenience Fees: $  56,880 
▪Total Permit Fees: $  2,447,000 

-Pro Miles: $  36,705 

-TxDOT: $    2,079,950 

-HCRMA $  330,345 



 18 www.hcrma.net

JANUARY 1, 2024 – FEBRAURY 29, 2024 

NOTES:
1. The accumulated permit count for 2022: 4,860 in comparison to 2023: 6,458

Annual increase comparison of: 2022:  7,375+[151%] and 2023:+5,777 [89.45%]

2. Monthly permit count of 5,892 represents a 92.61% (increase, 2,833) compared to the same month in 2023 (3,059).

2,642

2,218

3,409
3,188

4,270 4,171 4,132
4,009

3,431 3,346
3,188 3,108

3,399

3,059

3,982

4,271

4,910

6,319

4,478

4,133

3,411
3,307

3,599

4,786

6,343

5,892

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

5,000

5,500

6,000

6,500

7,000

Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Overweight/Oversized Permit Count 
2022 - 2024 Monthly Comparison

2022 2023 2024

http://www.hcrma.net/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 1B 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 X AGENDA ITEM      1B 
DATE SUBMITTED 
MEETING DATE 

03/22/2024 
03/26/2024_

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
PLANNING COMMITTEE   
FINANCE COMMITTEE 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

1. Agenda Item:  REPORT ON CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY FOR 365 TOLLWAY PROJECT_____

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:   X  Yes  No

Report on 365 Tollway Construction Segments I / II

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy

4. Budgeted:  Yes  No   X   N/A 

5. Staff Recommendation: Report only. .  

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:  Approved  Disapproved   X   None 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:  Approved  Disapproved   X   None 

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:   Approved   Disapproved   X   None 

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:  Approved   Disapproved    X   None 

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:  Approved  Disapproved   X_  None 

11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:   Approved  Disapproved  None 

 Approved  Disapproved _  None 12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation: X

13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved  Disapproved  _  None 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
FOR MARCH 2024

1

www.hcrma.net

HCRMA Administrative Staff
Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Ramon Navarro IV, PE, CFM, Chief Constr. Eng.

Celia Gaona, CIA, Chief Auditor/Compliance Ofcr.

Jose Castillo, Chief Financial Ofer.

General Engineering Consultant
HDR Engineering, Inc.

Report on HCRMA Construction Activities
Chief Construction Engineer – Ramon Navarro IV, PE, CFM

HCRMA Board of Directors
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 

Eziquiel Reyna, Jr., Vice-Chairman

Juan Carlos Del Angel, Secretary/Treasurer 
Gabriel Kamel, Director

Sergio Saenz, Director 

Francisco “Frank” Pardo, Director

Michael J. Williamson, Director

http://www.hcrma.net/


[SEGS. 1 & 2] LIMITS FROM 0.8 MI. W. FM 396 / ANZ. HWY. 
TO US 281 / BSIFCONNECTOR [365 SEG. 3 COMPLETED] 
[SEG. 4 FUTURE] LIMITS FROM FM 16 / CONWAY
TO 0.8 MI. W. FM396 / ANZALDUAS HIGHWAY

2
www.hcrma.net

100% ROW ACQUIRED
PH 1: 365 SEG. 3

LET: 08/2015 
COMPLETED

PH 2: 365 TOLL
SEGS. 1 & 2
LET:11/2021

OPEN: 01/2026

MAJOR MILESTONES: 
NEPA CLEARANCE 

07/03/2015

http://www.hcrma.net/


SEPTEMBER 8, 2022
OCTOBER 3, 2022
DECEMBER 9, 2022

DECEMBER 16, 2022
FEBRUARY 6, 2023

FEBRUARY 14, 2023
FEBRUARY 28, 2023
MARCH 13, 2023
MARCH 14, 2023
MARCH 28, 2023
OCTOBER 28, 2023

-Request for Proposals was released
-Mandatory Pre-bid meeting was conducted with In-Person or Virtual Attendance option
-Five Proposals were received for the 365 Toll Collection System, Integration, and
Maintenance Project
-Compliance reviews were conducted of all electronic bids;
-Evaluation committee [HCRMA staff and HDR [GEC]] thoroughly reviewed proposals,
conducted oral presentations and in accordance with RFP’s two-step scoring process
-Proposal bid prices opened, evaluated, scored by evaluation committee
-First Executive
-Second Executive Briefing
-Negotiation of contract terms, condition, & BAFO
-Award of contract to SICE, Inc. for $13,980,669 with a score of 905
-Single Gantry amendment

365 TOLLWAY COLLECTION SYSTEM INSTALLATION, 
INTEGRATION and MAINTENANCE PROJECT

3

APRIL 26, 2024       - CO#1 single-gantry (monogantry) structure and classifying vehicles based on axles and height



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
 The Notice to Proceed (NTP) was issued to Pulice Construction Inc. (PCI) on February 15, 2022, with time 

charges commencing on March 17, 2022.

 The work under this contract shall be substantiallycompleted within 1,264 CALENDAR days [September 22, 
2025] After Substantial Completion, Pulice will be allowed up to an additional 60 calendar days for Final 
Acceptance. Therefore, all improvements must be final accepted by [November 21, 2025].

 Working days will be charged Sunday through Saturday, including all holidays [with exception of: 

New Year’s Day (January 1st)

Independence Day (July 4th)
Labor Day (1st Mondayin the month of September)
Thanksgiving Day and day after (4th Thursday and Friday in the month of November); 
Christmas Eve and Day (December 24th and 25th)]

regardless of weather conditions, material availability, or other conditions not under the 
control of the Contractor, except as expressly provided for in the Contract. If Contractor fails to 
complete the work on or before the contract time, Pulice Construction Inc. agrees to pay the
Authority $ 16,500 per day as liquidated damages to cover losses, expenses and damages of the 
Authority for every Calendar Day which the Contractor fails to achieve Substantial Completion of
the Project.

 The total construction cost submitted $ 295,932,420.25.

4



40% Owner Savings: $14,208,622.30 Reduced from original Project

VECP calculations for Contract Price of $281,723,797.95
VECP Gross Savings $38,010,382.63
Less est. Total Design Cost $1,943,648.45 (Schematics + Final Design)
Less Est. Owner’s Fees $545,178.43 (GEC, Environmental, T&R Costs)
VECP Net Savings $35,521,555.75
60% Contractor Saving: $21,312,933.45 Paid as Progress Payments

HCRMA 365 TOLL PROJECT CSJ#0921-02-368: CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY

Four (5) approved Changes Order(s): [$9,711, 974.93l +0 days

CO#1 11/11/2021 entering VECP process +000 days $000,000,000.00 .0%
CO#2 12/21/2021 VECP Plan Revisions +000 days $(14,208,622.30) (4.80%)
CO#3 04/26/2022 VECP Contractor Risk +000 days $000,000,000.00 (0%)
CO#4 01/24/2023 Drill Shafts +000 days $171,516.59 0.06%
CO#5 06/24/2023 VECP True Realized Savings +000 days $4,325,130.78 1.44%
CO#6 11/29/2023 PLAN REVISIONS \ FIELD CHANGES +000 days TBD [PENDING]

CHANGE ORDERS:

Change Order No.1 Summary: November 10, 2021, Resolution 2021-54

• The Primary purpose of Change Order No. 1 is for the HCRMA and contractor to enter a defined VECP proves to reduce the overall cost of the project 
based on a 30% design furnished by the contractor.

• Cost to the Project include: 30% of 5% of the project savings to the project or direct costs to the contractor, whichever is less. These costs are intended 
to pay the contractor for design work achieve a 30% design.

• The HCRMA assumes ownership of all design work developed by the contractor, and cost savings are shared by the HCRMA and contractor by 40% and 
60% respectively.

Change Order No. 2 Summary: December 20, 2021, Resolution 2021-78

• Change order No. 2 amended the contract price from $295,932,420.25 to $281,723,797.95.
• By execution of Change Order No. 1, the contractor completed a 30% design to an effort to estimate cost savings for the project. Payment for the 

contractor’s initial design work is $613,285.06 in accordance with calculations presented in Change Order No. 1. This is the only cost due to the 
contractor based on the execution of Change Order No. 2 and is non-participating.

• Notice to proceed was issued 2/15/2022, the HCRMA reimburse the contractor for the remaining design costs to not exceed 5% of the total cost 
savings. Payments made will be based upon design milestones at 60%, 90% and 100% completion and acceptance.

5



Change Order No. 3 Summary: April 26, 2022, Resolution 2022-36

• As provided for Contract Amendment #1 and Change Order No. 2, the Contractor’s share of the net savings includes the “Contractor Risk” that the 
actual costs of implementing the approved VECP concepts in Change Order No. 2 may not result in the saving approved by the parties. To the extent 
total actual costs exceed the total amount approved, all overages due to errors, oversights, omissions, additions, or corrections to final units, final 
quantities, or final unit prices or costs increases shall be deducted from Contractor 60% portion of the net savings.

• To the extent actual costs exceed the amounts presented in Exhibit A, Contractor agrees that such overages due to errors, oversight, omission additions, 
or corrections to final units, quantities or unit pricing shall be deducted from contractor’s 60% portion of the net savings (the “Contractor Risk”).

• Contractor VECP Savings Payments.

Contractor’s share of the savings shall be calculated and paid out as progress payments under the terms of the contract, as follows:

Construction Progress Proposed Savings Payment

20% Completion $4,262,586.69

40% Completion $4,262,586.69

60% Completion $4,262,586.69

80% Completion $4,262,586.69

Final Acceptance $4,262,586.69

$21,312,933.45

The parties agrees that if the Savings are not apparent or justified during a designated progress period, all, or part of any such Savings Payment, on the 
recommendation of the General Engineering Consultant, may be (i)deferred to the next progress period or (iii) reduced to reflect the Contractor’s Risk for 
unrealized Savings/overages.

Change Order No. 4 Summary: January 24, 2023, Resolution 2023-05

Change Order No. 4 removes 1,524LF of Item 416-6005 Drill Shaft (42”) introduces 48” drill shafts to incorporate detailed, finalized quantities and unit 
costs; and establishes State/Federal participation on odified unit costs, assuring compliance with the standard specifications included within the contract. 
Change Order No. 4 introducing 1,585LF of Item 416-6006 Drill Shaft (48 IN) at a unit cost of $308.39/LF for a net cost of $171,516.59 to be fully paid by 
HCRMA [Owner].

6



Change Order No. 5 Summary: June 24, 2023, Resolution 2023-30

In Lieu of $38,010,382.63 savings, they only can truly account for $30,565,888. They are claiming that of the $7,444,494.63 shortfall, only $3,186,525.45 is 
from their 60%; additional $4,257,969.18 are contributable to busts in original plans, design errors and quantity mistakes and are to be attributed to 
HCRMA contingency[$ 5,000,000>>$570,514.23].

• As provided for Contract Amendment #1 and Change Order No. 2, the Contractor’s share of the net savings includes the “Contractor Risk” that the 
actual costs of implementing the approved VECP concepts in Change Order No. 2 may not result in the saving approved by the parties. To the extent 
total actual costs exceed the total amount approved, all overages due to errors, oversights, omissions, additions, or corrections to final units, final 
quantities, or final unit prices or costs increases shall be deducted from Contractor 60% portion of the net savings. The unrealized savings presented 
are $2,367,208.20

o To the extent actual costs exceed the amounts presented in Exhibit A, Contractor agrees that such overages due to errors, oversight, omission 
additions, or corrections to final units, quantities or unit pricing shall be deducted from contractor’s 60% portion of the net savings (the 
“Contractor Risk”), revised shall be $18,945,725.25

o Contractor VECP Savings Payments are amended, as such:

Contractor’s share of the savings shall be calculated and paid out as progress payments under the terms of the contract, as follows:

**[$18,945,725.25 - $4,262,586.69 = $14,683,138.56 / 4 = $3,670,784.64]

Construction Progress Proposed Savings Payment Paid Date
**20% Completion $4,262,586.69 12/22/22

40% Completion $4,262,586.69 $3,670,784.64

60% Completion $4,262,586.69 $3,670,784.64

80% Completion $4,262,586.69$3,670,784.64

Final Acceptance $4,262,586.69$3,670,784.64

$21,312,933.45 $18,945,725.25

7



PROJECT PRODUCTION

8

 CAPTURING VECP PACKETS
2/8/23
3/8/23

VECP Team met, exchanged concepts,  formats 
VECP meeting formal report submitted

4/20/23 VECP concepts  completed and negotiations  underway 
7/07/23  New revised baseline schedule
7/10/23  CO#5 terms and conditions
2/23/24   CO#6 conditions and negotiations

 FORMAL SUBMITTALS, REVIEW OF DOCUMENTS
• RFIs 158
• SUBMITTALS 164 
03/22/2024

 TESTING [Soils/Concrete]
• Levees / embankment / select fill
• Drill Shafts / Bents / Slab
• Roadway: limed subgrade / Cement Treated base
• MSE backfill
• REFREE LAB 

 ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICES [SW3Ps] Archeological sites

 EMBANKMENT Shary / SH336 / SP115 / Highline/ McColl /Anaya
 UNDERGROUND WORK Storm Sewer / Irrigation structures / Tolling Conduit
 LEVEE WORK
 Bridge Substructure FM494 / Floodway / SP115 / SH336 / McColl / Ditch Bridge / Highline

• BEAMS SET: McColl / Canal Bridge / Floodway/ FM494
 RETAINING WALLS Highline / Anaya / SP115/ SH336 / Jackson







GRANJENO / ANZALDUAS (LOOKING EAST) 



STA. 960+70 
HCID#2 
COORDINATION 
RCP PIPE 
ENCASEMENT / 
SPACERS

12

MSE Wall #3 east of 23rd Street, Stations 879+00 to 879+27, Lift 18 (6")



Crews embanking the roadway on the east 
side of 10th Street (SH336) STA 926+00 
through 953+00.



Placement \delivery of flexbase material to the East side of San Juan Canal embankment



CREWS REMOVING HARDWARE \ FORMS 
ON BENT #3 AT ANAYA RD STA 1246+00



Trenching and installation of conduit for toll collection 
system hardware.



Placement of pole bases (drill shafts) for 
hardware\luminaires.



18 www.hcrma.net

http://www.hcrma.net/


Item 2A 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                  2A                       

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED        03/18/2024                    
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE     03/26/2024  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING HELD FEBRUARY 

27, 2024 AND THE SPECIAL BOARD MEETING HELD ON MARCH 5, 2024._                     __ 
 

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Approval of Minutes for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Board of Directors 

Regular Meeting held February 27, 2024 and the Special Meeting held March 5, 2024._           _ 
                                                           
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the minutes for the Board of Director’s Regular 

Meeting held on February 27, 2024 and the Special Meeting held on March 5, 
2024._________________________                                                                                              .            

 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X_  None 
 
10.       Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:       Approved         Disapproved    X    None 
 
11. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:       Approved         Disapproved        X   None 
 
12. Executive Director’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 
 
 
 
 
 



HCRMA Minutes – February 27, 2024 
 
 

 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF HIDALGO 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

The Hidalgo  County  Regional Mobility Authority  Board  of Directors  convened  for  a  Regular  Board Meeting  on 

Tuesday, February 27, 2024, at 5:30 pm at the Pharr City Hall, 2nd Floor City Commission Chambers, 118 S. Cage, 

Blvd, Pharr, TX 78577, with the following participating: 

 

     Board Members:                  David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 
 Ezequiel Reyna, Vice‐Chairman 

                                                     Juan Carlos Del Ángel, Secretary/Treasurer   
                                                     Sergio Saenz, Director (teleconference) 

 Michael Williamson, Director  
           

                        Absent:                Frank Pardo, Director  
Gabriel Kamel, Director 

         
                                  Staff:                 Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director 

Ramon Navarro, Chief Construction Engineer  
Celia Gaona, Chief Auditor/Compliance Officer 
Maria Alaniz, Executive Assistant  

           Richard Cantu, Cantu Law Company, Legal Counsel 
        Colby Echols, Hilltop Securities, Financial Advisor 
         
     
 
  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

      
Chairman Deanda led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

      
INVOCATION 
 
Mrs. Maria Alaniz led the invocation. 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM FOR A REGULAR MEETING  
 
Chairman Deanda called the Regular Meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
   

PUBLIC COMMENT 
   

No Comments 
 

1. REPORTS 
 
A. Report on Program Management Activity for 365 Tollway Project – HCRMA Staff 

              Mr. Ramon Navarro reported on Program Manager Activity for 365 Tollway Project. No action taken. 
 



HCRMA Minutes – February 27, 2024 
 
 

B. Report on Construction Activity for 365 Tollway Project – Ramon Navarro IV, HCRMA. 
              Mr. Ramon Navarro reported on the construction activity for 365 Tollway Project. No action taken. 

 

2. CONSENT AGENDA  
 

Motion by Carlos Del Angel with a second by Ezequiel Reyna, to approve the Consent Agenda.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

A. Approval of Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held January 23, 2024. 
Approved the Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held January 23, 2024.  
 

B. Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from January 13, 2024, to February 7, 2024.  
Approved the Project & General Expense Report for the period from January 13, 2024, to February 7, 2024. 
 

C. Approval of Financial Reports for December 2023. 
Approved the Financial Reports for December 2023. 
 

D. Resolution 2024‐06 – Consideration and approval of a Multiple Use Agreement between the HCRMA and 
the City of Pharr for a hike & bike trail.   
Approved Resolution 2024‐06 – Consideration and approval of a Multiple Use Agreement between the 
HCRMA and the City of Pharr for a hike & bike trail.   
 

E. Resolution 2024 – 07 – Consideration and Approval of Public Fund Investment Act Training for Investment 
Officer Jose Castillo, Chief Finance Officer. 
Approved Resolution 2024 – 07 – Consideration and Approval of Public Fund Investment Act Training for 
Investment Officer Jose Castillo, Chief Finance Officer. 
 

3. REGULAR AGENDA  
 

A. Resolution 2024‐09 – Consideration and Approval of Work Authorization Number 15 and Work Authorization 

Number 16 to the Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. for an updated bring down letter 

and General Engineering Consultant support.  

Motion  by  Michael  Williamson,  with  a  second  by  Ezequiel  Reyna,  to  approve  Resolution  2024‐09  – 

Consideration and Approval of Work Authorization Number 15 and Work Authorization Number 16 to the 

Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates,  Inc. for an updated bring down  letter and General 

Engineering Consultant support in the amount of $12,705 for Work Authorization Number 15 and $90,000 

for Work Authorization Number 16.  Motion carried unanimously.   

 

B. Resolution 2024‐10 – Consideration and Approval of Contract Amendment Number 17  to  the Professional 

Service  Agreement  with  C&M  Associates,  Inc.  to  increase  the  maximum  amount  payable  for  Work 

Authorization Number 15 and Work Authorization Number 16.  

Motion  by  Michael  Williamson  and  seconded  by  Ezequiel  Reyna,  to  approve  Resolution  2024‐10  – 

Consideration and Approval of Contract Amendment Number 17 to the Professional Service Agreement with 

C&M Associates,  Inc.  to  increase  the maximum amount payable  for Work Authorization Number 15 and 

Work Authorization Number 16  for a  revised maximum payable amount of 1,029,163.20. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 



HCRMA Minutes – February 27, 2024 
 
 

C. Resolution 2024‐11 – Consideration and Approval of an Agreement with Kinder Morgan, Inc. for Participation 

in Relocation of Utility Gas Line for the 365 Tollway Project.  

Motion  by  Sergio  Saenz,  with  a  second  by  Michael  Williamson,  to  approve  Resolution  2024‐11  – 

Consideration and Approval of an Agreement with Kinder Morgan,  Inc.  for Participation  in Relocation of 

Utility Gas Line for the 365 Tollway Project in an amount not to exceed $40,000.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

D. Resolution 2024‐12 – Consideration and Approval Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 21 

to  the  Professional  Service  Agreement with  SAMES,  Inc.  for  surveying  services  for  additional  “X”  Parcels 

claimed by Hidalgo County Irrigation District Number 2 as part of the 365 Tollway Project. 

Motion  by  Carlos  Del  Angel,  with  a  second  by Michael Williamson,  to  approve  Resolution  2024‐12  – 

Consideration and Approval Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 21 to the Professional 

Service Agreement with SAMES,  Inc.  for surveying services  for additional “X” Parcels claimed by Hidalgo 

County Irrigation District Number 2 as part of the 365 Tollway Project  in the amount of $19,845.   Motion 

carried unanimously.  

 

E. Resolution 2024‐13 – Consideration and Approval of Contract Amendment Number 23 with SAMES,  Inc. to 

increase the maximum amount payable for Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 21. 

Motion  by  Carlos  Del  Angel,  with  a  second  by Michael Williamson,  to  approve  Resolution  2024‐13  – 

Consideration and Approval of Contract Amendment Number 23 with SAMES, Inc. to increase the maximum 

amount payable  for Supplemental Number 1  to Work Authorization Number 21  for a  revised maximum 

amount payable of $387,371.50.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 

F. Resolution  2024‐14  –  Consideration  and  Approval  of  Designation  of  the  Rio  Grande  Valley  Metropolitan 

Planning Organization Members for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.  

Motion  by  Carlos  Del  Angel,  with  a  second  by Michael Williamson,  to  approve  Resolution  2024‐14  – 

Consideration and Approval of Designation of the Rio Grande Valley Metropolitan Planning Organization 

Members for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 

4. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

 

A. Annual  Election  of  Vice  Chairman  and  Secretary/Treasurer  for  the  Hidalgo  County  Regional  Mobility 
Authority.   
Motion by Carlos Del Angel, with a second by Michael Williamson, to re‐elect Ezequiel Reyna as Vice‐

Chairman for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Board of Directors.  Motion carried 

unanimously.  

 

Motion by Sergio Saenz, with a second by Michael Williamson, to re‐elect Carlos Del Angel as Secretary 

Treasurer for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Board of Directors.  Motion carried 

unanimously.  

 

 

5. TABLED ITEMS 
 
A. None. 



HCRMA Minutes – February 27, 2024 
 
 

 
6. EXECUTIVE SESSION, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.071 (CONSULTATION WITH 

ATTORNEY), SECTION 551.072  (DELIBERATION OF REAL PROPERTY), AND SECTION 551.074  (PERSONNEL 
MATTERS)  
Motion by Ezequiel Reyna, with a second by Carlos Del Angel, to enter into Executive Session to consult 
with board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Item 6A, Item 6C, and Item 6E under Section under Section 
551.074 of the Texas Government Code at 5:53 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 
A. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Change Order Number 5 to that certain contract 

with Pulice Construction Inc. for the 365 Tollway Project (551.071 T.G.C.) 
No Action taken.  
 

B. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Financial Assistance Agreement with the Texas 
Department of Transportation for the 365 Tollway Project (551.071 T.G.C.) 
No Action taken.  
 

C. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Professional Service Agreements for Engineering, 
Surveying and Environmental Services (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 
No Action taken.  
 

D. Consultation with Attorney on  legal  issues pertaining  to  the voluntary acquisition of  real property  for 
various  parcels  for  the  365  Tollway  Project  and  International  Bridge  Trade  Corridor  Project  (Sections 
551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 
No Action taken.  
 

E. Consultation with Attorney on  legal  issues pertaining  to  the acquisition,  including  the use of Eminent 
Domain, for property required to complete the project alignments of the 365 Tollway Project (Sections 
551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 
No Action taken.  
 

F. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Environmental Clearance Document for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 
No Action taken.  
 

Motion by Ezequiel Reyna, with a second by Michael Williamson, to reconvene the regular board meeting 
at 6:25 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HCRMA Minutes – February 27, 2024 
 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT  
 

  There being no other business to come before the Board of Directors, motion by Carlos Del Ángel, with a second by 
Ezequiel Reyna, to adjourn the meeting at 6:27 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
  ________________________________________              
  S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     Attest:   
 
  ________________________________________ 
  Carlos Del Ángel, Secretary/Treasurer 



HCRMA Minutes – March 5, 2024 
 
 

 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF HIDALGO 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

The  Hidalgo  County  Regional  Mobility  Authority  Board  of  Directors  convened  for  a  Special  Board  Meeting  on 

Tuesday, March 5, 2024, at 3:00 pm by video/teleconference, with the following participating: 

 

     Board Members:                  David Deanda, Jr., Chairman  
 Ezequiel Reyna, Vice‐Chairman 
 Juan Carlos Del Ángel, Secretary/Treasurer   

                                                     Gabriel Kamel, Director  
 Frank Pardo, Director  
 Sergio Saenz, Director  
 Michael Williamson, Director  

           
                        Absent:                None 
         

                                  Staff:                 Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director 
Ramon Navarro, Chief Construction Engineer  
Celia Gaona, Chief Auditor/Compliance Officer 
Jose Castillo, Chief Financial Officer 
Maria Alaniz, Executive Assistant  

           Blakely Fernandez, Bracewell, LLP, Legal Counsel 
         
         
  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

      
Chairman David Deanda, Jr. led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

      
INVOCATION 
 
Mrs. Maria Alaniz led the invocation. 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM FOR A SPECIAL MEETING  
 
Chairman Deanda called the Special meeting to order at 3:00 P.M  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
   

No Comments 
 

1. REGULAR AGENDA 
 
A. Resolution 2024‐15 – Consideration and Approval to designate additional routes to the Hidalgo County 

Overweight and Oversized vehicle corridor. 
Motion by Ezequiel Reyna, with a seconded by Michael Williamson, to approve Resolution 2024‐15 – 
Consideration  and  Approval  to  designate  additional  routes  to  the  Hidalgo  County Overweight  and 
Oversized vehicle corridor.  Motion carried unanimously.  



HCRMA Minutes – March 5, 2024 
 
 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 

  There being no other business  to  come before  the Board of Directors, motion by Sergio Saenz, with a  second by 
Ezequiel Reyna, to adjourn the meeting at 3:08 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
  ________________________________________              
  S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     Attest:   
 
  ________________________________________ 
  Carlos Del Ángel, Secretary/Treasurer 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 2B 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   2B                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           03/20/24                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        03/26/24  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF PROJECT AND GENERAL EXPENSE REPORT FROM 

FEBRUARY 8, 2024 TO MARCH 6, 2024     _    
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of project and general expense report for the period from   

February 8, 2024, to March 6, 2024          
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:       X   Yes           No          N/A  Funding Source:  VRF Bond 
 
     
 Operating Account                $    188,807.08  

 Toll Revenue Series 2022A&B                $    528,264.26  
   Disbursement Account                $    505,989.55  
 VRF Series 2020A                $               0.00 

 Total Project Expenses for Reporting Period                $   1,223,060.89 
       
       Fund Balance after Expenses       $ 139,960,593  
  
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the project and general expense report for the  

February 8, 2024, to March 6, as presented.         
 
6. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Finance Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9 Chief Auditor’s Recommendation: _     Approved          Disapproved       X_   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
 
 
 



 
 

   

Memorandum 
To: S. David Deanda Jr., Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: February 20, 2024 

Re: Expense Report for the Period from February 8, 2024, to March 6, 2024 

Attached is the expense report for the period commencing on February 8, 2024, to March 6, 2024. 
 
Expenses for the General Account total $188,807.08, Toll Revenue Series 2022A&B total is  
$528,264.26, Disbursement Account total $ 505,989.55, and the VRF Series 2020A Account is $0.00. 
The aggregate expense for the reporting period is $ 1,223,060.89. 
  
Based on review by this office, approval of expenses for the reporting period is recommended in 
the aggregate amount of $ 1,223,060.89. 
 
This leaves a fund balance (all funds) after expenses of $139,960,593. 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 



Plains Capital 41
Make Check Payable to Inv Date Amount

Valero Fleet 2/15/2024 1,000.75$                                                                  

Bracewell, LLP 3/5/2024 1,118.92$                                                                  

City of Pharr 3/14/2024 850.00$                                                                     

City of Pharr 3/8/2024 126,412.20$                                                              

City of Pharr 3/8/2024 205.00$                                                                     

City of Pharr 3/8/2024 7,380.00$                                                                  

City of Pharr 3/8/2024 5,497.71$                                                                  

Pharr Economic Development Corporation 3/4/2024 4,480.00$                                                                  

UBEO, LLC. (Copy Zone) 2/27/2024 383.05$                                                                     

Law Office of Richard A. Cantu. P.C. 3/6/2024 150.00$                                                                     

Aim Media Texas 2/29/2024 4,967.32$                                                                  

Advance Publishing LLC 2/28/2024 1,357.50$                                                                  

Hilltop Securites Asset Management 2/28/2024 4,700.00$                                                                  

Gateway Printing & Office Supply Inc. 2/23/2024 157.79$                                                                     

Gateway Printing & Office Supply Inc. 2/23/2024 88.98$                                                                        

Bentley 4/18/2024 5,666.10$                                                                  

A-Fast Delivery, LLC 2/21/2024 141.00$                                                                     

Pathfinder Public Affairs 2/29/2024 10,000.00$                                                                

Pena Designs 3/6/2024 200.00$                                                                     

Superior Alarm 2/19/2024 964.30$                                                                     

Corpus Christi Caller-Times 2/1/2024 761.60$                                                                     

Gatehouse Media Texas Holdings II, Inc. 2/1/2024 1,571.00$                                                                  

Burton McCumber & Longoria, LLP 3/11/2024 5,000.00$                                                                  

Xerox Buiness Solutions Southwest 2/7/2024 282.03$                                                                     

Xerox Financial Services 3/12/2024 591.60$                                                                     

Xerox Financial Services 3/12/2024 219.46$                                                                     

Pilar Rodriguez 3/7/2024 165.72$                                                                     

Alejandro Alanis 2/23/2024 230.00$                                                                     

Credit Card Services 3/3/2024 55.00$                                                                        

Credit Card Services 3/3/2024 1,196.85$                                                                  

Credit Card Services 3/3/2024 3,013.20$                                                                  

Credit Card Services 3/3/2024 -$                                                                            

188,807.08$                                                             

 

Wilmington Trust 44/365 Project Construction & Related Costs            2022 A

SICE Inc. 2/1/2024 34,867.80$                                                                

SICE Inc. 3/1/2024 75,856.70$                                                                

Bracewell, LLP 3/5/2024 4,720.00$                                                                  

Atlas Technical Consultants, LLC 3/7/2024 3,943.91$                                                                  

Terracon Consultants, Inc. 2/26/2024 25,968.99$                                                                

Terracon Consultants, Inc. 2/9/2024 54,771.18$                                                                

HDR Engineering, Inc. 3/13/2024 43,644.71$                                                                

HDR Engineering, Inc. 3/13/2024 193,700.52$                                                              

HDR Engineering, Inc. 3/13/2024 2,128.74$                                                                  

HDR Engineering, Inc. 3/13/2024 13,439.06$                                                                

Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP 3/6/2024 1,575.00$                                                                  

Law Office of Richard A. Cantu, P.C. 3/6/2024 4,950.00$                                                                  

Texas Department of Transportation 3/15/2024 171.46$                                                                     

B2Z Engineering 3/5/2024 46,073.32$                                                                

Raba Kistner, Inc. 3/6/2024 17,153.84$                                                                

Blanton & Associates, Inc. 2/8/2024 5,299.03$                                                                  

528,264.26$                                                             

Wilmington Trust 45/Capital Projects CP

Hidalgo County Drainage District No.1 2/7/2024 497,297.05$                                                              

VTX Communications LLC 2/14/2024 8,692.50$                                                                  

505,989.55$                                                             

 Feb. 7 - Mar. 6

March 2024 

Page 3



Make Check Payable to Inv Date Amount

Wilmington Trust 46/VRF Series 2020A VRF 2020

-$                                                                            

Sub Total - General -41 (Operating) 188,807.08$                                               

Sub Total - Construction/Related Costs-44 (New Bonds A) 528,264.26$                                               

Sub Total - Capital Projects-45 (Disbursement) 505,989.55$                                               

Sub Total - VRF Series 2020A-46 (VRF Series 2020A) -$                                                             

Total 1,223,060.89$                                           

Approved: 
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director

Approved: 3/26/2024
Juan Carlos Del Ángel, Secretary/Treasurer

Page 4



Item 2C 



 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   2C                    

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           03/19/24                    
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        03/26/24  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF JANUARY 

2024     _______________________      
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of financial report for the month of January 2024.    
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 

Funding Source:         
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the Financial Report for the months of    

January 2024, as presented.             
  
6. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Finance Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9.    Chief Auditor’s Recommendation: _    Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



























































Item 2D 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     WORKSHOP ITEM                2D                    

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED        03/19/2024_                  
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE     03/26/2024_  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item: RESOLUTION 2024-16 – CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ONE-YEAR 

EXTENSION TO THE INVESTMENT ADVISORY SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
HILLTOP SECURITIES ASSET MANAGEMENT, LLC AND THE HIDALGO COUNTY 
REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY.      ___________________________________________                    

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideratin and approval of one-year extension to the Investment Advisory Service Agreement 

with Hilltop Securities Asset Management, LLC.______________________________________                     
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2024-16 – Consideration and 

Approval of One-Year Extension to the Investment Advisory Service Agreement between 
Hilltop Securities Asset Management, LLC and the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority, as presented. _____________                             ____________  _______________                   

    
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _   Approved          Disapproved       X_   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
11.  Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved      X    None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X    Approved          Disapproved         _  None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2024 – 16 

APPROVAL OF ONE-YEAR EXTENSION TO THE INVESTMENT 
ADVISORY SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN HILLTOP SECURITIES 

ASSET MANAGEMENT, LLC, AND THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL 
MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 26nd day of March 2024, by the Board of Directors of the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in and 
around Hidalgo County; and 

WHEREAS, on February 10, 2022, the Authority issued $151,650,344.75 in Senior Lien 
Toll and Vehicle Registration Fee Revenue Bonds Series 2022A and $63,884,707.35 Junior Lien 
Toll and Vehicle Registration Fee Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B; and 

WHEREAS, on March 22, 2022, the Authority approved an agreement with Hilltop 
Securities Asset Management to provide Investment Advisory Services; 

The agreement was entered into for an initial two-year period with provisions to exercise 
one-year extensions after the two-year period; and  

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined it is necessary to exercise a one-year extension 
to the agreement with Hilltop Securities Asset Management to provide Investment Advisory 
Services.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

Section 1.  The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 

Section 2.  The Board hereby approves the one-year extension to the Investment Advisory 
Service Agreement between Hilltop Securities Asset Management, LLC and the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority hereto attached as Exhibit A. 

Section 3.  The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute the one-year extension to 
the Investment Advisory Services Agreement between Hilltop Securities Asset 
Management, LLC and the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority, as 
approved. 

***** 



PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY AT A 
REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 26th day of March, 2024, at which 
meeting a quorum was present. 

S. David Deanda Jr., Chairman

Carlos Del Ángel, Secretary/Treasurer 



EXHIBIT A 

ONE-YEAR EXTENSION TO THE 

INVESTMENT ADVISORY SERVICE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

     HILLTOP SECURITIES ASSET MANAGEMENT, LLC 

           AND 

THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTORITY 

DATED 

MARCH 26, 2024 

EXHIBIT B 

INVESTMENT ADVISORY SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH 

HILLTOP SECURITIES ASSET MANAGEMENT, LLC 

DATED 

MARCH 22, 2022 



ONE YEAR EXTENSION TO THE INVESTMENT ADVISORY SERVICE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY AND 

HILLTOP SECURITIES ASSET MANAGEMENT, LLC 

DATED MARCH 22, 2022 

INTIAL AGREEMENT PERIOD FOR TWO YEARS WITH 

ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR TERMS 

ONE-YEAR EXTENSION EFFECTIVE MARCH 26, 2024 

HILLTOP SECURITIES            HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL  
ASSET MANAGEMENT, LLC MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

By:  By:
Richard M. Ramirez, Regional Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director 
Managing Director 

Date: Date:

EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT B













































Item 2E 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     WORKSHOP ITEM          2E______                     

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED      03/19/2024_                    
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE           03/26/2024_  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item: RESOLUTION 2024-17 – CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF A NO-COST 

TIME EXTENSION TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH LEONEL 
GARZA & ASSOCIATES TO PROVIDE APPRAISAL SERVICES FOR THE 365 TOLLWAY 
PROJECT.                                                ___________________________________________                    

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of no-cost time extension to the PSA with Leonel Garza &_ 

Associates for the 365 Tollway Project.                    ___________________________________                    
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas 

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                                                      
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2024-17 – Consideration and 

Approval of no-cost time extension to the Professional Service Agreement with Leonel 
Garza & Associates to provide appraisal services for the 365 Tollway Project, as 
presented. ______                     _______                             ____________  _______________                     

    
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _   Approved          Disapproved       X_   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
11.  Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved      X    None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X    Approved          Disapproved         _  None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 2024-17 

 
 

CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF A NO-COST TIME EXTENSION TO THE 
PROFESSIONAL AGREEMENT WITH LEONEL GARZA & ASSOCIATES, LLP, TO 

PROVIDE APPRAISAL SERVICES FOR THE 365 TOLLWAY PROJECT 

 
THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 26th day of March, 2024 by the Board of Director of the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 

 
WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 

through its Board of Directors (the “Board”); is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority was created by Order of Hidalgo County (the “County”) dated 

October 26, 2004; Petition of the County dated April 21, 2005; and a Minute Order of the Texas 
Transportation Commission (the “Commission”) dated November 17, 2005, pursuant to provisions 
under the Act the Authority; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Authority has been constituted in accordance 

with the Act to address mobility issues in and around Hidalgo County; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has adopted a Strategic Plan that prioritizes the 365 Tollway 
and IBTC Projects; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority solicited Statements of Qualifications for Appraisal Services 

for the 365 Tollway and IBTC Projects; and 
 

WHEREAS, on February 11, 2019, the Authority received three (3) responses to the 
request for Statement of Qualifications for Appraisal Services for the 365 Tollway and IBTC 
Projects; and 

 
WHEREAS, a Selection Committee reviewed and ranked the proposals submitted by the 

responding firms; and 
 

WHEREAS, on March 5, 2019, the Authority approved Resolution 2019-10 award a 
Professional Service Agreement to Leonel Garza & Associates LLP as the primary appraiser and 
Professional Appraisal Services, Inc. as secondary appraiser for the 365 Tollway and IBTC 
Projects ; and  

 
The agreement was entered into for an initial four-year period with provisions to exercise 

one-year extensions after the four-year period; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Authority finds it necessary to approve Resolution 2024-17 Consideration 

and approval of a no-cost time extension to the Professional services agreement with Leonel 
Garzas & Associates LLP to provide appraisal services for the 365 Tollway Project. 

 

 



 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR OF THE 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 
 
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 

restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board hereby approves Resolution 2024-17 for a no-cost time extension to 

the Professional Service Agreement for Appraisal Services with Leonel Garza & 
Associates, LLP, for the 365 Tollway Project, hereto attached as Exhibit A. 

 
Section 3. The Board hereby authorizes the Executive Director to execute the extension to 

the Professional Service Agreement with Leonel Garza & Associates, LLP, for 
appraisal services. 

 
**** 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY AT A 
REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 26th day of March, 2024, at 
which meeting a quorum was present. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

S. David Deanda, Chairman 
 
 
 

Attest: 
 
 
 

 
Carlos Del Ángel, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A  
 

No Cost Time Extension 

to the 

Professional Service Agreement 

With Leonel Garza & Associates, LLC 

For Appraisal Services for the 365 Tollway Project 

 
 
 



CONTRACT AMENDMENT  

TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

APPRAISAL SERVICES 

LEONEL GARZA & ASSOCIATES, LLC 

This is the first amendment (“AMENDMENT”) to that Professional Services Agreement for Appraisal 

Services (“the AGREEMENT”) entered into by and between the HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL 

MOBILITY AUTHORITY,  a political subdivision of the State of Texas (“RMA”) and LEONEL GARZA 

& ASSOCIATES, LLC, pursuant to the RMA’s authority under the Texas Transportation Code, Chapter 

370.  

This AMENDENT revises Article XV – Termination to the Agreement as follows: 

This agreement becomes effective when fully executed by all parties hereto and it shall terminate at the 

close of December 31, 2026.  

This contract amendment to the Professional Services Agreement shall become effective on the date of 

final execution of the parties hereto.  All other terms and conditions of the Agreement not hereby 

amended are to remain in full force and effect.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment is executed in duplicate counterparts and hereby accepted 

and acknowledged below.  

     THE AUTHORITY 

_____________________________________ 
(Signature) 

_Pilar Rodriguez_______________________ 
(Printed Name)  

_Executive Director____________________ 
    (Title)  

THE APPRAISER 

___________________________________ 
(Signature) 

_Leonel Garza & Associates, LLC_________ 
(Printed Name)  

_President____________________________ 
(Title)  

Date:_______________________________  Date: ________________________________ 



Item 2F 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

    BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X           
PLANNING COMMITTEE   
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

WORKSHOP ITEM            2F_____ 
DATE SUBMITTED       03/19/2024 
MEETING DATE            03/26/2024  

TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

1. Agenda Item: RESOLUTION 2024-18 – CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF A NO-COST
TIME EXTENSION TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH HLH
APPRAISAL SERVICES TO PROVIDE REVIEW APPRAISAL SERVICES FOR THE 365
TOLLWAY PROJECT.                                                __________    _____________________

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No

Consideration and approval of no-cost time extension to the PSA with HLH Appraisal Services
for the 365 Tollway Project.                    _______                ____________________________

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy

4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 

5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2024-18 – Consideration and
Approval of no-cost time extension to the Professional Service Agreement with HLH
Appraisal Services to provide review appraisal services for the 365 Tollway Project, as
presented. ______                     _______                             ____________  _______________

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _   Approved          Disapproved       X_   None 

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved      X    None 

12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 

13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X    Approved          Disapproved         _  None 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 2024-18 

 
 

CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF A NO-COST TIME EXTENSION TO 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH HLH APPRAISAL SERVICES TO 

PROVIDE REVIEW APPRAISAL SERVICES FOR THE 365 TOLLWAY PROJECT 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 26th day of March 2024 by the Board of Director of the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 

 
WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 

through its Board of Directors (the “Board”); is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority was created by Order of Hidalgo County (the “County”) dated 

October 26, 2004; Petition of the County dated April 21, 2005; and a Minute Order of the Texas 
Transportation Commission (the “Commission”) dated November 17, 2005, pursuant to provisions 
under the Act the Authority; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Authority has been constituted in accordance 

with the Act to address mobility issues in and around Hidalgo County; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has adopted a Strategic Plan that prioritizes the 365 Tollway 
and IBTC Projects; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority solicited Statements of Qualifications for Review Appraisal 

Services for the 365 Tollway and IBTC Projects; and 
 

WHEREAS, on February 11, 2019, the Authority received three (3) responses to the 
request for Statement of Qualifications for Appraisal Services for the 365 Tollway and IBTC 
Projects; and 

 
WHEREAS, a Selection Committee reviewed and ranked the proposals submitted by the 

responding firms; and 
 

WHEREAS, on March 5, 2019 the Authority approved Resolution 2019-11 to award a 
Professional Service Agreement to HLH Appraisal Services for the 365 Tollway and IBTC 
Projects; and  

 
The agreement was entered into for an initial four-year period with provisions to exercise 

one-year extensions after the four-year period; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Authority finds is necessary to approve Resolution 2024-18 Consideration 

and approval of a no-cost time extension to the Professional Service agreement with HLH 
Appraisal Services to provide review appraisal services for the 365 Tollway Project.   

 
 
 
 
 

 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR OF THE 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

 
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 

restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board hereby approves Resolution 2024-18 for a no-cost time extension 

to the Professional Service Agreement with HLH Appraisal Services for the 
365 Tollway Project, hereto attached as Exhibit A. 

 

Section 3. The Board hereby authorizes the Executive Director to execute the Professional 
Service Agreement with HLH Appraisal Services for Review Appraisal Services. 

 
 

**** 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY AT A 
REGULAR MEETING duly posted and noticed, on the 26th day of March 2024, at which 
meeting a quorum was present. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

S. David Deanda, Chairman 
 
 
 

Attest: 
 
 
 

 

Juan Carlos Del Ángel, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

No-Cost Time Extension  

To the  

Professional Service Agreement  

With 

HLH Appraisal Services  

For  

Review Appraisal Services  

for the  

365 Tollway Project 



CONTRACT AMENDMENT  

TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

REVIEW APPRAISAL SERVICES 

HLH APPRAISAL SERVICES 

 

This is the first amendment (“AMENDMENT”) to that Professional Services Agreement for Review 

Appraisal Services (“the AGREEMENT”) entered into by and between the HIDALGO COUNTY 

REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY,  a political subdivision of the State of Texas (“RMA”) and HLH 

Appraisal Services, pursuant to the RMA’s authority under the Texas Transportation Code, Chapter 370.  

 

This AMENDENT revises Article XV – Termination to the Agreement as follows:  

This agreement becomes effective when fully executed by all parties hereto and it shall terminate at the 

close of December 31, 2026.  

This contract amendment to the Professional Services Agreement shall become effective on the date of 

final execution of the parties hereto.  All other terms and conditions of the Agreement not hereby 

amended are to remain in full force and effect.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment is executed in duplicate counterparts and hereby accepted 

and acknowledged below.  

 

 

THE REVIEW APPRAISER                 THE AUTHORITY  

 

___________________________________   _____________________________________ 
(Signature)      (Signature)  
 
_Harvey_L. Heerssen_______________   _Pilar Rodriguez_______________________ 
(Printed Name)      (Printed Name)  
 
_Owner____________________________  _Executive Director____________________ 
(Title)                     (Title)  
 
Date:_______________________________    Date: ________________________________ 
     
 

 

 



 Item 3A 

MariaAlaniz
Cross-Out



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 BOARD OF DIRECTORS    X AGENDA ITEM          3A 
PLANNING COMMITTEE   DATE SUBMITTED    03/19/24 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING DATE   03/26/24 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2024-19 – APPROVAL OF AWARD OF CONTRACT WITH
ESCOBEDO & CARDENAS, LLP, LAW OFFICE OF RICHARD A. CANTU, P.C., AND
BRACEWELL, LLP FOR LEGAL SERVICES TO THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL
MOBILITY AUTHORITY.

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No

Consideration and Approval of award of contract with Escobedo &  Cardenas, LLP, Law Office of
Richard Cantu, PC., and Bracewell, LLP, for Legal Services to the Hidalgo Cunty Regional
Mobility Authority. 

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy

4. Budgeted:  Yes   No     X   N/A 

5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2024-19 – Award of contract with
Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Law Office of Richard Cantu, PC., and Bracewell, LLP, for
legal services to the Hidalgo Cunty Regional  Mobility Authority, as presented. 

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:   Approved  Disapproved       X   None 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved    Disapproved       X   None 

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:   Approved          Disapproved    X  None 

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   Approved          Disapproved    X   None 

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   Approved    Disapproved    X_   None 

11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved  Disapproved    X   None 

12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved       Disapproved    X   None 

13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved    Disapproved        None 



Memorandum 
To: S. David Deanda, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: March 19, 2024 

Re: Resolution 2024-19 – Award of Contract with Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Law 
Office of Richard Cantu, P.C., and Bracewell, LLP for Legal Services to the 
HCRMA  

Background 
On March 1, 2024, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA) received a single response 
to the formal solicitation for Request for Proposals for Legal Services. 
  
Goal 
In order for the Authority to conduct business, general counsel legal services are required from time to 
time.  Counsel services may be provided in the areas of administrative law, public law, transportation 
law, real estate law, eminent domain, contract law, employment law, and litigation. 
 
Staff is requesting award of contract with the single respondent to the Request for Proposal for legal 
services, which is Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Law Office of Richard Cantu, and Bracewell, LLP. 
 
Options 
The Board of Directors may opt to not authorize staff to negotiate and request re-solicitation of the 
Request for Proposals. 
 
Recommendation 
Based on review by this office, approval of Resolution 2024-19 – Award of Contract with Escobedo 
& Cardenas, LLP, Law Office of Richard Cantu, and Bracewell, LLP, for legal services to the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority is recommended. 
 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise. 
 

 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 2024-19 

 
 

AWARD OF CONTRACT WITH ESCOBEDO & CARDENAS, LLP, LAW OFFICE OF 
RICHARD CANTU, P.C., AND BRACEWELL, LLP, FOR LEGAL SERVICES TO THE 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
 
 
THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 26th day of March, 2024 by the Board of Director of the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 

 
WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 

through its Board of Directors (the “Board”); is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority was created by Order of Hidalgo County (the “County”) dated 

October 26, 2004; Petition of the County dated April 21, 2005; and a Minute Order of the Texas 
Transportation Commission (the “Commission”) dated November 17, 2005, pursuant to 
provisions under the Act the Authority; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Authority has been constituted in accordance 

with the Act to address mobility issues in and around Hidalgo County; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority requires general legal counsel services to conduct day to day 
business and provide legal advice to the Board of Directors and staff; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority solicited Request for Proposals for Legal Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 1, 2024, the Authority received a single response to the Request 

for Proposals for Legal Services; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined it is necessary to award a Professional Service 
Agreement with the single respondent, Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Law Office of Richard Cantu, 
and Bracewell, LLP, for legal services to the Authority;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR OF THE 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 
 
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 

restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board hereby awards a Professional Service Agreement for Legal Services 

with Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Law Office of Richard Cantu, PC, and 
Bracewell, LLP and authorizes the Executive Director to negotiate the terms of 
the agreement. 

 
Section 3. The Board hereby authorizes the Executive Director to execute the Professional 

Service Agreement for legal services with Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Law 
Office of Richard Cantu, PC, and Bracewell, LLP. 

 
 



**** 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY AT A 
REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 26th day of March 26, 2024, at 
which meeting a quorum was present. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

S. David Deanda, Chairman 
 
 
 

Attest: 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Juan Carlos Del Ángel, Secretary/Treasurer 



RESPONSE TO

Hidalgo County
Regional Mobility
Authority
RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR
PROPOSAL FOR LEGAL SERVICES -
2024-03



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR

LEGAL SERVICES – 2024 03
PREPARED FOR

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Tab A. Statement of Qualifications

1. Firm Overviews................................................................................................. 1

2. Lists of Principals and Partners......................................................................... 2

3. Team Leaders: Richard Cantu, Luis Cardenas & Blakely Fernandez ............... 10

4. HCRMA Proposed Team ................................................................................. 10

5. Experience with Governmental Entities......................................................... 11

6. Experience in the Transportation Sector........................................................ 14

7. Experience in Procurement Law..................................................................... 15

8. Experience Developing Public Infrastructure Projects ................................... 15

9. Conflicts of Interest ........................................................................................ 16

Tab B. Rate Proposal .............................................................................................. 17

Tab C. Insurance Requirements ............................................................................. 18

Tab D. DBE/HUB/SBE ............................................................................................. 19

Tab E. Executed Addendum 1 – Disclosure Provisions.......................................... 20

March 1, 2024



Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Cantu Law Company, and Bracewell LLP 1

A. Statement of Qualifications
Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP (E & C), Cantu Law Company (Cantu) and Bracewell LLP (Bracewell) (collectively, the Firms)
propose to continue serving the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the Authority) as co general counsel. For the
past seven years, Richard Cantu, Luis Cardenas and Blakely Fernandez have shared the role of general counsel, providing
the Authority with a hands on, local counsel with expertise in public law and real estate, along with the benefits of the
resources of a larger firm with a broad network and expertise in transportation law and the transportation industry. The
Firms are confident that their team can continue to provide superior legal services to the Authority in each of the areas
described in the RFP’s scope of services.

1. Firm Overviews
a. Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP
1602 Dulcinea Street
Edinburg, Texas 78539
T: 956.825.1408

At E & C, with over 45 years of combined experience, you can trust that you will receive the highest level of attention and
efficiency for your case. Whether you are involved in commercial or tort litigation or are in the middle of a business
dispute, our firm can help you in developing a solid legal strategy and seeing it through from start to finish. Our firm is
comprised of experienced trial lawyers with expertise in commercial and tort litigation including, but not limited to,
shareholder disputes, breach of contract, construction litigation, banking litigation, government law, real estate litigation,
employment and labor law, and tort law.

We are focused on providing results to our clients. Our firm understands the impact that a single legal proceeding can
have on a business or individual client, and we always work hard to make sure that we only represent our clients in the
way they want to be represented. We will take the time to learn about our client so that we can make smart decisions in
strategizing your best steps moving forward.

Our firm is headquartered out of McAllen, Texas but our clients extend beyond the Rio Grande Valley, across Texas and
the United States.

b. Cantu Law Company
3301 N. Taylor Road
Mission, Texas 78573
T: 956.297.3335

The Law Office of Richard A. Cantu, P.C., doing business as Cantu Law Company, located in Mission, Hidalgo County, Texas,
is a boutique law firm specializing in handling real estate matters, including, but not limited to, commercial, residential
and farm and ranch transactions, contract law, condemnation matters, banking/finance law, business organizations, wills,
probate, landlord/tenant, mediation, and litigation. Our goal is to assist our clients in identifying the legal issues, informing
our clients of possible options and/or resolutions, developing legal courses of action, using our legal skills to solve the
problems, and preparing and/or reviewing legal documents in support thereof. We are proud to represent many
individuals as well as both large and small companies, and governmental entities throughout the State of Texas and
mainly in the Rio Grande Valley.

c. Bracewell LLP
300 Convent Street, Suite 2700
San Antonio, Texas 78205
T: 210.299.3410

Founded in 1945, Bracewell is a Texas headquartered, international law firm. As the firm has grown across the United
States and abroad, our headquarters have remained in Texas – the vibrant, commercial center of the Southwest. We
serve governmental entities, educational and not for profit institutions, major financial institutions, and local, national
and multinational corporations, providing full service counsel in virtually every area of law, including particularly public
law, transportation law (federal and state), public finance, project development, litigation, labor and employment,
environmental and real estate law.



Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Cantu Law Company, and Bracewell LLP 2

Bracewell began its work in public law over 50 years ago. Bracewell has four offices located in Texas – San Antonio, Austin,
Dallas and Houston, each of which have active practices in all of the areas identified above. The San Antonio, Texas, office
was formed in 1999 as a result of the firm acquiring attorneys who formerly operated as Wells, Pinckney & McHugh, a
well established firm with a strong South Texas and national client base.

In 2013, the office expanded with the addition of five partners, including Blakely Fernandez, who has represented the
Authority since 2007. These partners have established practices in the areas of public law, transportation law, public
finance, economic development, employment law, real estate, and litigation. Building on the firm’s combined strengths,
the San Antonio office provides clients with full service legal counsel, with particular emphasis on transportation law,
public law, public finance, real estate, labor and employment law, litigation, immigration and water law matters.

2. Lists of Principals and Partners
a. Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP

E & C consists of two partners, Luis M. Cardenas and Joe Escobedo, Jr.

Luis M. Cardenas
Partner
T: 956.540.2472••F: 956.630.2223
E: Luis@escobedocardenas.com

As part of the *AV rated firm in handling complex litigation matters for the firm’s clients of
Escobedo & Cardenas LLP, Luis Cardenas applies his experience and knowledge to make our from
as effective as it is. Selected to **Super Lawyers as a Rising Star from 2004 2011 and becoming a
Super Lawyer in 2012, Mr Cardenas serves businesses and individuals across the state of Texas.

After receiving his Bachelor of Arts from the University of Texas in 1993, he received his J.D. from
the University of Houston in 1997. Mr. Cardenas is AV rated by Martindale Hubbell and board
certified in personal injury trial law by the Texas Board of Legal Specialization. Luis Cardenas is a
member of the Texas Pattern Jury Charge Committee for the Malpractice, Premises and Products
Texas Pattern Jury Charge edition. Mr. Cardenas is also a member of the American Board of Trial
Advocates (ABOTA). He has been a past board member of the Hidalgo County Bar Association and
Hidalgo County Young Lawyer’s Association and has given multiple presentations and seminars on
a large range of legal issues. Mr. Cardenas has represented banks, oil and gas corporations,
insurance companies, transportation companies, construction companies and individual clients.
Mr. Cardenas is fluent in Spanish.

Joe Escobedo, Jr.
Partner
T: +956.540.2472••F: +956.630.2223
E: Joe@escobedocardenas.com

Joe Escobedo Jr. is an *AV rated attorney who has represented clients in complex commercial
and tort based litigation (in both state and federal courts) for over 25 years.

Mr. Escobedo was born in Mission, Texas. Since receiving his law degree from the University of
Texas School of Law in 1989, Mr. Escobedo has devoted his practice to the representation of
individuals and corporations in Texas courtrooms and has tried numerous cases on both sides of
the docket. He was selected to **Super Lawyers from 2006 2015, an honor which is bestowed on
less than 5 percent of lawyers in the state. Mr. Escobedo has been certified as a mediator by The
Center for Public Policy Dispute Resolution at the University of Texas School of Law and is Board
Certified in Personal Injury Trial Law by the Texas Board of Legal Specialization. He is a member of
the American Board of Trial Advocates (ABOTA). Mr. Escobedo has authored and presented
numerous Continuing Legal Education (CLE) articles across the country and is fluent in Spanish.



Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Cantu Law Company, and Bracewell LLP 3

b. Cantu Law Company

The Law Office of Richard A. Cantu, doing business as Cantu Law Company, consists of two lawyers, Richard A. Cantu,
President, and Rebecca R. Lopez, Associate Attorney. The focal point of Richard A. Cantu’s practice is representing clients
in commercial real estate developments and transactions, representing local financial institutions in connection with real
estate loan transactions, and representing local municipalities and governmental entities in real estate transactions and
condemnation matters.

Richard A. Cantu
President
T: 956.297.3335••F: 956.297.3335
E: richard@cantulawcompany.com

Richard Cantu has been practicing law for more than 27 years. Although his focus has been
primarily on real estate law, his practice includes business law, contract law, wills, probate and
administrative/public law as well.

Mr. Cantu spent more than 10 years as an attorney with Valley Land Title Company. He owns
his own firm now located in Mission, Texas. Mr. Cantu grew up in Rio Grande City, Texas,
received a Bachelor of Arts degree from Texas A&M University (College Station, Texas) in 1992
and a Juris Doctor degree from Texas Southern University Thurgood Marshall School of Law in
1996. He is a member of the State Bar of Texas, a member of the Real Estate, Probate & Trust
Law Section of the State Bar of Texas, a member of the Texas Bar Foundation, a member and
former director of the Hidalgo County Bar Association, a member and former co chair of the
Real Estate Section of the Hidalgo County Bar Association, a current Director of the Valley
Alliance of Mentors, for Opportunities and Scholarships (VAMOS), a former director of CASA
of Hidalgo County, a former director of the Hidalgo County Young Lawyer’s Association. Mr.
Cantu dedicates his free time to his family and his community.

b. Bracewell LLP

Bracewell has nearly 400 lawyers located in ten offices, and 180 of those are partners/principals in the firm. A complete
list, including biographical information of all of Bracewell’s lawyers can be found at www.bracewell.com. For purposes of
this solicitation, we are including information on the partners in the San Antonio Office and the Public Law / Public Entities
Practice Group.

San Antonio Office Partners. The San Antonio office has 13 lawyers, nine of which are partners. Partners in San Antonio
include:

Blakely Fernandez

Partner | San Antonio
T: +1.210.299.3410••F: +1.800.404.3970
E: blakely.fernandez@bracewell.com

Blakely Latham Fernandez focuses her practice in the space where business and government
intersect, recognizing that complex business issues and solutions often exist in a political
environment, just as complex public issues and solutions often benefit from private partnerships.

She represents both governmental entities and private sector clients in structuring projects that
include public benefit and, often, incentives. As a former elected official, she recognizes the
stewardship and political considerations that are an important part of project development.

Blakely's representation of public entities includes acting as traditional bond counsel, public law
and administrative law counsel, and special counsel on economic development. Her representation
of private sector clients includes acting as developer's counsel, corporate counsel, and special
counsel on public contracting and procurements.



Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Cantu Law Company, and Bracewell LLP 4

William T. Avila

Partner | San Antonio
T: +1.210.299.3415••F: +1.800.404.3970
E: william.avila@bracewell.com

Bill Avila's practice focuses on public finance law, specifically providing legal counsel, negotiating,
drafting documents and securing governmental approvals. He has closed approximately 1,000
transactions, totaling more than $50 billion in aggregate principal amount of municipal bond
transactions as bond counsel, underwriters' counsel, issuer's counsel, user's counsel and trustee's
counsel for a variety of public infrastructure and improvement projects.

Amber K. Dodds

Partner | San Antonio
T: +1.210.299.3569••F: +1.800.404.3970
E: amber.dodds@bracewell.com

Amber Dodds counsels employers in all areas of employment law. Her advice includes analysis and
direction on employment and benefits issues, such as leave administration, employee
investigations, use of background checks and consumer reports, employee discipline and
preventing harassment and retaliation claims. She drafts employment policies and employee
handbooks specific to client industry and management needs. Amber also routinely advises on
employee pay practices, such as compliance with overtime, per diem, pay deduction, and
exemption classification requirements. She has experience advising clients on compliance with
Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) regulations, including the General Duty Clause, Process
Safety Management, and a variety of industry or hazard specific regulations.

In addition to regulatory and employment law compliance, Amber represents employers in pre
litigation administrative investigation and hearings, settlement negotiations, and federal and state
court litigation. Her litigation matters have included a variety of employment law claims, such as
retaliation, wrongful termination, discrimination, harassment, and wage and hour issues, as well as
general civil litigation matters in the public, private and religious organization employer context.
Amber is also experienced in Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) collective action litigation, including
class certification and notice issues.

Amber served as an intern in the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas with
the Honorable Lee Yeakel and the Texas First Court of Appeals with Justice Evelyn V. Keyes.

Richard C. Danysh

Of Counsel | San Antonio
T: +1.210.299.3475••F: +1.210.299.0106
E: richard.danysh@bracewell.com

During his career, Richard Danysh has tried approximately 40 civil jury trials to verdict and has
been recognized for his skill by his peers with election as a fellow in the American College of Trial
Lawyers. He has also initiated, prepared and participated in numerous "mock trials" in cases
involving claims for substantial damages. His work has encompassed all aspects of state and
federal trials, arbitration and forms of alternative dispute resolution.



Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Cantu Law Company, and Bracewell LLP 5

His cases have run a wide spectrum including breach of contract, fraud, tortious interference,
personal injury defense, wrongful death, premises liability, property damage, lender liability and
related disputes. In addition, he has experience in environmental tort litigation. Richard's clients
come from a variety of industries including brewing, sports, energy, financial services and
manufacturing.

Carrie Douglas

Partner | San Antonio
T: +1.210.299.3435••F: +1.800.404.3970
E: carrie.douglas@bracewell.com

Carrie Douglas is a passionate advocate who works tirelessly to achieve maximum reimbursements
from commercial payors and third party administrators for hospital systems, ambulatory surgery
centers and large physician practices. She represents clients in a variety of reimbursement related
legal disputes, involving managed care contracts and other payor provider disputes wherein she
uses her efforts to resolve matters at the pre litigation stage.

Carrie has extensive experience on matters pertaining to unilateral payor policies involving COVID
19 reimbursement, reference based pricing, out of network plans and E/M downcoding. She has
also established successful strategies related to disputes involving experimental/investigational
designations, medical necessity, diagnosis related groups (DRG) downgrades and refunds, offsets
and other adjustments, which have allowed for pre litigation resolutions. In addition, she advises
hospitals and health systems on compliance with the Hospital Price Transparency Rule.

Dedicated to her clients' business success, Carrie has brought in more than $16 million over the
past six years for West Texas' largest regional health system.

Victoria M. Garcia

Managing Partner, San Antonio | San Antonio
T: +1.210.299.3546••F: +1.210.299.0108
E: victoria.garcia@bracewell.com

Focusing on immigration, labor and employment law, Victoria Garcia represents U.S. and
international companies in all aspects of labor and employment, and immigration. She also serves
as the managing partner of Bracewell's San Antonio office.

Victoria provides clients with comprehensive legal guidance regarding business immigration
matters, including (i) obtaining non immigrant and immigrant visas for foreign employees, (ii)
responding to inquiries and audits from the Department of Homeland Security, and (iii) complying
with U.S. immigration laws in the hiring, retention and management of domestic workforces.
Victoria also represents clients in a wide range of labor and employment matters, including
employment discrimination litigation, administrative proceedings, labor/management relations,
and the formulation of policies and procedures relating to every aspect of the employment
relationship.

Additionally, Victoria provides clients with advice and counsel on international employment issues,
including the application of United States legislation abroad, the transfer, assignment and
separation of employees on foreign assignment, the transfer of employees between subsidiaries
and related entities, and on conflicts between U.S. and foreign legislation.



Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Cantu Law Company, and Bracewell LLP 6

Summer B. Greathouse

Partner | San Antonio
T: +1.210.299.3515••F: +1.800.404.3970
E: summer.greathouse@bracewell.com

Summer concentrates her practice on tax exempt financings, tax credits, economic development
and governmental contracts at the federal, state and local levels, with a focus on affordable and
workforce housing development. She regularly represents governmental entities in public private
partnerships in connection with 4% and 9% low income housing tax credit transactions and
workforce housing transactions involving public facility corporations and housing finance
corporations. Her governmental clients range from large urban cities to rural municipalities and
counties to housing authorities across Texas and her focus is always on helping her clients achieve
their goals for those communities.

Additionally, Summer has experience advising purchasers, sellers, lenders, borrowers, landlords
and tenants in various real estate transactions, including financings, acquisitions, dispositions and
leases. She also has experience counseling clients on corporate governance, choice of entities and
non profit matters.

Prior to attending law school, Summer lived and owned a business in Buenos Aires, Argentina and
is fluent in Spanish.

Jane H. Macon

Partner | San Antonio
T: +1.210.299.3517••F: +1.800.404.3970
E: jane.macon@bracewell.com

Jane Macon focuses her practice on public finance and administrative law, public and private
partnerships, real estate, civil litigation, zoning, platting, condemnation and municipal bonds.

Jane made history in the City of San Antonio when she became the first woman to serve as city
attorney from 1977 to 1983. In 2000, she was appointed by President Bill Clinton to serve on the
Selective Service Appeal Board. Jane is past chair of Siebert Financial Corporation (Nasdaq: SIEB)
and officer of Siebert Foundation.

James P. Plummer

Partner | San Antonio
T: +1.210.299.3530••F: +1.800.404.3970
E: james.plummer@bracewell.com

Jim Plummer concentrates his practice on tax exempt financings, tax credits and governmental
contracts at the federal, state and local levels. His practice includes a substantial amount of work
related to affordable housing and housing bonds, as well as state and local taxation. Jim also has
extensive experience in public private partnerships (PPP), particularly negotiating development,
management and operating contracts involving governmental entities and contracts with tax
exempt financing.



Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Cantu Law Company, and Bracewell LLP 7

Public Law & Public Entities Practice Group Attorneys. Bracewell has a practice group specifically dedicated to public law
and public entities. This group includes the following partners from various Texas offices:

Blakely Fernandez
Partner | San Antonio
See resume above.

Jane H. Macon
Partner | San Antonio
See resume above.

Barron F. Wallace

Partner | Houston
T: +1.713.221.1219••F: +1.800.404.3970
E: barron.wallace@bracewell.com

As a result of his experience with virtually all types of governmental entities and diverse
finance structures, Barron Wallace's public finance practice is both unique and broad. His
clients benefit from his knowledge of traditional and highly structured project finance
conduit transactions involving state agencies, cities, school districts, airports, higher
education, economic development, private and primary secondary schools, regional
mobility authorities, special districts and not for profit organizations focusing on parks
and cultural arts. His multifaceted practice spans traditional municipal finance, tax
increment finance, urban redevelopment, as well as general public law.

Barron's leadership, insight and in depth understanding is beneficial in providing bond,
disclosure and tax counsel to issuers, underwriters, trustees, third party credit providers,
and borrowers. He serves as bond and disclosure counsel for cities, counties, state
agencies, and special districts, including local government corporations. In addition,
Barron represents national and regional investment banking firms as underwriter's
counsel and also advises conduit bond issuers, tax increment reinvestment zones, local
government corporations and certain special districts as general counsel or special
counsel. As a by product of his many years of experience and innovations in public
finance, he also focuses on urban infrastructure and transportation development and
public/private partnerships.

Mary F. Buzak

Counsel | Houston
T: +1.713.221.1153••F: +1.800.401.3970
E: mary.buzak@bracewell.com

Mary Buzak provides general counsel services to clients regarding various matters, including real
estate transactions, development agreements, contracting and procurements, and federal grants.
Prior to joining Bracewell, Mary held positions in the City of Houston Legal Department, City of
Cincinnati Solicitor's Office, Texas Legislative Council and the US Department of Labor. She most
recently served as a senior assistant city attorney for the City of Houston, where her practice
focused on the sale and lease of municipal property, economic development incentives, tax
increment reinvestment zones, and parks and green space.



Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Cantu Law Company, and Bracewell LLP 8

Sara M. Burgin

Of Counsel | Austin
T: +1.512.494.3654••F: +1.800.404.3970
E: sara.burgin@bracewell.com

Sara Burgin uses her scientific background and more than 30 years of legal experience to assist
clients with issues relating to water use, management and disposal. She advises on permitting,
compliance and enforcement matters in association with onshore and offshore wastewater and
storm water discharges; issues relating to surface water and ground water rights; water contracts;
Spill Prevention, Control and Countermeasures (SPCC) plan requirements and applicability issues;
Clean Water Act (CWA) jurisdiction; issues associated with public water systems at industrial
facilities; and dredge and fill permit requirements.

In addition to her water experience, Sara has also counseled clients on industrial solid waste
matters related to wastewater treatment facilities and recycling/reuse of treated wastewater
and/or solids resulting from treatment.

W. Stephen Benesh

Partner | Austin
T: +1.512.494.3680••F: +1.800.404.3970
E: steve.benesh@bracewell.com

Steve Benesh is a seasoned business litigator in his 36th year of practice at Bracewell. He currently
serves as President Elect of the State Bar of Texas and is a former Chair of the Texas Bar
Foundation. Steve brings his experience and judgment to bear in helping his clients resolve their
issues, whether that means vigorously protecting those interests in the courtroom or working
collaboratively to reach a common sense solution outside the courtroom. He has represented
clients in diverse matters, including securities, class action, business torts, fraud, breach of
fiduciary duty, deceptive trade practices, breach of contract, and products liability. Steve has first
chair jury and non jury trial experience representing plaintiffs and defendants in state and federal
courts, as well as arbitration and mediation experience.

Steve's qualities have been described by sources quoted by Chambers USA. "Stephen is practical
and business oriented, he anticipates issues well and his work product is great," says one source.
"He is a results oriented lawyer," says another. In addition to his ranking in Chambers USA in Texas
Litigation: Securities and General Commercial (2023), Steve is recognized by BL Rankings, Best
Lawyers (2009 2024) in the areas of Bet the Company Litigation, Commercial Litigation, Banking
and Finance Litigation and Construction Litigation. In addition, he has been honored by the same
publication four times as Austin Lawyer of the Year in Banking and Finance litigation (2014, 2016,
2024) and Construction Litigation (2022). In The Legal 500 United States, Steve is recommended in
Energy Litigation: Oil and Gas (2023); Dispute Resolution General Commercial Disputes (2023);
Dispute Resolution Securities Litigation: Defense (2018, 2020 2023); Construction (including
Construction Litigation) (2016 2018); and Construction (2013 2014).



Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Cantu Law Company, and Bracewell LLP 9

Jonathan K. Frels

Partner | Houston
T: +1.713.221.1599••F: +1.800.404.3970
E: jonathan.frels@bracewell.com

Jonathan Frels has spent his entire legal career focused on public law, public finance and state
legislative matters, both in private practice and through government service in Texas. He serves as
bond counsel, underwriter's counsel and disclosure counsel in public finance transactions for
school districts, cities, counties, state agencies, navigation districts, port authorities, economic
development corporations, water districts and water authorities. He also represents political
subdivisions as general counsel with respect to public law issues. In addition to helping
governmental entities and developers meet their infrastructure and financing needs, Jonathan
assists governmental bodies, nonprofit corporations and entities that contract with governmental
bodies with respect to Public Information Act issues.

In addition to his experience in private practice, Jonathan served as deputy attorney general for
legal counsel at the Texas Office of the Attorney General, 2008 2010. In this role, he acted as
counsel to the attorney general and supervised the Office of the Attorney General's non litigation
civil legal divisions, including the agency's Public Finance Division, Opinion Committee, General
Counsel Division and Open Records Division. While with the Office of the Attorney General,
Jonathan frequently testified before and served as a resource to members and committees of the
Texas Legislature on a variety of subjects, including public finance and open government matters.

He also served as chief of the Office of the Attorney General's Public Finance Division, where he
oversaw the division's review and approval of all bonds and similar financial obligations issued by
state agencies, political subdivisions and institutions of higher education, as well as certain
nonprofit corporations created to act on behalf of political subdivisions.

Victoria N. Ozimek

Partner | Austin
T: +1.512.542.2103••F: +1.800.404.3970
E: victoria.ozimek@bracewell.com

Victoria Ozimek offers legal advice to clients regarding all aspects of tax advantaged obligations,
from vetting the tax issues on proposed financing structures to assisting issuers with post issuance
compliance matters such as remedial actions and private business use analyses. In addition to
traditional state and local government financings, Victoria has worked on transactions for the
financing of multifamily and single family housing, universities and colleges, charter schools,
airports and seaports, and water facilities. She has also acted as special tax counsel to a number of
issuers in situations where an issuer's regular counsel may not be in a position to provide the
specific tax experience needed.

In addition to advising clients regarding the structuring of transactions, Victoria has assisted issuers
with responding to examinations of obligations by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and, if
necessary, negotiating with the IRS regarding any identified issues. She has also advised issuers
regarding the IRS's Voluntary Closing Agreement Program. When needed, Victoria has worked with
clients to secure private letter rulings and other guidance from the IRS regarding the tax effect of a
proposed action.



Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Cantu Law Company, and Bracewell LLP 10

3. Team Leaders: Richard Cantu, Luis Cardenas & Blakely Fernandez
The Firms propose to continue the shared responsibility of Co Team Leaders between Richard Cantu, Luis Cardenas and
Blakely Fernandez. These attorneys have proven their ability to serve the Authority in a seamless fashion, maintaining
communication and keeping each other apprised of issues related to the Authority. Richard, Luis and Blakely will continue
to be available to the Authority 24 hours a day, seven days a week. Their collective knowledge of the Authority’s Projects
and history will ensure efficient and effective representation of the Authority’s interests.

Richard has been practicing real estate law in the Rio Grande Valley for over 17 years. He has represented the Authority
since 2015. Richard’s experience includes right of way acquisition, utility relocation, condemnation, open meetings, and
governance.

Luis has represented public and non profit entities in Texas for over 20 years. Luis has represented the Authority since
2015. Luis’s experience includes condemnation, procurement, open meetings, public information, and public contracting.
He is a trusted advisor to public and private clients throughout South Texas.

Blakely has been representing transportation interests in Texas since 2003. She has served as bond and disclosure counsel
to the Texas Department of Transportation, underwriters counsel for Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority financings,
general counsel to the Authority and the Alamo Regional Mobility Authority, general counsel to the Capital Area
Metropolitan Transit Authority, general counsel to the capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization, special counsel to
VIA Transit Authority, and has represented a variety of private companies in developing infrastructure projects and
negotiating/managing infrastructure and financing contracts.

Blakely Fernandez specializes in administrative and public law including government contracting, procurement, economic
development and project finance. Blakely has worked directly for public entities, including the City of San Antonio and the
State of Hawaii; she has also held elected office as a Trustee for the Alamo Community College District.

Blakely has a strong focus in ethics and compliance. In 2002, she founded the Annual Ethics Forum hosted by the St.
Mary’s Law Journal (now in its 21st year). More recently, she produced a comprehensive Ethics and Compliance Manual
and Training Program for mobility authorities. She regularly advises clients on campaign finance and related (gifts, trips
and entertainment) laws.

Blakely has developed procurement strategies and processes for housing, transportation, water, athletic venues, and
other facilities. She has been involved in the forefront of Texas procurement projects using alternative delivery
mechanisms, including design build, construction manager at risk, pass through financing, value engineering change
proposals, take or pay contracts, and public private partnerships. She has delivered presentations and “best practices”
guides on Texas procurement law to industry trade groups and governmental clients.

In 2013, Blakely (in conjunction with engineering firm partners) developed the Eagle Ford Shale Best Practices Handbook
for the San Antonio River Authority to assist local governments with best practices related to development regulation (the
handbook can be found here: https://www.sara tx.org/wp content/uploads/2015/04/Eagle Ford
Shale_Best_Practices_Handbook.pdf). As Trustee for the Alamo College District, Blakely oversaw the procurement,
selection and contracting of the first P3 community college housing project in Texas. More recently, Blakely worked with
the City of El Paso, Texas’s procurement team and its City Attorney’s office to draft procurements and policies for the
City’s large scale, high profile projects.

4. HCRMA Proposed Team
If the Firms are selected as the Authority’s co legal counsel, Richard Cantu, Luis Cardenas and Blakely Fernandez will serve
as the Co Team Leaders for the Authority’s legal matters, continuing to focus on client needs and approaching their
relationship with the Authority as a partnership.

The Team leaders propose to continue jointly representing the Authority, with Richard and Luis maintaining the active
local role and Blakely and the Bracewell firm providing support on larger projects or specific issues, including
procurement, large contracts, regulatory compliance, etc. Richard and Luis will continue to staff committee and other
local meetings, while Blakely will continue to be available on an as requested basis. Together, the Team will prepare any
training the Authority requests. Blakely will take the lead on contract matters, TxDOT and FHWA matters, environmental
issues, design build/concession and other alternative delivery matters, transportation policy, and legislation. Richard and
Luis will take the lead on open government, real estate, condemnation/eminent domain, purchasing, and litigation. In
addition to the Team Leaders, a team of Bracewell lawyers is available to assist the Authority on an as need basis.



Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Cantu Law Company, and Bracewell LLP 11

Lawyer / Education Role Years of
Experience

Richard Cantu, Cantu
Texas Southern University Thurgood Marshall School of Law –
1996

Co Team Leader; Committee and Local
Meetings, Training, Open Government, Real
Estate, Condemnation/Eminent Domain,
Purchasing, and Litigation

27

Luis Cardenas, E & C
University of Houston Law, J.D. – 1997
University of Texas, B.A. – 1993

Co Team Leader; Committee and Local
Meetings, Training, Open Government, Real
Estate, Condemnation/Eminent Domain,
Purchasing, and Litigation

27

Blakely Fernandez, Bracewell
St. Mary's University School of Law, J.D. – 2002 summa cum laude
St. Mary's University, M.A. – 1998
Pepperdine University, B.A. – 1991

Co Team Leader; Special Projects, Contract
Matters, TxDOT and FHWA Matters,
Environmental Issues, Design build/Concession
Matters, Transportation Policy, and Legislation

22

Sara Burgin, Bracewell
University of Houston Law Center, J.D. – 1982 with honors
Texas A&M University, M.S. – 1977
The University of Texas at Austin, B.A. – 1973

Environmental Matters 42

Steve Benesh, Bracewell
The University of Texas School of Law, J.D. – 1987
The University of Texas at Austin, Bachelor of Business
Administration – 1984

Litigation, Construction Law 36

Amber K. Dodds, Bracewell
The University of Texas School of Law, J.D. – 2012 with honors
Boston University, M.A. – 2008 summa cum laude
Trinity University, B.A. – 2006 summa cum laude, Phi Beta Kappa

Labor and Employment 12

5. Experience with Governmental Entities
a. Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP

Below is representational list of entities Luis Cardenas has represented with regard to public law:

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director | 956 402 4762

Legal counsel (2015 – current)

City of Edinburg, Texas
Ponciano Longoria, City Engineer | 956 388 8210

Conducted right of way acquisition and condemnation
litigation for the City of Edinburg

City of La Joya, Texas
Mike Alaniz, City Manager | 956 581 7095

Conducted annexation litigation and advised City of La Joya
regarding annexation, extraterritorial jurisdiction issues,
taxation, and utility services

Hidalgo County Irrigation District No. 5
Archie Miles | 956 565 1058

Advised District regarding condemnation issues and
conducted condemnation litigation, including Texas Public
Utilities Commission hearings and proceedings

Delta Lake Irrigation District
Board of Directors | 956 262 2101

Advised board of directors regarding water rights,
condemnation and taxation issues

b. Cantu Law Company

Below is representational list of entities Richard Cantu has represented with regard to public law:

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director | 956 402 4762

Legal counsel (2015 – current)

City of Pharr, Texas
Dr. Jonathan Flores, City Manager | 956 402 4000

Legal Counsel for Real Estate Matters, including
conveyances and condemnation (2012 current)



Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Cantu Law Company, and Bracewell LLP 12

City of Edinburg, Texas
Ponciano Longoria, City Engineer | 956 388 8210

Conducted right of way acquisition and condemnation
litigation (2016 2017)

City of La Joya. Texas
Mike Alaniz, City Manager | 956 581 7095

Legal Counsel for Real Estate Matters (2015 2017)

City of Donna, Texas
Chanel Borrego, MPA, Planning Director | 956 464 6917

Legal Counsel for Real Estate Matters (2018 2019)

c. Bracewell LLP

Bracewell’s public law attorneys have the experience and expertise to provide advice in the unique public environment in
which local governments operate and make decisions. Bracewell represents a wide range of public entities and public
officials, including regional mobility authorities, public transportation entities, metropolitan planning organizations, state
agencies, municipalities, counties, school districts, community college districts, hospital districts and health care systems,
universities, ports, major airport systems, special districts, and non profit corporations funded by political subdivisions.
We also represent private companies in their dealings with public bodies.

We represent clients in federal, state and local general law in connection with governmental entities including, but not
limited to, competitive procurement procedures, the Texas Transportation Code, Texas Local Government Code, the
Texas Public Information Act and Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Tort Claims Act, ethics and governance, as well as a
wide spectrum of matters including:

 federal, state and local procurement and contracting
issues

 elections and campaign finance law
 Public Funds Investment Act
 real estate and eminent domain proceedings
 environmental issues and clearance

 governance and ethics compliance and training
 Public Information Act and Open Meetings

requirements and issues
 constitutional law and civil rights issues
 public safety and cybersecurity issues
 municipal bonds and public finance

With over 30 lawyers, our public law group is one of the largest public law practices in the nation and in Texas having
been working with public entities for the past 50 years. Our representation includes all aspects of governmental
representations, from serving as outside general counsel to governmental entities to serving as special counsel in the
areas in of procurement contracting, economic development, tax, bonds, governance, employment law, litigation, and
other areas as needed. We also regularly draft legislation and represent our public clients before the Texas Legislature,
and its committees, and US Congress, and its committees.

The Bracewell public law team proposed for the Authority includes Blakely Fernandez who, as a former elected official,
has an acute understanding of public law issues from the client, as well as the legal, perspective. Lawyers in Bracewell’s
public law practice group are highly experienced in both state and constitutional law, specifically as they relate to public
law matters, open meetings, open records and related regulatory requirements. This broad, diverse experience
representing all sorts of public entities enables us to provide focused, effective guidance in all areas of public law that may
arise from time to time. The public law group has a vibrant special district practice serving as general counsel to these
entities. Based on this representation, the firm has developed considerable knowledge in navigating the unique legal and
regulatory framework applicable to governmental entities, including sovereign immunity, annual appropriation
requirements, indemnity limitations, competitive procurement procedures, Texas Public Funds Investment Act, Texas
Public Information Act and Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Tort Claims Act, as well as ethics and governance.

The Bracewell public law team also includes prominent former city attorney, Jane Macon. Jane has substantial experience
and is a leader in the public law arena, respecting the balance of legal, business and sometimes political implications in
her counsel to public clients. Additionally, three Bracewell partners have firsthand experience at the Office of the
Attorney General and offer unique insights into the office’s review process for bond transactions as well as the opinions
committee process.

With regard to transportation matters, our public law team understands the statutory, regulatory and financial
requirements for regional mobility authorities in Texas, including the Texas Transportation Code, TxDOT rules, FHWA rules
and guidelines, the Texas Public Funds Investment Act, the Texas Public Information Act, the Texas Open Meetings Act,
and ethics filings for public officials.



Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Cantu Law Company, and Bracewell LLP 13

Developing Manuals and Handbooks. Although attorney legal advice and product is most often structured in the form of
memoranda and opinion letters, the Bracewell public law team has developed manual, handbooks, and best practices
guides for our clients, along with appropriate training manuals and presentations. The most widely distributed example of
this type of effort is the San Antonio River Authority’s Best Practices Handbook for the Eagle Ford Shale, which covers
regulatory and contracting guidelines for local governments managing shale development. This handbook can be found
at: https://www.sara tx.org/wp content/uploads/2015/04/Eagle Ford Shale_Best_Practices_Handbook.pdf.

Our team also developed the Ethics and Compliance Manual for the Authority, addressing a variety of best practices in the
areas of contracting, conflicts, governance, and personnel matters. This manual has been used by other mobility
authorities and local governments as a guide for compliance under local, state, and federal laws and regulations. In
addition to creating manuals, Bracewell attorneys conduct training workshops covering topics such as conflicts of interest,
procurements, misuse of government property, nepotism, bribery and gifts, qualifications for office and open
government.

Internal Investigations. In an environment of increased regulatory vigilance and enhanced financial incentives to
whistleblowers, public entities must proactively ensure compliance with applicable statutes and regulations. Bracewell’s
lawyers routinely conduct internal investigations for public entities to contain and resolve issues such as governance
practices and procedures, duties and responsibilities of officials, codes of conduct, and, in the private sector, compliance
with Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and financial exchange regulations, as well as the Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act (FCPA).

Our team has been hired by governmental entities to conduct investigations involving a myriad of allegations, including
financial impropriety, misappropriation of public funds, abuse of office/authority and related matters. Our lawyers have
also handled terminations and other complex and sensitive personnel matters, including the often resulting wrongful
termination litigation. On multiple occasions, Bracewell lawyers have investigated alleged financial improprieties, official
misuse and misappropriation of public funds by governmental entities. Our investigations have resulted in a full report to
the governing body, including a recommendation for terminating appropriate leadership parties.

Experience with Comparable Sized Governmental Organizations. Our lawyers’ experience with public and private entities
is comprehensive, diverse, and reputable. Below is representational list of entities our team has represented with regard
to public law:

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
2005 – current
Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director | 956 402 4762

Procurement advice and counsel; alternative delivery
procurement structure; drafting procurements and
contract documents; governance and ethics compliance

Bexar County, Texas
2013 – current
Honorable Peter Sakai, County Judge | 210 338 1326

Advice on structure of projects and P3s; project
development and finance; bond counsel

Alamo Regional Mobility Authority
2008 – current
Art Rinehardt, County Engineer | 210 335 6782

Transportation finance, disclosure and funding
agreements; bond counsel

Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority
2005 – current
James Bass, Executive Director | 512 996 9778

Transportation finance, disclosure and funding agreements;
bond counsel

University of Texas at San Antonio
Taylor Eighmy, President | 210 458 4101

Advice and counsel on public private partnerships,
alternative delivery and historic preservation (2022 –
current)



Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Cantu Law Company, and Bracewell LLP 14

6. Experience in the Transportation Sector
a. Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP

E & C has represented the Authority in condemnation matters since March of 2015.

a. Cantu Law Company

Cantu has represented the Authority in condemnation matters since March of 2015.

b. Bracewell LLP

Bracewell lawyers have a long history in the transportation sector. As discussed above, Blakely has been representing
transportation interests in Texas since 2003. Her work in this arena has included many “firsts.” She served as bond and
disclosure counsel to the Texas Department of Transportation on the first issues of Mobility Fund bonds, and was on the
underwriting team for Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority initial financing. Her work as general counsel to the
Authority and the Alamo Regional Mobility Authority, includes creating the first County Transportation Reinvestment Zone
in Texas, negotiating one of the early pass through agreements in Texas, working with bond counsel to enter into the first
vehicle registration fee borrowing in the State, participating in the first RMA disparity study, as well as managing a variety
of questions of first impression before the Texas Attorney General and TxDOT. As general counsel to the Capital Area
Metropolitan Planning Organization, Blakely negotiated the first (and only) regional infrastructure fund agreement,
providing significant debt/cost of issuance savings to a regional mobility authority and creating a revolving fund for the
MPO to support local, non tolled projects. In addition to the legal work Blakely performs, she also regularly drafts and
lobbies for legislative solutions to mobility problems.

The Bracewell team combines diverse practice experience and comprehensive bench strength to assist our clients with
issues in transportation and mobility. Our transportation practice group not only focuses on transportation activities, but
also includes logistics providers (including carriers, intermediaries, and other third party logistics providers) as well as
commercial users (manufacturers, retailers, distributors, and other shippers). This broad cross over practice assures our
attorneys are well versed in industry issues from stock and equipment to labor trends to equity investors.

Lawyers at Bracewell have represented a variety of transportation clients in Texas, including:

 Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
 Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT)
 Alamo Regional Mobility Authority
 Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority
 North Texas Tollway Authority
 Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority
 North East Texas Regional Mobility Authority

 VIA Metropolitan Transit
 Dallas Area Rapid Transit (DART)
 Houston METRO
 Grand Parkway Association of Houston
 Austin Bergstrom International Airport
 Dallas Fort Worth International Airport
 Houston Airport System

Bracewell’s attorneys have advised clients on virtually every type and variation of transportation matter, including
construction and professional services contracts, concessions, master trust indentures, TIFIA loans, intermodal
agreements, international bridge projects, pass through agreements, TxDOT agreements, TxDOT advanced funding
agreements, and agreements related to transit, transportation corridors, rail projects, overweight corridors, transit
oriented development, as well as other global services and supply chain agreements, and owner operator agreements.
This comprehensive contracting experience is valued by our clients, who see such experience as a major asset in executing
their transportation strategies.

Additionally, Bracewell is suited to provide government relations services at both the federal and state levels in the areas
of transportation. Blakely Fernandez has been active in drafting and advocating for the transportation legislation before
the Texas legislature. The Bracewell governmental affairs team in Washington, DC regularly represents clients before
FHWA and USDOT.



Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Cantu Law Company, and Bracewell LLP 15

7. Experience in Procurement Law
a. Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP

E & C has advised the HCRMA in procurement matters on an as needed basis.

b. Bracewell LLP

Bracewell lawyers regularly provide counsel with regard to government procurements and contracting. For example, in
our general counsel representation of the Authority, we have advised the Authority on the requirements and merits of
the available delivery and finance mechanisms for large transportation projects, including pass through financing,
comprehensive development agreements, design build, and design bid build. Additionally, we drafted and maintain the
Authority’s procurement and purchasing policies. After exploring the merits of the available delivery options, we advise
the client on the best option for a specific project, and draft the appropriate procurement documents, including selection
criteria and process, and assist in managing the procurements and any policies.

We have advised the City of El Paso, Texas, on available and appropriate procurement methods for the delivery of critical
projects and services, including public/private partnerships (P3) for project development construction manager at risk,
owner’s representative, and program manager/operator for project development. Each of these solicitations was
developed with the client’s unique project goals in mind and utilized innovative approaches to achieving these goals,
including initiating a pre posting industry forum.

Our expertise in procurement law is also beneficial to the private sector, where we frequently represent clients with
regard to solicited and unsolicited proposals for P3s, as well as traditional procurement and government contracting
matters. For developers, this representation has covered everything from federal contracting and disadvantaged business
enterprises opportunities, to structuring urban infill development projects utilizing local and state contracting tools to
maximize flexibility and manage party risk, as well as developing soliciting and unsolicited proposals for public private
partnerships. For service providers and suppliers, our focus is generally on unique local requirements and goals, like small
or minority owned businesses.

8. Experience in Developing Public Infrastructure Projects
a. Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP

E & C has not provided legal counsel related to the development of public infrastructure projects.

b. Bracewell LLP

Bracewell has over 50 experienced lawyers dedicated to infrastructure project development, as well as many experienced
attorneys specializing in a full range of areas necessary to support such work, including public law, finance, tax,
environmental and technology. We understand the pre development process, from building the initial team, to the
preliminary engineering work through final schematics, including the regulatory requirements of environmental clearance
and local, state and federal permitting. With regard to transportation projects, we are also familiar with the TxDOT and
federal rules and processes. We have comprehensive experience in bid response preparation, risk analysis, the structuring
of joint ventures and consortium arrangements, and negotiation of concession agreements, construction contracts,
operations and maintenance and asset management agreements and the supporting contracts that are required for the
construction, ownership and operation of infrastructure projects.

Public Private Partnerships. Bracewell provides representation on projects ranging from transportation to energy to social
infrastructure. P3s for complex transportation projects comprise a significant part of our practice. Our firm has
represented the developer of every successful P3 toll project in Texas. We have developed considerable experience in
navigating the legal and regulatory framework applicable to negotiating with governmental entities, including sovereign
immunity, annual appropriation requirements, indemnity limitations, bidding statutes, and open meetings and open
records acts.

Additionally, the firm represented the Dallas Police and Fire Pension Systems in its post financial close activities to
complete the project and achieve service commencement. This project was named the 2010 North American Bond Deal
of the Year by Project Finance Magazine.



Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Cantu Law Company, and Bracewell LLP 16

Construction and EPC Contracts. Bracewell's construction practice represents major infrastructure developers,
transportation, energy, chemical and manufacturing companies and construction companies. Our firm has particular
strength in the drafting and negotiation of construction and related contracts, including design/build contracts;
engineering, procurement and construction (EPC) contracts and engineering services agreements; and related bid
documentation. We have familiarity with and have advised clients with respect to the prevailing forms of construction
contracts that are used internationally, including the FIDIC contracts and ICE's NEC contract forms.

Infrastructure and Construction. Bracewell’s experience in infrastructure and construction demonstrates expertise in
complex business contracts and public sector contracts. Bracewell has extensive experience in the representation of
governmental entities or other sponsors of investment funds, operating companies and financial institutions in all types of
infrastructure project development, finance, construction and operations. Our public and private infrastructure and
construction projects have included transportation facilities, offshore projects, marine terminals, water supply and
treatment facilities, drainage projects, waste treatment facilities, sports and entertainment venues and a wide variety of
energy projects, including transmission facilities. This is supplemented by our award winning experience on public
infrastructure projects undertaken through concession arrangements or P3s.

9. Conflicts of Interest
We are not aware of any potential conflicts of interest with the Authority that would preclude the Firms from thoroughly
and vigorously representing the Authority. Each of the Firms will immediately disclose to the Authority if any of the firm
are aware of a client or prospective client being averse to the Authority seeking legal services from any firm with regard to
the Authority.



Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Cantu Law Company, and Bracewell LLP 17

B. Rate Proposal
The Firms quite sensitive to the pressure on our clients to control legal expenses and we actively work to keep legal
expenses in line with budget expectations. Cost control starts with working with the Authority to develop a budget and
fee arrangements, based on the scope of services, time line and the circumstances surrounding the particular transaction.

Legal work for the Authority has traditionally been undertaken on an hourly basis. Co team leaders Richard, Luis and
Blakely have both offered the Authority reduced, government rates. Based on market changes for South Texas since that
time, the Firms have significantly increased their standard rates, but have agreed to maintain a government rate based on
the Lower Rio Grande Valley market as follows:

Service Provider Hourly Rate*

Richard Cantu $325
Luis Cardenas $325
Blakely Fernandez $495
E & C Paralegals $75

* Rates for additional lawyers are provided on an as needed basis.

As previously mentioned, Bracewell lawyers are available to assist the Authority on an as need basis as special projects
arise.

As has been their practice, Richard, Luis and Blakely will not charge for add ons, like standard printing, long distance calls,
or travel time. E&C and Cantu have established a flat fee for Board meetings of $150.

Potential fee arrangements we are willing to discuss with the Authority may include one or more of the following options:

 Fixed Fees

 Hourly Fees

 Fees priced on a per bond basis

 Alternative Fee Arrangements

These types of arrangements may be beneficial for specific legal projects.



Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Cantu Law Company, and Bracewell LLP 18

C. Insurance Requirements
Cantu and E & C’s professional insurance meets the minimum requirement of $1,000,000 of coverage. A copy of the firm’s
insurance certificate is on file with HCRMA.

Bracewell’s professional insurance meets the minimum requirement of $1,000,000 of coverage. A copy of the firm’s
insurance certificate is on file with HCRMA.



Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Cantu Law Company, and Bracewell LLP 19

D. DBE/HUB/SBE
Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP is a small, minority owned law firm, but is not a registered DBE/HUB/SBE firm.

The Law Office of Richard A. Cantu, P.C., doing business as Cantu Law Company is a small, minority owned law firm, but is
not a registered DBE/HUB/SBE firm.



ADDENDUM 1 
 

 
HCRMA 

REQUIRED DISCLOSURE AND PROVISIONS 

Section 1. DISCLOSURE OF CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS. Effective January 1, 2006, Chapter 176 of the Texas 
Local Government Code requires that any supplier or person doing business with a local government entity disclose 
in the Questionnaire Form CIQ, the supplier or person’s affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict 
of interest with a local government entity. By law, this questionnaire must be filed with the Records Administrator of 
the HCRMA not later than the 7th business day after the date the supplier or person becomes aware of facts that require 
the statement to be filed. See Section 176.006, Local Government Code. A person commits an offense if the person 
violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor. 

 
Section 2. ANTI-BOYCOTT VERIFICATION. Pursuant to Section 2271.002, Texas Government Code, to the extent 
this Agreement is a contract for goods or services, Contractor hereby represents that it and its parent company, wholly- 
or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, do not Boycott Israel and, subject to or as otherwise 
required by applicable Federal law, Contractor agrees not to Boycott Israel during the term of this Agreement. For 
purposes of this Section, "Boycott Israel" shall have the meaning given such term in Section 808.001, Texas 
Government Code. Contractor understands "affiliate" for this Section 4.07 to mean an entity that controls, is controlled 
by, or is under common control with Contractor and exists to make a profit. 

 
Section 3. PROHIBITION ON CONTRACTS WITH COMPANIES BOYCOTTING CERTAIN ENERGY 
COMPANIES. Pursuant to Section 2274.002, Texas Government Code, to the extent this Agreement is a contract for 
goods or services, Contractor hereby represents that it and its parent company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, 
and other affiliates, does not boycott energy companies, and will not boycott energy companies during the term of the 
contract. For purposes of this Section, "Boycott Energy Company" shall have the meaning given such term in Section 
809.001, Texas Government Code. 

Section 4. PROHIBITION ON CONTRACTS WITH COMPANIES THAT DISCRIMINATE AGAINST FIREARM 
AND AMMUNITION INDUSTRIES. Pursuant to Section 2274.003, Texas Government Code, to the extent this 
Agreement is a contract for goods or services, Contractor hereby represents that it and its parent company, wholly- or 
majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that 
discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and will not discriminate during the term of the 
contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. For purposes of this Section, "discriminate against a 
firearm entity or firearm trade association" shall have the meaning given such term in Section 2274.001., Texas 
Government Code. 

 
Section 5. PROHIBITION ON CONTRACTS WITH CERTAIN COMPANIES. Contractor and the person or persons 
executing the contract or contract amendment on behalf of Contractor, or representing themselves as executing the 
contract or contract amendment on behalf of Contractor (collectively, the “Signing Entities”), hereby acknowledge 
that (i) the Signing Entities do not engage in business with Iran, Sudan or any foreign terrorist organization and (ii) 
the Signing Entities are not named on a list prepared and maintained by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts 
under Section 2252.153 or Section 2270.0201, Texas Government Code, and posted on any of the following pages of 
the Comptroller’s website: 

 https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/sudan list.pdf

 https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/iran list.pdf

 https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/fto list.pdf

CONTRACTOR:   

 
By:   Date:   

 
 

Name:   Title:   

February 2, 2024 

Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP 

Luis Cárdenas 
Partner 

2-16-24 





February 2, 2024 

HCRMA 
REQUIRED DISCLOSURE AND PROVISIONS 

Section 1. DISCLOSURE OF CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS. Effective January 1, 2006, Chapter 176 of the Texas 
Local Government Code requires that any supplier or person doing business with a local government entity disclose 
in the Questionnaire Form CIQ, the supplier or person’s affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict 
of interest with a local government entity. By law, this questionnaire must be filed with the Records Administrator of 
the HCRMA not later than the 7th business day after the date the supplier or person becomes aware of facts that require 
the statement to be filed. See Section 176.006, Local Government Code. A person commits an offense if the person 
violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.  

Section 2. ANTI-BOYCOTT VERIFICATION. Pursuant to Section 2271.002, Texas Government Code, to the extent 
this Agreement is a contract for goods or services, Contractor hereby represents that it and its parent company, wholly- 
or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, do not Boycott Israel and, subject to or as otherwise 
required by applicable Federal law, Contractor agrees not to Boycott Israel during the term of this Agreement. For 
purposes of this Section, "Boycott Israel" shall have the meaning given such term in Section 808.001, Texas 
Government Code. Contractor understands "affiliate" for this Section 4.07 to mean an entity that controls, is controlled 
by, or is under common control with Contractor and exists to make a profit. 

Section 3. PROHIBITION ON CONTRACTS WITH COMPANIES BOYCOTTING CERTAIN ENERGY 
COMPANIES. Pursuant to Section 2274.002, Texas Government Code, to the extent this Agreement is a contract for 
goods or services, Contractor hereby represents that it and its parent company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, 
and other affiliates, does not boycott energy companies, and will not boycott energy companies during the term of the 
contract. For purposes of this Section, "Boycott Energy Company" shall have the meaning given such term in Section 
809.001, Texas Government Code. 

Section 4. PROHIBITION ON CONTRACTS WITH COMPANIES THAT DISCRIMINATE AGAINST FIREARM 
AND AMMUNITION INDUSTRIES. Pursuant to Section 2274.003, Texas Government Code, to the extent this 
Agreement is a contract for goods or services, Contractor hereby represents that it and its parent company, wholly- or 
majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that 
discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and will not discriminate during the term of the 
contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. For purposes of this Section, "discriminate against a 
firearm entity or firearm trade association" shall have the meaning given such term in Section 2274.001., Texas 
Government Code. 

Section 5. PROHIBITION ON CONTRACTS WITH CERTAIN COMPANIES. Contractor and the person or persons 
executing the contract or contract amendment on behalf of Contractor, or representing themselves as executing the 
contract or contract amendment on behalf of Contractor (collectively, the “Signing Entities”), hereby acknowledge 
that (i) the Signing Entities do not engage in business with Iran, Sudan or any foreign terrorist organization and (ii) 
the Signing Entities are not named on a list prepared and maintained by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts 
under Section 2252.153 or Section 2270.0201, Texas Government Code, and posted on any of the following pages of 
the Comptroller’s website: 

https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/sudan-list.pdf

https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/iran-list.pdf

https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/fto-list.pdf

CONTRACTOR: 

By: Date: 

Name: Title: 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 3B 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     3B                    

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           03/19/24                    
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        03/26/24  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2024-20 – APPROVAL OF CONTRACT WITH PLAINSCAPITAL 

BANK, FOR BANKING DEPOSITORY SERVICES FOR THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL 
MOBILITY AUTHORITY.            

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and Approval of contract with PlainsCapital Bank, for banking depository services 

to the HCRMA.            
   
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2024-20 – Approval of contract with   

PlainsCapital Bank, for banking depository services to the Hidalgo County Regional  
Mobility Authority, as presented.            

 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X  None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved       _   None 
 
11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X   None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X   None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 2024-20 

AWARD OF CONTRACT TO SINGLE RESPONDENT, PLAINSCAPITAL BANK, TO THE 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR BANKING DEPOSITORY SERVICES FOR 

THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 26th day of March, 2024 by the Board of Director of the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the “Board”); is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority was created by Order of Hidalgo County (the “County”) dated 
October 26, 2004; Petition of the County dated April 21, 2005; and a Minute Order of the Texas 
Transportation Commission (the “Commission”) dated November 17, 2005, pursuant to 
provisions under the Act the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Authority has been constituted in accordance 
with the Act to address mobility issues in and around Hidalgo County; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority requires banking depository services to conduct day to day 
business; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority solicited Request for Proposals for Banking Depository 
Services; and 

WHEREAS, on March 1, 2024, the Authority received a single response to the Request 
for Proposals for Banking Depository Services; and 

WHEREAS, staff is requesting award of contract to the single respondent, PlainsCapital 
Bank, for Banking Depository Services for the Authority;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR OF THE 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 

Section 2. The Board hereby awards a Professional Service Agreement for Banking 
Depository Services to PlainsCapital Bank for the Hidalgo County Regional 
Mobility Authority. 

Section 3. The Board hereby authorizes the Executive Director to execute the Professional 
Service Agreement with PlainsCapital Bank for Banking Depository Services. 

**** 



PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY AT A 
REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 26th day of March , 2024, at which 
meeting a quorum was present. 

S. David Deanda, Chairman

Attest: 

Juan Carlos Del Ángel, Secretary/Treasurer 



 

Memorandum 
To: S. David Deanda, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: March 19, 2024 

Re: Resolution 2024-20- Award of Contract with PlainsCapital Bank for Banking 
Depository Services to the HCRMA  

Background 
The Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority solicited Request for Proposals (RFPs) for Banking 
Depository Services.  RFPs were available for download through the HCRMA website.   
 
On March 1, 2024, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA) received a single response 
to the formal solicitation for Request for Proposals for Banking Depository Services.   
 
Goal 
In designating a bank depository, the primary concerns are safety, liquidity, and yield, as well as, an 
efficient and effective technology for effecting financial transactions.  
 
Options 
The Board of Directors may opt to not to approve the contract and request re-solicitation of the Request 
for Proposals. 
 
Recommendation 
Based on review by this office, approval of Resolution 2024-20 – Award of Contract to PlainsCapital 
Bank for banking depository services is recommended. 
 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise. 
 
 
 

 





TABLE OF CONTENTS

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
1. Executive Summary

2. Proposal  

A) attachment A Exhibit I CIQ Form
B) attachment B Proforma Statement
C) attachment C Sample Bank Depository Contract
D) attachment D Insured Cash Sweep Service Description

3. References

4. Treasury Management Terms and Conditions

5. PlainsCapital Bank Locations 

6. PlainsCapital Primary Contacts



March 1, 2024

Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
203 West Newcombe Avenue
Pharr, Texas 78577

RE: Request for Proposals for Banking Depository Services – HCRMA – 2024-02

Dear Mr. Rodriguez,

PlainsCapital Bank (PCB) is honored to be given the opportunity to submit a bid for the Hidalgo 
County Regional Mobility Authority Depository Contract.  Our goal is to exceed your 
expectations and look forward to continuing a 5-year partnership.

PlainsCapital Bank has been a Texas banking tradition since 1988. Founded in Lubbock with one 
branch, $160 million in deposits, and a lot of entrepreneurial spirit, we’ve grown to become the 
eighth-largest, best bank in Texas with over $13.7 billion in assets as of March 31, 2023, with 59 
branches in all major markets across the state. Headquartered in Dallas, PlainsCapital Bank now 
has approximately 1,050 employees and provides a full suite of banking services including
commercial banking and lending, treasury management products and services, personal and private 
banking, and trust and wealth management services. Our strength and momentum are powered by 
an unrelenting commitment to delivering highly personalized, customer-focused relationship 
banking. 

Our leadership teams are Texas natives with over 30 years of tenure with our Bank who have lived 
their entire lives in the communities we serve. We have a long history of partnering with 100+ 
public entities, large and small, in all the markets we serve. We have specialized expertise in public 
funds, liquidity and investing services to meet all your financial needs. 

Per the Bid Notice and directives contained in the Bid Form itself, we confirm all objectives and 
requirements have been met as specified in this proposal; specifically, the Minimum Qualifications 
for Proposing Institutions. PlainsCapital Bank confirms the proposed bid is valid for 120 days 
from the submission date. Below, please find some of the excerpts of the complete bid packet 
attached. 

Rates
PlainsCapital Bank is proposing an account structure of non-interest bearing, analyzed accounts in 
conjunction with the use of an Insured Cash Sweep (ICS). Analyzed accounts will receive an 
earnings credit of 5.25% on the average daily collected balance and used to offset the cost of 
services. The Earnings Credit Rate (ECR) is based on the Lower End of the Fed Fund Target Rate. 
Bank offers HCRMA non-interest-bearing transaction accounts up to an aggregate maximum 
collateral of $10,000,000 with no minimum balance requirements. The ICS interest rate is 5.15% 
and will be based on the Lower End of the Fed Fund Target Rate less 0.10 basis points.





1 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR 

BANKING DEPOSITORY SERVICES – 2024-02 

The Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (“HCRMA”) is a governmental entity seeking a 
qualified institution for banking depository services. Depository services include those tasks and 
responsibilities associated with the collection and disbursement of the HCRMA’s money, provision of 
timely and reader-friendly reports, implementation of security measures to protect and assist the 
HCRMA with its fiduciary responsibilities with respect to financial assets and provision of cash 
management techniques, as well as, other financial services that may include, but not be limited to, 
custodial, safekeeping, trust, escrow, commercial services, and on-line computer services. 

 
This Request for Proposal (“RFP”) represents a competitive process for qualified banks and credit unions 
to provide depository services. The process of competitive negotiations being used should not be 
confused with competitive sealed bidding where goods and services can be precisely described and price 
is generally the determining factor. This competitive RFP will provide the HCRMA with the flexibility to 
negotiate with firms the terms and conditions that are mutually agreeable to all parties. The HCRMA will 
consider the terms and conditions for the performance of depository services, including the type and cost 
of services to be provided, and will select that institution offering a proposal deemed most advantageous 
to the HCRMA. The HCRMA intends to enter into contract negotiations with the selected financial 
institution. These negotiations could include any aspect of services and fees. If a contract is not finalized 
in a reasonable period of time, the HCRMA will open negotiations with the next ranked firm. Final 
selection and approval is subject to HCRMA Board approval. 

The contract period shall be for five (5) years. 

The HCRMA Board of Directors reserves the right to reject in part or in whole any or all responses, waive 
minor technicalities, and select the financial institution which best serves the interests of the HCRMA. 
Late responses will not be accepted. 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES: 

 
General Services 
The HCRMA requires a variety of banking/financial services. Services required by the HCRMA may fall 
within the domain of the Depository or may be provided by institutions outside of the Depository 
Contract. The HCRMA retains the right to select and utilize those services deemed most appropriate to be 
provided by a depository and shall, within the scope of the law, solicit other banking/financial services as 
the HCRMA determines will best satisfy the needs of, and be most advantageous to, the HCRMA. The 
primary Depository services pertain to the secure processing of the HCRMA’s collections and 
disbursements, and provision of timely and reader-friendly reports. 

Compliant with the HCRMA’s fiduciary responsibilities is the utilization of technological security 
mechanisms and processes to safeguard the HCRMA’s financial resources. The HCRMA intends to 
review additional and/or modified security measures through the Depository to protect the HCRMA’s 
financial resources from fraudulent acts. 

Other services required by the HCRMA include, but are not limited to custodial, safekeeping, trust, 
escrow, and on-line services, as well as cash management techniques to enhance the HCRMA’s short- 
term investment earnings options. 



2 
 

SPECIFIC SERVICES 
The HCRMA’s required Depository Services include: 

 Collection services (currency and checks, and transfer) 
 Disbursement services (checks, transfers) 
 Account reconciliation 
 Reports (electronic and hardcopy) 
 Cash management 
 Online computer capability 
 Financial safeguards 

ADDITIONAL/ PREFERRED SERVICES 
 Corporate trust services 
 Training 
 Safekeeping/ storage services 
 Credit Card Services 

 
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS FOR PROPOSING INSTITUTIONS 
The minimum qualifications required of an institution to provide depository services to the HCRMA, 
hereinafter referred to as “Respondents” or “Depository Respondents”, are listed below. Respondents 
submitting proposals to provide Depository Services must provide a letter certifying that the institution 
satisfies the qualifications listed below. Such Respondents must also include documentary evidence of 
qualification, where appropriate. 

 
 The financial institution providing Depository Services must be a bank or financial institution that 

provides Depository Services for governmental entities that has its main office or branch office in 
the State of Texas. 

 The financial institution must have banking facilities within Hidalgo County. 
 The financial institution’s local deposits must be equal to or greater than $250,000,000, as shown 

on the latest published quarterly financial statement. 
 The financial institution’s combined capital and surplus must be equal to or greater than 

$50,000,000 and it must be in good financial standing. 
 The financial institution must be a member of the Federal Reserve System. 
 The financial institution must be a member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) 

or have other federal insurance coverage. Deposits must be fully secured by a combination of 
FDIC Insurance or other federal insurance coverage and permitted securities as provided for in 
the Texas Public Finances Collateral Act equal to a value of 105% of the funds being secured. 

 No outstanding or unsatisfied financial obligation to the HCRMA or Hidalgo County. 
 The financial institution must have a check fraud protection system. 

PlainsCapital Bank confirms certification to the minimum qualifications listed above.  Signed 
certification has been provided in Tab 1. 

CONDITIONS TO BE SATISFIED BY THE DEPOSITORY 
The selected Depository shall satisfy, at all times, the conditions listed below: 

 Maintain the HCRMA’s funds covered by the Depository Services contract. 
 Perform all duties and obligations required of the Depository by law and under the depository 

contract. 
 Pay, upon presentation, all checks drawn and properly payable on a demand deposit account with 

the Depository. 
 Pay all transfers properly payable as directed by a designated officer. 



3 
 

 Provide and maintain security at a level equal to at least 105% of the value on the amount of 
deposits, plus accrued interest, less FDIC coverage, or other federal insurance coverage. 

 PlainsCapital Bank confirms agreement. 
 

 
RESPONSES TO THE RFP SHALL INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION: 

 
PROPOSAL CONTENT 
Respondents must provide a complete answer to all questions set forth in this RFP. Responses to the 
questions that follow will be used by the Depository Selection Committee to evaluate the proposals to 
provide depository services. Each question should be specifically addressed. 

1. Include the following information related to your firm: 
a. Name and address 

       PlainsCapital Bank 
       100 E. Nolana Loop 
       Pharr, TX.78577 

 
b. Location of national headquarters 

 PlainsCapital Corporation 
 6565 Hillcrest Avenue 
 Dallas, TX  75205 
               
 Parent Holding Company 
 Hilltop Holdings Inc.  
 6565 Hillcrest Avenue 
 Dallas, TX  75205 
 

c. History including date founded 
 OUR PARENT COMPANY 
 PlainsCapital Bank is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hilltop Holdings Inc. (NYSE: HTH), a 

well-capitalized, publicly traded diversified financial holding company based in Dallas with a 
national footprint. Hilltop was ranked No. 63 in Forbes’ 2023 list of America’s 100 Best 
Banks and ranked No. 8 in Texas, based on growth, credit quality, and profitability. Hilltop’s 
approximately 29% insider ownership drives the company’s long-term decision making and 
appropriate risk management strategies, while providing meaningful alignment between the 
interests of our management, board of directors, and stockholders.  

 
 Hilltop’s other subsidiaries include HilltopSecurities (municipal investment banking) and 

PrimeLending (residential mortgage origination). Together, the Hilltop family of companies 
employ approximately 4,100 people in approximately 355 locations in 47 states. 

 
 PlainsCapital Bank was founded in 1988.  Since then, we’ve grown to become the eighth-

largest Texas based bank with over $13.7 billion in deposits as of March 31, 2023, and 59 
locations throughout the state. Our leadership teams have over 30 years of tenure with our 
Bank who have lived their entire lives in the communities we serve. We have a long history 
of partnering with 100+ public entities, large and small, in all of the markets we serve to help 
move our communities forward. We have specialized expertise in public banking, treasury 
management, and liquidity and investing services to meet all your financial needs.   

 
 At PlainsCapital Bank and Hilltop Securities Inc., we understand the challenges you face 



4 
 

every day. Our bankers work to deliver value-added advice and guidance to help solve the 
complex issues that public entities must address. Our local banking teams bring broad market 
knowledge with national insights to entities such as Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority (the “HCRMA”). We partner with you to advance your community-because it’s our 
community, too. 
 

d. Brief description of firm including the following: 
i. Number of branches and their locations in Hidalgo County 

PlainsCapital Bank has a total of 7 branches in the Hidalgo County area. For locations, 
please see map on Tab 5. 
 

ii. Number of branches located in the State of Texas 
  In the State of Texas, PlainsCapital Bank has a total of 59 branches. 

 
iii. Number of branches located nationally 

 Although PlainsCapital Bank is Texas based, the Hilltop Holdings family of companies 
has a significant national footprint with approximately 355 branch and office locations in 
47 states and the District of Columbia with approximately 4,900 employees. Hilltop also 
has a substantial presence in Texas with approximately 90 branches and office locations 
across the state. 

 
Hilltop’s concentration of locations and customers in Texas gives it strong roots from 
which to grow PlainsCapital Bank, PrimeLending, and HilltopSecurities. Likewise, 
Hilltop’s nationwide presence provides diversification and a broader platform for growth 
outside its core Texas market. 

 
2. Include the following information regarding the personnel that would be assigned to the HCRMA’s 

account: 
a. Name, title, address 

 Name Larry Gonzalez ___________________  

 Title Upper Rio Grande Valley Market ______  

 Address 100 E. Nolana Pharr, TX. 78577 ____  

 Telephone # 956-283-2255 _______________  

 Fax # 956-283-2257 _____________________  

   Email larry.gonzalez@plainscapital.com 
 

b. Years of applicable experience 
Mr. Gonzalez has over 38 years of banking experience. 
 

c. Brief resume 
Larry Gonzalez, Market President Upper Rio Grande Valley, has over 38 years of 
commercial banking experience serving the Starr County and Hidalgo County markets. 
Larry is responsible for the management and growth of PlainsCapital Bank’s Upper Rio 
Grande Valley market, cultivating profitable relationships, ensuring operational 
compliance, actively involved in loan portfolio management, strategic execution and risk 
management, and growing revenue for PlainsCapital Bank. He has extensive experience 
in commercial real estate and specializes in gathering and cultivating bilingual client 
relationships. Larry efforts are also focused on new economic development in the Rio 
Grande Valley and engaging in farm and ranch management as well as real estate 



5 
 

investing.  Larry joined PlainsCapital Bank (then First National Bank of Edinburg) in 
2008 and has served the company in various capacities.  Larry is a graduate of Texas 
A&M University having earned a B.B.A. in Finance.  His current affiliations include 
Starr County Industrial Foundation officer and director, Starr County Historical 
Foundation officer and director, Our Lady of Sorrows Catholic Church member, United 
Way of South Texas director, Rio Grande Valley Partnership director and officer, and 
Edinburg Rotary Club member. 
 

d. Please designate which of these personnel will be the HCRMA’s day-to-day contact. 
The local bank branch will provide daily banking services to the HCRMA. The Public Funds 
group will provide all additional support services including technical, collateral, investment, 
and any other customer needs as requested. VP, Public Funds Officer Roxanna Salas will be 
available as a day-to-day contact. Cell numbers are provided for urgent matters.  
 
Roxanna Salas, VP Public Funds Officer, has over 20 years of experience in handling 
public entities and has focused her knowledge base to help public fund entities with the 
products and services needed to be successful.  Her responsibilities are focused on providing 
day to day support to public fund clients in collateral monitoring, resolving any issues that 
may arise and assist in client training of treasury services.    
 
Dacia A. Salinas, VP Treasury Management Sales Officer, has over 20 years of banking 
experience with a focus on Commercial Banking and Public Funds. Dacia is the local 
Treasury Management Sales Officer for the Rio Grande Valley and alternate liaison for 
Public Funds. Ms. Salinas is an active member in the Edinburg community and supports 
local businesses by participating with the Edinburg Chamber of Commerce and serving as a 
volunteer at Sacred Heart Catholic Church. 
 

   
3. Provide the names of the executive staff responsible for making immediate and important decisions 

concerning the HCRMA account and their availability during normal business hours, after hours, 
and weekends. 

 Name Larry C. Gonzalez _________________  

 Title Market President- Pharr Nolana _______  

 Address 100 E. Nolana Pharr, TX. 78577 ____  

 Telephone # 956-283-2255 _______________  

 Fax # 956-283-2257 _____________________  

       Email larry.gonzalez@plainscapital.com 
 

Mr. Gonzalez is available Monday thru Friday from 8am to 5pm and will provide cell phone 
numbers for urgent matters. 

4. Provide a brief description of Respondent’s capital structure as shown on the latest published 
quarterly financial statement to include: 
a. Total capital $1.6 billion in total capital as of March 31, 2023. 

 
a. Current value of deposits $11.0 billion in deposits as of March 31, 2023. 

 
OUR STRONG CAPITAL POSITION 
PlainsCapital Bank’s conservative management and relationship-driven business model are 



6 
 

designed to foster long-term success and sustained growth. Put simply, we are built to last. 
PlainsCapital Bank and our parent company, Hilltop Holdings Inc., are rated “Investment Grade” 
by three national credit rating agencies. PlainsCapital ended the first quarter of 2023 in an 
extremely strong financial condition. The Bank’s capital, as measured by its Tier 1 Leverage 
Ratio of 10.69%, is well in excess of the minimum regulatory guideline of 5.0% to be well 
capitalized. 
 

 
 
Hilltop Holdings, Inc. Fitch Rating: 
Long-Term IDR      BBB+ 
Short-Term IDR      F2 
Long-Term Foreign Currency IDR    Stable 
Sovereign Long-Term Foreign Currency IDR   Negative 
Viability Rating      bbb+ 
Government Support Rating     ns 
 
Hilltop Holdings, Inc. KBRA Rating: 
Senior Unsecured Debt      A- 
Subordinated Debt      BBB+ 
Short-Term Debt      K2 
Outlook/Watch LTR      Stable 
 
PlainsCapital Bank KBRA Rating: 
Senior Unsecured Debt     A 
Subordinated Debt           A- 
Deposit                             A 
Short-Term Deposit          K1 
Short-Term Debt               K1  
Outlook/Watch LTR          Stable 
 
Annual Audited Financial Statements 
https://ir.hilltop-holdings.com/filings/annual-reports/default.aspx   
  
Call Report (FDIC Certificate Number 17491) 
https://cdr.ffiec.gov/public/ManageFacsimiles.aspx  
 

5. Explain changes, if any that have occurred within Respondent’s firm over the last six (6) 
months or future changes you expect may occur including: 
a. Staffing 
b. Capital 
c. Organizational structure 
d. Other 

Hilltop Holdings Inc. (NYSE: HTH) (“Hilltop”) announced November 30, 2023, that Jerry 



7 
 

Schaffner, President and CEO of Hilltop’s banking subsidiary, PlainsCapital Bank (the 
“Bank”), is retiring on May 1, 2024. At that time, Hilltop President and CEO Jeremy B. Ford 
will become CEO of PlainsCapital Bank. In anticipation of the transition, PlainsCapital Chief 
Operating Officer Brian Heflin has been named President of the Bank, and current Chief 
Administrative Officer Pete Villarreal has been named Chief Operating Officer effective 
immediately. Schaffner will continue to serve on PlainsCapital Bank’s board of directors, and 
Ford will continue to serve as President and CEO of Hilltop and Chairman of PlainsCapital 
Bank following the transition. 
 
With regard to mergers and acquisitions, PlainsCapital has not publicly announced any recent 
or foreseen mergers or acquisitions. Hilltop Holdings seeks to build the premier Texas-based 
diversified financial services holding company through acquisitions and organic growth and 
using PlainsCapital Bank as its platform. 

 
6. Depository Services. Provide a complete description of the services Respondent would provide 

for each of the HCRMA’s depository needs listed below, as well as ideas and suggestions for 
changes or modifications that could be implemented to make the HCRMA’s financial operation 
more effective and efficient. 
a. Collections and disbursements processing. 

Standard Deposit Services 
The Bank will offer all disbursing and deposit services as required by the HCRMA. Incoming 
wires and ACH items are reported and posted in real-time at the time of receipt. Intra-day 
check clearing information is available thru BOS in real-time. Cut off time for same day 
ledger credit at the branch is 6:00pm although, same day credit cannot be guaranteed for high 
volume late deposit drops. The Bank recommends morning delivery to ensure same day 
posting of branch deposits.  Cut off time for same day deposit through Remote Deposit is 
6:00pm. Refer to tab 5 for all PCB Branch Locations within the HCRMA’s proximity. 
 
Standard Disbursement Services 
Bank agrees to pay all HCRMA checks upon presentment according to the Deposit Account 
Agreement and Terms and Conditions. If the payee is presenting a physical check at branch, 
payee must present a valid state issued identification or U.S. Government issued passport or 
Visa.  
 
Refer to following link for PlainsCapital Bank Commercial Deposit Account Agreement and 
Terms and Conditions.  
https://www.plainscapital.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/Commercial-Disclosure-
Brochure-December2023.pdf   
 

b. Account Reconciliation. 
Partial reconciliation is available through BOS and provides check paid details through the 
reconciliation module.  A Paid check report can be created for a specific date or date range, 
for single or multiple accounts and can exported into multiple formats.  Reports that require 
a specified format can be automatically created and delivered via SFTP for ingestion into 
the HCRMA reconciliation system.   
 
Full reconciliation is available through BOS and multiple reports be created:  Issued 
Checks, Outstanding Issued Checks, Daily Checks Issued Summary, Paid Checks, ACH 
Transactions, Stops and Voids, Exception items, Stale Dated Checks, Check Reconciliation 
Summary and Payee Match Report.  Full activity reports, including balance, can be 
exported for view, printing or export; formatted files can also be sent via SFTP.  Files sent 



8 
 

via SFTP require an FTP Transmission setup and additional fees will apply. 
 
Reports can be created through the BOS reconciliation module for viewing, printing or 
exporting in multiple formats anytime; information is based on previous day. Files can be 
exported in standard formats or mapped to HCRMA’s specific file format requirements. 
Paid check images are available through the reconciliation module for viewing and printing.  
Additional reconciliation files are available thru SecureConnect and/or ACH Reporting 
Modules. 
 

c. Cash Management Services. 
 Wire Transfer Services 
 Wire initiation and book transfer transactions can be made through BOS (online banking) or a 

direct request to the Wire Room using PIN verification. Online initiation and monitoring is 
to a future date. Wires 

may be submitted online 24/7 however, must be approved before 5:00pm CST on the 
effective date. Future dated wires that are approved before the effective date are warehoused 
and processed the morning of the effective date. Refer to following link for PlainsCapital 
Bank Commercial Deposit Account Agreement and Terms and Conditions for more details.  

 
 https://www.plainscapital.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/Commercial-Disclosure-

Brochure-December2023.pdf   
 
 https://www.plainscapital.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/2022-PCB-Treasury-

Management-Terms-and-Conditions.pdf    
 
 Dual authorization is not required for wire transactions however, it is available and strongly 

recommended to the HCRMA. Transaction based virtual tokens are required for wire transfer 
transactions only at the approval stage. Templates are available and the HCRMA can require 
approval before use by other users. Real-time wire stages are available through BOS along 
with wire report history available for 90 days. 

 
 The HCRMA will designate a Primary and Secondary Administrator during the onboarding 

process. These Administrators will be responsible for granting access to other HCRMA 
employees. Users may be restricted to initiating only or may have initiation and approval 
access.  A user with both initiation and approval access can only perform one step of the dual 
control wire process. It is also recommended all users with wire approval authority are setup 
with an appropriate wire limit. 

 
 The Bank also utilizes a behavioral software within our wire system, which may place any 

wire meeting certain criteria into a que for further review. HCRMA personnel with access to 
the wire module may receive calls directly from the wire room from time to time to further 
validate a wire before release.  

 
 As a backup method the HCRMA has the option to setup a wire PIN which allows a wire to 

be initiated by an authorized person via phone directly to the Bank’s Wire Room. A HCRMA 
account signer must execute the wire PIN agreement. Wire PIN’s are Bank issued and mailed 
directly to authorized wire PIN approvers.  Dual control and dollar limits are required.  

 
 Further, wires may also be faxed, emailed, or delivered to the branch in the event the system 

is unavailable. Only authorized account signers can submit these requests; voice recordings 
are mandatory, and the wire room will perform a call back procedure to the originator before 



9 
 

releasing any wire(s) submitted via fax or email.  Dual control will not apply.   
 
 Branch or PIN Wire Cutoff: 
 Domestic Outgoing wire initiation and approval must be received before 3:30p.m. 
 International outgoing wire initiation and approval must be received before 3:00p.m. 
 
 Online Wire Cutoff: 
 Note: Domestic Outgoing wires may be submitted online 24/7 thru BOS however, must be 

submitted and approved before 5:00p.m. for same day wire to go out.  All wires (including 
same day and future dated) must be approved by 5:00pm on the day the wire was submitted. 
Any wire not approved before 5:00pm will not be processed and must be resubmitted the 
following day. 

 
 Available funds are used as a basis to release outgoing wires.  Assigned account officer will 

contact the HCRMA if available funds are insufficient to allow movement of funds if 
necessary.  Incoming electronic activity (wires & ACH) will automatically update the 
available balance as these transactions are received. 

 
 
 Positive Pay 
 Positive pay service is available to the HCRMA. Check register files are uploaded through 

BOS in either fixed width or comma delimited format. Required fields are check number, date 
issue, check amount and account number; payee name and void codes are optional. Input is 
available online for manual checks by entering the check information through the BOS 
positive pay module. Dual control is recommended for any user to input manual check issue 
information; separate users should be setup to decision any positive pay exceptions. 

 
 The Bank highly recommends dual control to upload check issue information. Files sent via 

SFTP require an FTP Transmission setup and additional fees will apply. If given edit rights, 
end user can change check records, change payee or issue date, and delete outstanding items 
and/or files. Bank can also assist with purging a file or assist with reloading replacement files.  

 
 The email alert feature for positive pay exceptions is mandatory for all users entitled to the 

positive pay module; text alerts are optional but recommended. Authorized users will receive 
an email at 9:00am CST or optional text notification only when there are exceptions. 
Exceptions are available for review by 9:00am CST with available images; decisions must be 
made by 2:00pm CST.  In the event no decision is submitted prior to cutoff the default 
decision is return. The Bank offers the Positive pay correction feature which allows the user 
to correct exceptions if due to a misread.  

 
 The mobile app can also be utilized to review and decision all exceptions with the same 

capabilities as the desktop version. All “OTC” checks are validated by tellers against the 
positive pay issue file before cashing a check.  Issue files are immediately available for 
validation purposes upon receipt from the HCRMA, no matter the delivery method. The Bank 
will attempt to contact the HCRMA when an OTC check is presented, but related issue 
information is not in the positive pay validation file. 

 
 ACH filters are available and managed through the BOS Positive Pay module, allowing 

pending ACH debits to be reviewed and decisioned online before posting.  Payment rules can 
be setup by the originating ACH company ID to allow those designated by the HCRMA to 
process without review going forward; dollar thresholds per payment rule are optional, and 



10
 

rules can be applied as exceptions are reviewed.  ACH full debit blocks are available and 
would prevent all ACH debits from posting to an account without notification to the 
HCRMA. Exceptions are available for review by 9:00am CST; decisions must be made by 
2:00pm CST. 

 
 Stop Payments 
 Stop payments and stop payment renewals can be submitted online. Paper follow-up 

document is not required. Authorized user will sign onto the online banking with assigned 
credentials, enter the appropriate check information as prompted (check #, date, dollar 
amount, payee, reason for stop), and transmit to the Bank. Renewals will follow the same 
steps. Stop payments are effective for six months from the date of stop payment submission. 
Deadline for same day stop pay is 6:00pm CST. The HCRMA may view all stop payments 
submitted online to track current stop payments; the report will reflect date of stop payment 
submittal, approval, status, check number, account, dollar amount, payee, expiration date 
(optional) and reason for stop payment (optional). The clearing system will verify the check 
status before a stop payment can be processed; there is no limit on the amount of history 
checked. 

 
Positive pay void is another option to return a check in place of a stop pay and renewal.  
Positive pay void is optional but if utilized would present the check as an exception and can 
be decisioned “Return” with a “Payment Stopped” reason. 
 

d. Financial Safeguards. 
 Authorized account signers will designate one or two primary administrators responsible for 

user access to the online profile; the administrator can add other administrators as needed, and 
all have the ability to add and modify other users.  The Bank recommends dual control for 
this feature however, single control is available as well. 

 
 Each user will be required to authenticate at first time login, or from any new computer.  If 

cookies are erased daily, authentication will be required at each login.  Authentication offers a 
one-time security code delivered to a landline or mobile device; security codes may be 
delivered via text message to a mobile device (mobile device phone number must be input 
into the user profile before a text message can be delivered). 

 
 Further, the Bank maintains a comprehensive security program designed to protect customer 

information. The sections below highlight a few areas of our security program. 
 
 Strong Authentication 
 First time login and new devices require temporary security codes delivered out of band 

(phone or mobile) in order to complete the login process.  This multi-step process helps the 
bank to protect accounts and allows recognition of devices used to sign in. Bank also offers 
login by token as an optional enrollment request. 

 
 Suspicious Activity Monitoring 
 Behavioral analytic software is utilize to monitor account activity to establish behavior 

patterns which help detect possible fraud.  Contact the client services team or anyone of the 
bank’s team members handling your accounts to report fraud attempts immediately.  Fraud 
can also be reported through the website at the How to Report Fraud section. 

 
 Secure Messaging 
 The Bank utilizes a corporate secure email solution secured by Proofpoint Encryption 



11
 

(https://protectedmail.plainscapital.com:10020/euweb/login) to share sensitive data. 
 
 Encryption Technology 
 The Bank uses 256-bit encryption technology to protect your username, password and other 

personal account information when you’re using our site. You’ll know your information is 
encrypted when the plainscapital.com page you’re on starts with “https://” and you see a lock 
symbol in your web browser.  We also use encryption technology to protect data in transit to 
third parties and data stored within our corporate systems. 

 
 Handling your personal information 
 When we set up or manage your account information, we are required by law to have your 

Social Security Number on file. During the normal course of business, we may also obtain 
other personal or confidential information to support your financial transactions. We use 
internal policies and technical safeguards to protect and limit access to your personal 
information and make sure it isn’t used inappropriately. 

 
 Our employees 

Our employees receive regular training and education on topics surrounding security and data 
privacy. We conduct awareness campaigns to ensure our employees are trained to respond to 
phishing emails, social engineering and suspicious website links.  Our corporate code of 
conduct is our commitment to supporting the integrity and ethical standards we expect from 
our employees. The code of conduct includes specific guidelines about how we expect 
employees to protect confidential information (including your account and personal 
information), as well as guidelines to limit our employees access to your confidential 
information and restrict how we use and share information for certain processes and 
transactions. 
 

e. Institutional/Corporate Trust Services. 
PlainsCapital Private Bank thru Wealth Management & Trust provides Corporate Escrow, 
Paying Agent/Registrar Services.  Fees are negotiated at time of request. 
 

f. Safekeeping. 
 Bank offers safekeeping services through our Wealth Management and Trust Services 

department.  The Bank’s depository used for securities safekeeping and clearance is Bank of 
New York Mellon (BNY).     

 
 All securities would be held in a custody account in the HCRMA’s name with PCB’s Wealth 

Management and Trust department. The HCRMA will have 24-hour online access (in 
addition to monthly statements) evidencing the ownership of all securities and confirming all 
transactions.  Bank does not issue safekeeping receipts for book entry securities, but Bank can 
provide a List of Holdings monthly or upon request.   

 
 Online origination of security transactions is not available; however, the HCRMA may 

monitor transactions online. Bank will provide the HCRMA with settlement instructions for 
our account at BNY.  

 
 For same day cash settlements, the deadline is 10:00a.m.  There will be no charge for late 

submissions however, same day settlement may be withheld if instructions are given after the 
deadline. 

 
 Fees for safekeeping of HCRMA owned investments is as follows:    



12

$35.00 per security purchased; $15.00 per interest payment; $2 per security holding.

g. On-line Computer Capability.
Business Online Services is compatible with the current, generally available versions of the 
following browsers and operating systems:

The Bank offers Business Online Services (BOS) with dual control capabilities. All services 
are available thru one portal 24/7; services include:

Reporting Module
Previous day

End of day ledger balances, collected balance and monthly averages for both
Transaction details, paid check & deposit ticket images included
Summary debit & credit totals
EDI reporting
ACH Return Item & NOC reporting

Current day
ACH debit & credit transactions
Incoming wire reporting
Paid checks (please note paid check activity will not be complete until end of day 
processing)
Controlled disbursement totals and transactions
Deposits made through remote deposit capture
Cash forecasting

Monthly bank statements and analysis statements
Saved reports 

Transfers & Payments
Internal Account Transfers

Transfers are real-time and account available balances referenced on page
Transfers can be made from one account to another
Transfers can be made from one account to many accounts in one transaction
Templates can be created and saved for future use
Descriptions can be added and will be referenced on bank statement or file exports
Dual control highly recommended for internal account transfers



13
 

 ACH Origination 
 Payment / Collection templates supporting all payment types (CCD, PPD, CTX, 

Web, Tel) 
 Tax and child support templates available 
 Addenda records can be added 
 Detail recipient records can be imported into existing templates from multiple file 

formats 
 Upload NACHA formatted files 
 ACH Same Day transactions available for both payments & collections 
 Manage ACH NOCs easily; templates with related NOCs are automatically flagged 

for review and acceptance 
 Origination detail reports can be created and exported in CSV file formats for 90 

days 
 Dual control is available and strongly recommended for ACH Origination for both 

payments and collections  
 Dual control to create ACH Templates is highly recommended before utilization 
 Template transactions or file uploads require token security at the approval stage 
 Real time status reports available online 

 Wire Initiation 
 Supports both domestic and international wires (USD$ only) 
 ABA & Swift lookup tools available 
 Wire file import feature available in CSV formats 
 Dual control is available and strongly recommended for online wire initiation 
 Create templates for repetitive use; Dual control to create wire templates is highly 

recommended before utilization 
 Wire transactions require token security at the approval stage; multiple wires can be 

approved at once 
 Real time status reports available online 
 Transaction history available for review and export for 90 days 

 
 Account Services 

 Stop Payments 
 Initiate and monitor existing stop payment requests 

 ACH Positive Pay 
 Check Positive Payee 
 Reconciliation 
 Remote Deposit Capture 

 
 Administration 

 Dual Control for Administration is available and strongly recommended 
 Create new and manage users access and permissions online  
 Setup user alerts to be sent via email or text or both 



14
 

 Create user reports 
 Manage additional approval settings 

 
 Mobile Application 
 Transaction Reporting 
 Account Transfers 
 Approve ACH, wires, positive pay exceptions, and administration setups or changes 

 
Test Demo link available: 
www.plainscapital.com/BOSTMdemo   
 

7. Describe interest rates to be paid on deposits of $100,000 or more, interest rates paid on deposits 
of $100,000 or less, and interest rates paid on U.S. Treasury Bills over $10,000. 

 The HCRMA can choose from the options below and may change structure throughout the term 
of the contract as the HCRMA deems necessary.  

 
 Option A: Bank offers non-interest-bearing accounts where balances collateralized by 

authorized securities (up to $10 million in securities available) will earn a monthly earnings 
credit allowance. Non-interest-bearing accounts will offset bank fees at the rate of the Lower 
Fed Funds Target Rate, currently 5.25%.  

 
 Option B: The HCRMA may choose to sweep all balances to the ICS (Insured Cash Sweep) 

and earn interest at the Lower Fed Funds Target less 10 basis points, currently 5.15% and 
pay hard dollar service fees.  

 
 Option C: The HCRMA may choose a combination of option A and B using a peg/target 

balance in non-interest bearing accounts. Non-interest-bearing accounts will earn a monthly 
earnings credit allowance to offset bank fees at a rate of the Lower Fed Funds Target, 
currently 5.25%.  Anything over the peg/target balance would be swept and earn interest at 
the ICS rate. ICS rate is based on the Lower Fed Funds Target rate less 10 basis points, 
currently 5.15%. 

 
 Bank is happy to discuss with the HCRMA to ensure enough balances are maintained to offset 

service fees. 
 
 About Insured Cash Sweep:  When the Bank places your funds using ICS, funds are 

automatically transferred from your PlainsCapital transaction account into deposit accounts at 
other ICS Network banks in amounts below $250,000, the standard FDIC insurance maximum. 
As a result, you can access FDIC insurance coverage from many institutions while working 
directly with just one bank.  Additional benefits to utilizing the ICS: 

• Eliminates the need to manage daily collateral requirements, as all funds in the ICS 
account are fully insured 

• All operating funds are fully insured while earning a competitive interest rate 
• Individual ICS accounts can be setup per depository account or utilized with ZBA account 

structure or combination of both 
• Target balances can be maintained for the bank depository account 
• ICS balances maintain complete liquidity to fund real-time disbursements 
• Participating banks can be excluded if required 



15
 

• PlainsCapital Bank receives dollar-for-dollar deposits from the IntraFi Network allowing 
your funds to be reinvested back into your community. 

  
 Securities and ICS are authorized investments under the Texas Government Code Title 10 

Chapter 2256 Subchapter A Section 2256.003 of the Public Fund Investment Act.  
 

Refer to attachment D for Insured Cash Sweep Service Description and an excerpt from Texas 
Government Code. 

 
8. Provide any other information that Respondent may deem applicable to the Depository Services 

that the HCRMA may utilize but has not been directly requested in this RFP. 
 DELUXE PAYMENT EXCHANGE (DPX) 
 Deluxe Payment Exchange is an easy, low cost digital solution allows users to process payments 

quickly and gives the recipient a choice on how to accept payments. Clients can send payments 
instantly through digital delivery or same day and allow the client to save time and money by 
cutting down in printing and mailing costs.   

 Benefits of DPX: 
• Reduced Time and Cost: Create and send digital payments in a fraction of the time and cost 

of sending paper checks manually.  
• Powerful Security Features: With fully integrated Positive Pay, DPX automatically sends 

the issuance file to the bank. Clients no longer need to upload issuance files to the bank or 
risk forgetting to do so. DPX reduces the opportunity for check fraud by mail by using a 
secured website for sending and receiving payments. Each eCheck payment includes a 
proprietary stamp that allows financial institutions to verify authenticity. 

• More Flexibility: Deliver payments in just seconds anytime, from anywhere, without the 
need for printers or check stock. If a client prefers to issue paper checks, the client can 
choose Print+Mail service and checks will be printed and mailed with enhanced security 
features for the client. 

• Easy Integration: DPX integrates seamlessly into the client’s current check-payment 
process, giving them various methods for initiating payments. Clients can issue directly 
through the platform, import via CSV file, utilize the direct QuickBooks® integration (for 
eChecks) or use API for high volumes of payments. 

• Simultaneous Remittance Data: Each DPX payment can include up to 8 columns and 
multiple lines of customizable remittance data, to mirror current AP processes. 
Additionally, remittance data can be included as an attachment, by submitting it with an 
eCheck payment. 

• Multiple Deposit Options: Recipients can print or deposit checks using available bank 
deposit methods, including mobile and branch. Direct deposit, deposit to debit card, or to 
PayPal are optional. Recipient would pay a convenience fee. 

9. Please include the following documentation as described below: 
a. Proposed form of contract with the HCRMA as an appendix to the response. 

Refer to attachment C for Sample PlainsCapital Bank Depository Contract. 
 

b. A letter certifying that the institution satisfies the minimum qualifications listed in this RFP 
and entitled “Minimum Qualifications for Proposing Institutions”. 
Signed letter certifying Minimum Qualifications included in Tab 1. 
 

c. Provide a statement demonstrating the financial condition of the Bank. 



16
 

Refer to Annual Report book included in the packet for Hilltop Holdings Inc., most recent 
audited financial statement and 10-K Annual Report. 
Electronic version is available thru the following link: 
https://s26.q4cdn.com/460478275/files/doc_financials/2022/ar/2022-hilltop-holdings-annual-
report.pdf   

 
10. Indicate whether the Respondent is a certified historically utilized business (“HUB”) or 

disadvantaged business enterprise (“DBE”) and of so, provide supporting documentation 
including evidence of certification through the State of Texas or a Texas regional certification 
agency. 
PlainsCapital does not qualify as a certified DBE or HUB.  

11. Indicate whether the following services will be provided during the term of the contract free of 
charge: 
a. Operating fund checking account services for as many accounts as may be required by the 

HCRMA. 
The HCRMA may open and maintain one or more demand account at PlainsCapital Bank. 
Bank offers non-interest bearing operating accounts which are not restricted on the 
frequency or types of withdrawals.  Bank is offering non-interest bearing transaction 
account(s) with no minimum balance requirements. Non-interest bearing accounts will 
offset bank fees at the rate of the Lower Fed Funds Target Rate, currently 5.25%.   
 
Funds in non-interest bearing account(s) will sweep into a master Insured Cash Sweep 
(ICS) transaction account to other ICS Network banks in amounts below $250,000, the 
standard FDIC insurance maximum. Swept funds will earn interest at a rate of 5.15%.  
Interest will accrue daily and will pay monthly to the ICS account. Bank is happy to discuss 
with the MRA to ensure enough balances are maintained to offset service fees. 
Refer to response item 7 for “Account Structure” options.  
 

b. Payroll account services. 
 ACH Origination Services 
 Bank will provide ACH origination services to the HCRMA as required. Prenotes are not 

required by the Bank; normal ACH origination fees would apply. Refer to attachment B, for 
applicable fees.  

 
 ACH transactions can be submitted in three ways:  

 Online Templates 
• Allows single or batched transactions 
• Transaction payment details can be imported into template 
• Payments & collections available 
• Dual control required for online services and security protocols 
• 4:00CST deadline for submittal 

 
 ACH File Upload 

• NACHA formatted file required 
• Dual control required for online services and security protocols 
• 5:00CST deadline for submittal 

 
 ACH Direct Send 

• NACHA formatted file required 
• File delivered via SFTP 



17
 

 
 ACH templates can be built by HCRMA users and maintained online; these are typically used 

for vendor or one-off payment or collection transactions.  Dual control is required with a 
4:00pm CST cutoff.  Dual control is available and highly recommended for ACH template 
creation, requiring the template to be approved by another user before it can be utilized. 

 
 Additionally, the Bank offers Same Day ACH. Same Day ACH, items and/or files may be 

uploaded the same day as the effective date by 1:00pm CST. The HCRMA’s eligible debits 
and credits will be processed same day and the payee’s account will be debited or credited by 
5:00pm local time. It is important to note these transactions may not memo post as “pending 
transactions” to the receivers account during the day.  

 
Refer to attachment B, for applicable fees.  

 
c. Investment services, counseling and safekeeping service for securities if necessary. 

PlainsCapital Bank Private Bank offers investment and safekeeping services. A separate 
Investment Agency Agreement would need to be executed. Fees are negotiated at the time of 
request. 
 

d. Storage of paid bonds and interest coupons. 
PlainsCapital Bank will store and destroy bonds with respect to those held in the Investment 
Agency Account refenced in item “c”.  
 

e. Destruction of paid bonds and interest coupons with certification of same. 
Refer to response “d”. 
 

f. Bank money orders and customer checks as required by HCRMA 
Cashiers checks are available to HCRMA free of charge. 

 
g. Checks according to quantity, quality, design, and specifications established by HCRMA. 

Upon the HCRMA’s request, check orders may be facilitated by Bank through Bank’s vendor.  
Price is based on style and quantity ordered.  Checks will be provided at cost and automatically 
debited from HCRMA’s account. 
 

h. Stop-payment orders, wire transfers or sweeping of funds. 
 The HCRMA can issue stop payment orders on items drawn on the disbursement account in 

accordance with Bank’s procedures.  Stop payments can be submitted through BOS (online 
banking) or at bank branch.  Stop payments are effective for six months from the date of stop 
payment submission.  The deadline for same day stop payment is 6:00pm.  

 
Domestic wire transfers may be initiated online as a one-time same day or future dated 
transaction (with no limit to future date).  Wires must be submitted and approved before 
5:00p.m. for same day wire to go out.  All wires (including same day and future dated) must be 
approved by 5:00pm on the day the wire was submitted.  Any wire not approved before 5:00pm 
will not be processed. Repetitive wires may also be generated based on pre-established 
templates.  The Bank recommends wires be submitted under Dual Control.  Wires may also be 
faxed, emailed, or delivered to the branch in the event the system is unavailable. Fees will be 
charged through account analysis.  Account Analysis fees may be offset by the earnings credit 
earned in non-interest bearing accounts as described in response item 7. Refer to attachment B 
for proforma analysis statement. 
 



18
 

i. Internal service fees on accounts. 
Fees will be charged through account analysis.  Account Analysis fees may be offset by the 
earnings credit earned in non-interest bearing accounts as described in response item 7. Refer to 
attachment B for proforma analysis statement. 
 

j. Tendering overdrafts (provide aggregate funds in other accounts are in amount sufficient to 
meet the overdraft and minimum balance). 

 HCRMA shall avoid overdrafts on any of its individual accounts and shall take prompt 
action to cover overdrafts in any single account. All overdrafts are viewed as extensions of 
credit and must be reviewed on an individual basis. Daylight overdrafts will be approved at 
Bank’s discretion.  

 
Aggregation of accounts and balances will be used in the decision making for approval of 
overdrafts. Bank will promptly notify the personnel of overdraft condition. The fee for 
overdrafts, should one occur, will incur a fee of $20. Interest at 3.5% plus Prime for 
negative overnight collected balance positions is accessed only on days when there is a 
negative collected balance in all non-interest bearing transaction accounts combined. 
Overdraft fee and interest are charged at the account level. 
 

k. Describe any additional services provided without charge. 
 

12. Specify any fees required for financial services. 
 Fees for safekeeping of HCRMA owned investments are $35.00 per security purchased; $15.00 per 

interest payment; $2 monthly per security holding.  Fees may be deducted from demand transaction 
account. 

 
 

EVALUATION PROCESS: After the deadline for receipt of RFP’s, an evaluation committee will 
review all proposals utilizing the evaluation criteria noted below. 

 
EVALUATION CRITERIA: 
The following criteria and rating points (100 points maximum) will be used to evaluate the proposal: 

1. Experience of the Individuals Assigned to the Account (0-20 points) 
2. Access to Individual that has Authority to Make Decisions (0-10 points) 
3. Depository Services including but not limited to: Collections Processing, Disbursement 

Processing, Currency Services, Account Reconciliation, Cash Management Services, Security, 
Collateral, Trust Services, Safekeeping, On-Line Computer Capability, Training, Reports (Timely 
and User-Friendly) (0-20 points) 

4. Cost of Services (0-15 points) 
5. Local Presence/DBE Commitment (0-5 points) 
6. Financial Institution’s past and prospective financial condition (0-20 points) 



19
 

7. Net rate of return on HCRMA funds (0-10 points) 
 

SELECTION PROCESS: The HCRMA reserves the right to interview respondents from a “short list” 
of eligible firms or to select directly from the qualified respondents that submit proposals. Scoring of the 
proposals will be based on the criteria above. Final scoring will occur following interviews of short-listed 
teams (if any interviews are conducted). The scoring will lead to a recommendation by the staff of the 
HCRMA. The recommendation of staff or selection committee will be forwarded to the Board of 
Directors of the HCRMA. The Board of Directors will make the final selection of a respondent and 
authorize entry into the contract. 

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: Respondents must disclose conflicts of interest by identifying each and 
every matter in which the respondent has, within the past three calendar years, represented any entity or 
individual with an interest adverse to the HCRMA, Federal Highway Administration, or the Texas 
Department of Transportation, or to the State of Texas or any of its boards, agencies, commissions, 
universities, elected or appointed officials, or Hidalgo County. Respondent must complete Exhibit A of 
this RFP. 

Provide a list of governmental entities located in Hidalgo County to which services have been provided in 
past three (3) calendar years. Briefly describe the services provided for each governmental entity in an 
appendix to the response. The appendix will not be considered part of the ten (10) page limit. In addition 
respondents must comply with the HCRMA’s Conflict of Interest Policy. The Conflict of Interest Policy, 
the list of Key Personnel, and the Disclosure Form can be obtained from the HCRMA website or from the 
Contact Person indicated below. 

 
CONTRACT AWARD: The award date for this contract is anticipated in March 2024. The HCRMA 
does not guarantee that a contract will be awarded as a result of the RFP. In the event that a contract are 
awarded, but the contract is not executed, the HCRMA does not guarantee that the contract will be re- 
awarded. 

INQUIRIES: Any informational questions regarding this RFP may be directed to Maria 
Alaniz, Executive Assistant, in writing via CivCAST, no later than 4:00PM, CST, February 23, 2024. 

 
ANTI-LOBBYING: Respondents shall restrict all contact with the HCRMA Board of Directors 
and direct all questions regarding this RFP, including questions regarding terms and conditions and 
technical specifications, to the points of contact. Failure to comply with this procedure may 
result in disqualification. 

 
RELEASE OF INFORMATION AND OPEN RECORDS: All proposals, once submitted, are deemed 
to be the property of the HCRMA. Response documents may be subject to public disclosure under the 
Texas Public Information Act (“PIA”). Any material deemed to be proprietary, confidential, or otherwise 
exempt from disclosure under the PIA must be clearly marked as such. If a PIA request is received during 
the pendency of this procurement that might cover all or part of an RFP response, the HCRMA will 
attempt to notify the respondent. 

 
HISTORICAL DATA: Since 2015, the depository bank for the HCRMA has been PlainsCapital Bank. 
The HCRMA currently has one (1) account with the bank and four (4) credit cards. The HCRMA has had 
no international currency exchange transactions. Below is a 3-month analysis. 



20
 

 
DEPOSITS DISBURSEMENTS 

 

  
No. of 
Trans. 

 

 
Total 

 
No. of 

Checks 

 
No. of 
ACH 

 

 
Total 

Average 
Available 
Balance 

 
Banking 

Fees 

December 2023 7 $827,075 7 14 $177,080 $497,685 $0 
November 2023 5 $108,432 7 14 $170,096 $722,716 $0 
October 2023 4 $79,758 6 14 $161,618 $772,795 $0 

 
 

DELIVERY AND DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION OF RESPONSES: Sealed proposals must be 
received at the office of Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director, HCRMA, 203 West Newcombe Avenue, 
Pharr, Texas 78577, 4:00 PM, March 1, 2024, for consideration. Each firm should submit three (3) 
complete hardcopy sets and a PDF version on a flash drive of their proposal to the Authority no later than 
this date and time in a sealed envelope indicating that its contents are in response to the Request for 
Proposals for “Banking Depository Services – HCRMA – 2024-02” 







Proposed Statement Page 1 of 2

Confidential and Proprietary

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Operating Account
January, 2024

Collected Balance Disclosure
Ledger
-  Float
= Collected
Positive Collected
Negative Collected
Investable Balance Disclosure
Average Collected Balance
- Reserve Requirement
= Investable Balance

Services Performed Volume Price Total Fee

ACCOUNT MAINTENANCE
   COMMERCIAL DEPOSIT RATE 207,424 .001000 16.44 A
   ANALYSIS MAINTENANCE 1 20.0000 20.00 A
   Subtotal - Account maintenance 36.44
DEPOSIT SERVICES
   IMAGE CLEAR DIRECT CHECKS 1 .1200 0.12 A
   BRANCH DEPOSITS 1 1.2500 1.25 A
   ACH CREDITS 4 .3500 1.40 A
   Subtotal - Deposit services 2.77
CLEARING SERVICES
   CHECKS PAID 4 .2500 1.00 A
   ACH DEBITS 21 .3000 6.30 A
   Subtotal - Clearing services 7.30
FUNDS TRANSFER
   INCOMING WIRES 1 15.0000 15.00 A
   WIRE MODULE 1 30.0000 30.00 A
   Subtotal - Funds transfer 45.00
ACH SERVICES
   ACH ORIGINATED DEBIT / CREDITS 15 .1600 2.40 A
   ACH MODULE 1 30.0000 30.00 A
   ACH REPORTING 1 20.0000 20.00 A
   Subtotal - Ach services 52.40
CASH MANAGEMENT SERVICES
   INSURED CASH SWEEP 0 20.0000 0.00 
   Subtotal - Cash Management Services 0.00 

207,424.27

Average Balances on Deposit

1.06
207,423.21
207,423.21

0.00

207,423.21
0.00

207,423.21

Services Performed

3/1/2024



Proposed Statement Page 2 of 2

INFORMATION REPORTING
      BOS - PER ACCOUNT FEE 1 20.0000 20.00 A
      BOS - PER ITEM 30 .0700 2.10 A
   Subtotal - Information reporting 22.10
REMOTE DEPOSIT CAPTURE
     RDC PER ITEM 0.0500 0.00 
     RDC SINGLE FEED PACKAGE 50.0000 0.00 
   Subtotal - Information reporting 0.00 

Total Analyzed 166.01

Required Balance Disclosure
Balance Required For Services
= Total Required Balance
Balance Position Disclosure
Balance Position Basis
-  Total Required Balance
= Balance Available for Other Service

Earnings Credit Amount
- Analyzed Fees
= Net Analyzed Result

Fee-Based Result

Net analyzed credit of $696.84 will be waived.
1.00 of fees is equal to $240.39 of Investable Balance.
Investable Balance receives an earnings credit of 5.2500%.

207,423.21

Analysis Results

39,907.14
39,907.14

For the purpose of this proposal, pricing information is Confidential and Proprietary                    
due to discounted prices offered specifically to the HCRMA. 

Pricing for services utilized, but not listed, will be charged at the bank's then                         
published rates and billed via account analysis where applicable. 

39,907.14
167,516.07

862.85
166.01
696.84

0.00

3/1/2024



SAM
PLE



SAM
PLE



Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank.  Signature Page Follows. 

SAM
PLE



SAM
PLE



SAM
PLE



SAM
PLE



INSURED CASH
SWEEP SERVICES

I N S U R E D  C A S H  S W E E P

Insured Cash Sweep (ICS) services provided by 
PlainsCapital Bank, which leverage the DDA Option of 
the IntraFiSM Network DepositsSM,  allow you to place your 
funds into a demand deposit account and:

Rest assured knowing your funds are eligible for multi-
million-dollar FDIC insurance that’s backed by the full 
faith and credit of the U.S. government.          

Earn returns and put your money to work for you. 

Access your funds with unlimited program withdrawals 
(using the ICS demand option).

Support your community by keeping the full amount of 
your deposit local.1

Eliminate the ongoing tracking burdens associated 
with collateralization and the need to footnote uninsured 
deposits in financial statements if you are accustomed to 
these practices.

M O N I T O R  Y O U R  A C C O U N T S  O N L I N E

You will receive a regular monthly statement showing 
your ICS balances and other key information.  And you 
can check your ICS balances and track other important 
information online, 24/7, through a specifically designated 
Depositor Control Panel. Your confidential information 
remains protected.

H O W  D O E S  I T  W O R K ?

When PlainsCapital Bank places your funds using ICS, 
your deposit is sent from your PlainsCapital transaction 
account into deposit accounts at other IntraFi Network 
Deposits banks in amounts below $250,000, the standard 
FDIC insurance maximum. As a result, you can access 
FDIC insurance coverage from many institutions while 
working directly with just us.

© 2021 PlainsCapital Bank. Member FDIC. PCB634871977 

T R E A S U R Y  M A N A G E M E N T

C O N T A C T  U S

Contact us for more information on Insured Cash Sweep.

TreasuryManagement.com@plainscapital.com 

PLAINSCAPITAL.COM

1When deposited funds are exchanged on a dollar-for-dollar basis with other banks 
in the IntraFiSM Network DepositsSM, a participating institution can use the full 
amount of a deposit placed through DDA Option for local lending, satisfying some 
depositors’ local investment goals or mandates. Alternatively, with a depositor’s 
consent to certain types of DDA Option transactions, the bank may choose to 
receive fee income instead of deposits from other banks. Under these 
circumstances, deposited funds would not be available for local lending. Placement 
of funds through the DDA Option service is subject to the terms, conditions, and 
disclosures in the service agreements, including the Deposit Placement Agreement 
(“DPA”). Limits and customer eligibility criteria 
apply. Although funds are placed at destination banks in amounts that do not exceed 
the FDIC standard maximum deposit insurance amount (“SMDIA”), a depositor’s 
balances at the relationship institution that places the funds may exceed the SMDIA 
(e.g., before DDA Option settlement for a deposit or after DDA Option settlement 
for a withdrawal) or be ineligible for FDIC insurance (if the relationship institution 
is not a bank). As stated in the DPA, the depositor is responsible for making any 
necessary arrangements to protect such balances consistent with applicable law. If 
the depositor is subject to restrictions on placement of its funds, the depositor is 
responsible for determining whether its use of DDA Option satisfies those 
restrictions. DDA-MMDA Option are registered service marks of the IntraFi 
Netwrok LLC.



[As amended; effective immediately]



 

RELATED EXPERIENCE 
 

At PlainsCapital Bank, Relationships Come First. PlainsCapital Bank has held fast to its 
tried and true relationship-based culture and its commitment to financial strength and 
stability. PCB bankers are renowned for their straightforward approach and for taking 
exceptional care their clients. They bring both financial and industry expertise along with 
vast local market knowledge to each client relationship. The actions and decisions of 
PlainsCapital employees are grounded in a set of shared personal values that include: 
Collaboration, Adaptability, Respect, Excellence and Integrity.  

 
 
REFERENCES 
City of McAllen 
Sergio Villasana Jr., CPA, CIA, CGFO, CPM 
956-681-1081 
svillasana@mcallen.net  
McAllen, TX 78501 
Bank Depository Contract Services 
3 years under current contract, 18 years consecutively 
 
Valley International Airport 
Ron Mustard, Director of Finance 
956-430-8608 
ron@flythevalley.com  
Bank Depository Contract and Safekeeping Services 
2 years under contract 
 
City of Donna 
David Vasquez, Finance Director 
956-464-6913 
dvasquez@cityofdonna.org  
Donna, TX 78537 
Bank Depository Services 
23 years consecutively 
 
City of Port Isabel 
Linda Chullino, Finance Director 
956-943-2682 
financedirector@copitx.com 
Bank Depository Services 
23 years consecutively 
 
City of Harlingen Waterworks 
Ron De La Garza, Finance Director 
956-430-6120 
rdelagarza@hwws.com  



 

Bank Depository Contract and Safekeeping Services 
1 year under contract 
 
Point Isabel Independent School District 
Christy Gonzalez, Chief Financial Officer 
956-943-0020 
cgonzalez@pi-isd.net  
Bank Depository Services 
7 years under current contract, 22 years consecutively 
 
PlainsCapital Bank currently collateralizes over 140+ Texas Public Fund clients. 
 



T R E A S U R Y  M A N A G E M E N T

TERMS
A N D 

 CONDITIONS 

E F F E C T I V E  A S  O F  O C T O B E R  17,  2 0 2 2

















































Cano
100 W. Cano St.
Edinburg, TX 78539
956.380.8530

Trenton                   
7201 N. 10th St.
McAllen, TX 78504
956.664.4749

Nolana  
100 E. Nolana Loop
Pharr, TX 78577
956.283.2240

S. 10th
1821 S. 10th St.
McAllen, TX 78503
956.928.3750

Mission
1709 N. Conway Ave.
Mission, TX 78572
956.519.5999

Donna
503 N. D. Salinas Blvd.
Donna, TX 78537
956.464.1510

Weslaco
911 W. Expressway 83
Weslaco, TX 78596
956.973.3070

1 2 3

4 5 6

7

6

5
4

2
1

7

3



PlainsCapital Bank Primary Contacts 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Larry Gonzalez 
Market President 
                                  
 
Phone Number:                 956.283.2255 
Fax Number:                                956.283.2257 
Email:                       larry.gonzalez@plainscapital.com 

Dacia Salinas 
VP Treasury Management Sales Officer 
 
 
Phone Number:                                     956.385.3513 
Fax Number:       877.420.0037 
Email:                             dacia.salinas@plainscapital.com  

  

Roxanna Salas 
VP Public Funds Officer 
 
 
Phone Number:                                     956.380.8506 
Fax Number:                956.385.3517 
Email:                     roxanna.salas@plainscapital.com 

Dina Garcia 
Public Funds Specialist 
 
 
Phone Number:                                     956.519.5984 
Fax Number:                956.385.3517 
Email:                          dina.garcia@plainscapital.com 

  

Alvin Shenk 
SVP Central and South Texas Sales Manager 
 
 
Phone Number:                                     210.321.3368 
Fax Number:                844.573.1955 
Email:                                ashenk@plainscapital.com  

Treasury Client Support 
 
 
 

Phone Number:                                      214.252.4005 
Email:                                  tmsupport@plainscapital.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*Upon award of the Depository Contract, Bank will provide cell phone numbers for urgent matters and after hours assistance.  

 
 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 3C



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

    BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X           WORKSHOP ITEM            3C_____
PLANNING COMMITTEE   DATE SUBMITTED       03/19/2024 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING DATE    03/26/2024  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

1. Agenda Item: RESOLUTION 2024-23 – CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF AWARD OF
CONTRACT TO INTERTEK PSI AND MEG ENGINEERS FOR CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS
TESTING LAB AND FORENSIC SERVICES FOR THE 365 TOLLWAY PROJECT._________

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No

Consideration and approval of award of contract for CMT Lab and Forensic services for the 365
Tollway Project.                                        _______                ____________________________

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy

4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 

5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2024-13 – Consideration and
Approval of award of contract to Interteck PSI and MEG Engineers for Construction
Materials Testing Lab and Foresnic Services for the 365 Tollway Project, as presented, as
presented.  ______                     _______                             ____________  _______________

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _   Approved          Disapproved       X_   None 

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved      X    None 

          Disapproved        _  None 12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:    X  Approved

13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X    Approved          Disapproved         _  None 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2024 - 23 

CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF AWARD OF CONTRACT TO INTERTEK 
PSI AND MEG ENGINEERS FOR CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL TESTING LAB 

AND FORENSIC SERVICES OF THE 365 TOLLWAY PROJECT 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 26th day of March 2024 by the Board of Directors of 
the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the "Authority"), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the "Board"), is a regional mobility authority created 
pursuant to Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the "Act"); and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 17, 2005, the Texas Transportation Commission (the 

"Commission") created the Authority pursuant to (i) the Act; (ii) Title 43, Texas Administrative 
Code; (iii) a petition of the Hidalgo County Commissioners Court (the "County"); and (iv) 
findings by the Commission that the creation of the Authority would result in certain direct 
benefits to the State of Texas (the "State"), local governments, and the traveling public and 
would improve the State's transportation system; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Act allows the Authority to construct transportation projects within 

the County, including the 365 Tollway Project (the "Project"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority issued a request for Statements of Qualifications for 
Construction Materials Testing Laboratory Services and Forensic Investigation and 
Evaluation of In-Place Construction Materials f o r  t h e  365 Tollway Project (the "SOQ"); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority received two (2) responses to the SOQ from Millennium 

Engineers Group and Intertek PSI.; and 
 

WHEREAS, both respondents were determined to be qualified; and 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

 

Section 1. 
restated. 

The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 

 
Section 2. The Board authorizes the Executive Director to negotiation a 
professional service agreement with Millenium Engineers Group and Intertek PSI. 

 
Section 3. Upon satisfactory negotiation of the terms, conditions and rates with the 
two firms, the Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute a professional service 
agreement with each firm. 

••••• 



PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING on the 26th day of March, 2024, at which 
meeting a quorum was present. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Juan Carlos Del Ángel, Secretary/Treasurer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



MEG ENGINEERS – PHARR 
 
5804 N. Gumwood Ave. 
Pharr, Texas 78577  
 
 

 Primary Contact 
  
 Sergio Tovar 
 Director of Operations 
 stovar@megengineers.com 

 
Contact Us 
  
 https://megengineers.com/ 

 apalma@megengineers.com 
  
 (956) 702-8500 
 





           /       /             /           /             /          /       /     /    /  MEG 

Government and municipal agencies, educational 
institutions, architects, engineers, real estate 
developers, constructors, and private sector clients. 
Our strength is our people; combining their 
experience and collaborating as a unit enables us to 
quickly identify our roles and deliver accurate cost-
effective deliverables. Whether defining a new 
working relationship or continuing to the next project 
our mission remains the same: to achieve yours. 

History 
MEG was founded in 2001 by Mr. Raul Palma, P.E. 
on the principles of honesty, integrity, and service. 
The goal to provide innovative geotechnical and 
material testing services, continue to raise the level 
of quality in the local profession, and make a 
difference in the community. Today,MEG provides a 
full range of integrated geotechnical engineering and 
consulting services, construction material engineering 
and testing, environmental engineering, forensic 
testing, and consulting services. Our philosophy and 
practices have been positively reflected in both client 
and employee loyalty and contribute to a steady 
growth in a diversity of projects.  

MEG is accredited by the American Association of 
State Highway and Transportation Officials 
(AASHTO) and the United States Army Corps of 
Engineers (USACE). MEG is audited by and 
independent AASHTO & USACE auditor, as part of 
our accreditation process. 

MEG meets the requirements for ASTME329 
Standard of Recommend Practice for Inspection and 
Testing Agencies, and maintains yearly proficiency 
testing samples to AASHTO, USACE, TxDOT, and 
TxAPA. 

MEG Corporate Headquarters – Pharr, Texas 
 

MEG Corporate Headquarters – Pharr, Texas 



MEG is a minority owned and operated business certified as: 
 Historically Under-utilized Business (HUB)
 Small Business Enterprise (SBE)
 Minority Business Enterprise (MBE)
 Emerging Small Bus. Enterprise (ESBE)
 Hispanic American Bus. Enterprise (HABE)
 Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)

MEG has the most AASHTO accreditations of any laboratory in 

 Atterberg Limits
 4-Sieve Analysis Shakers
 3-Sample Splitters Moisture Contents
 Minus No.200 Sieve Analysis
 Dry Sieve Analysis
 Moisture Density Relationships
 Density Testing
 California Bearing Ratio (CBR)
 Optimum Cement or Lime Contentfor
 Stabilization of Soils
 Classification of Soils
 Hydrometer
 Consolidation
 Triaxial Testing
 Unconfined Compression
 Deleterious Material Determination
 Decantation of Aggregates
 Wet Ball Mill
 Ph Testing
 Aggregate Resistivity Testing
 Aggregate Soundness

 Concrete Testing
 Asphalt Testing
 Mortar and Grout Testing
 Concrete Material Designs
 Hot Mix Asphaltic Concrete Designs
 2-Concrete Compression Machines
 1-Three Point Conc. Beam Compression
 5-Ovens
 6-Measuring Scales
 1-Concrete Curing Room
 2-Concrete Saws
 1-Asphalt Ignition Oven
 1-Asphalt Gyratory Press
 5-Manual Proctor Hammer
 1-Automatic Proctor Hammer
 1-Hveem Stability
 1-Gilson 50 Gallon Sample Shaker
 1-Sand Equivalent
 2-Computerized One-Dimensional
 Consolidation Frames
 1-Computerized Triaxial Load Frame

Pharr Office 
Point of Contact: Andres Palma, P.E. 
5804 N. Gumwood Ave                     
Pharr, Texas 78577
O 956-702-8500 F 956-702-4180                
E. apalma@megengineers.com

San Benito Office 
Point of Contact: Raul Palma, P.E. 
30745 E. Expressway 83
San Benito, Texas 78586
O 956-300-2500 F 956-702-4180                
E. rpalma@megengineers.com

LABORATORY EQUIPMENT 
MEG meets the requirements for ASTME329 Standard of Recommend Practice for Inspection and Testing 

Agencies, and maintains yearly proficiency testing samples to AASHTO, USACE, TxDOT, and TxAPA. 

      /       /             /       /             /          /       /     /    /  MEG ENGINEERS



 
Andres Palma, P.E. (bilingual) 
President 
17 years with firm 
Areas of Expertise: 
Geotechnical Engineering & 
Construction Materials Testing 
Professional License: Registered 
Professional Engineer, 
17 years experience 
 

 
Amos Emerson, P.E (bilingual) 
Geotechnical Engineer 
5 years with firm 
Areas of Expertise: 
Construction Materials Testing, 
Geotechnical Engineering, 
Construction, Project Inspection 
Professional Licenses: 
Engineer in Training License, 
5 years experience 
 

 
Sergio Tovar 
Director of Operations & Finance 
12 years with firm 
Areas of Expertise: Pre-Construction 
Documentation, Project Budget Analysis, 
Technical Report Review, Project Billing 
Professional Affilications: 
American Concrete Institute 
• ACI Aggregate Testing Technician – Level I, ACI 
Concrete Strength Testing Technician, ACI  

 
                                                                                                  /                           /                      /                 /             /          /       /     /    /  MEG ENGINEERS
 

 
Raul Palma, P.E. (bilingual) CGE 
Geotechnical Engineer 
Principal, 21 years with firm 
Areas of Expertise: 
Geotechnical Engineering & 
Construction Materials Testing 
Professional License: Registered 
Professional Engineer, 38 years 
Experience 
 

 
Juan Borjon, P.E. (bilingual 
Director of Engineering 
3 years with firm 
Areas of Expertise: 
Construction Materials Testing, 
Geotechnical Engineering, Construction, 
Project Inspection 
Professional Licenses: 
Registered Professional Engineer, 
10 years experience, ACI 
 

 
Humberto Palma, NICET, CWI 
(bilingual) 
Materials Manager 
21 years with firm 
Areas of Expertise: 
Construction Materials Testing, Steel 
Construction and Welding 
Professional Licenses: Certified Welding 
Inspector, CWI, TxHMAC Level 1 A&B, 
NICET, 21 years experience 
 

 
Joel Warriner P.E. Sr. (bilingual) 
Geotechnical Engineer 
1 year with firm 
Areas of Expertise: Construction 
Materials Testing, Construction, Project 
Inspection 
Professional Licenses: Registered 
40 year of experience, 8 years of 
Experience in the Dallas-Fort Worth 
  

 
Dr. Thang Pham, Ph.D, P.E. Sr. 
Geotechnical/CMT 
Materials Engineer 
2 years with firm 
Areas of Expertise: 
Geotechnical Engineering & Construction 
Materials Testing 
Professional Licenses: Registered 
Professional Engineer, 20 years exp. 
  
 

 
Robert Estrada 
Business Development 
4 years with firm 
Areas of Expertise: 
Architectural Services Monitor expenditures, 
Quality Control, Staff and Contractor 
Coordination and Schedules 
Professional Affilications: 
American Institute of Architects  
Texas Society of Architects 
 

 



 

 
                                                                                                  /                           /                      /                 /             /          /       /     /    /  MEG ENGINEERS
 

PRESIDENT 
Phone  Email 
956-702-8500 apalma@megengineers.com 
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––– 
PROFILE 
 Mr. Palma serves as office manager of MEG’s Pharr, Texas office. He has 
over 17 years’ experience in the engineering industry and vast knowledge in 
geotechnical engineering and construction materials testing in the Texas. 
Geotechnical projects that Mr. Palma has been involved with including mixed-use 
developments, urban mid-rise buildings, educational facilities, airport facilities, 
parking garages, commercial low-rise to mid-rise buildings, water and wastewater 
treatment facilities, elevated water towers, industrial facilities, multi-family 
developments, churches, residential subdivisions, and general retail centers. 
Pavement design projects that Mr. Palma has been involved with include highways, 
industrial parks, heavy-duty brick paving, freight centers and industrial applications. 
 As President, Mr. Palma‘s responsibilities include coordination of field 
personnel, communication with the client, generation of geotechnical engineering 
reports, evaluating laboratory soil testing, and scheduling and managing field 
personnel. Palma’s responsibilities as a Construction Materials Engineer include 
coordination of field personnel, communication with the client, generation of daily 
logs and weekly status reports, training of technicians, evaluating laboratory and 
field construction materials testing data, and scheduling and managing field 
personnel. 

 

  
AFFILIATIONS 
American Society of Civil Engineers 
GEO Institute 
American Concrete Institute 
Deep Foundation Institute 
EDUCATION 
Graduate of Edinburg High School,  
Edinburg, Texas – 2002 
Bachelors of Science in Civil 
Engineering 
University of Texas San Antonio, San 
Antonio–2006 
WORK HISTORY 
MEG Engineers, Texas 
President, 2023 
MEG Engineers, Texas 
Managing Engineer, 2009-2022 
Professional Service Industries, 
San Antonio, Texas 
Staff Engineer, 2007-2009 
MEG Engineers, Pharr, Texas 
Engineering Staff, 2001-2006 
REGISTRATIONS 
Texas Board of Professional Engineers: 
Registration Number 115936 is Current 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROJECT EXPERIENCE – TEXAS 
EDUCATION 
- Jaime Escalante Middle School, PSJA ISD – Pharr 
- La Joya ISD Stadium Improvements, La Joya ISD - La Joya 
- 6 Story Student Dorms, University of Incarnate Word, 
 San Antonio 
- 9 Story Parking Garage, University of Incarnate Word 
 San Antonio 
- Edinburg CISD Stadium Improvements – Edinburg 
HEAVY INDUSTRIAL 
- Royal Technologies 320,000 sf – Mission 
- Don Hugo Produce 270,000 sf – Edinburg 
- Santana Textiles 500,000 sf combined Edinburg 
- Loop Cold Storage Expansion – McAllen 
- Brownsville Oil Storage Facility, Port of Brownsville, Brownsville 
 
 
 
 
 

PAVEMENTS 
- SH 365 Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Hidalgo County 
- IBTC Corridor Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Hidalgo  
County,  
- Pharr Produce District Industrial Subdivision City of Pharr – Pharr 
- McIntyre Streetscape Brick Paving, City of Edinburg Edinburg 
- FedEX Freight Facility – Harlingen 
- North Edinburg Industrial Park – Edinburg 
PUBLIC 
- NAWSC Regional Water Treatment Plant, Weslaco 
- City of Hidalgo WWTP Improvements – Hidalgo 
- Hidalgo County Precinct No. 2 Office – Pharr 
- San Antonio International Airport Parking Garage San Antonio 
- Harlingen Water Works Elevated Water Storage Tank, Harlingen 
- PSJA ISD Stadium Improvements – Pharr 
 
 
 
 

ANDRES 
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––– 

PALMA P.E. 
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––– 

 

–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––– 

 

mailto:apalma@megengineers.com


 

 
                                                                                                  /                           /                      /                 /             /          /       /     /    /  MEG ENGINEERS
 

DIRECTOR OF ENGINEERING 
Phone  Email 
956-702-8500 jborjon@megengineers.com 
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––– 
PROFILE 
 Mr. Borjon serves as Director of Engineering of MEG’s Pharr, 
Texas offices.  He has over 13 years’ experience in the engineering 
industry and vast knowledge in civil engineering and construction 
materials testing in the Texas area.  Projects that Mr. Borjon has been 
involved with include mixed-use developments, urban mid-rise buildings, 
educational facilities, airport facilities, commercial low-rise to mid-rise 
buildings, water and wastewater treatment facilities, elevated water 
towers, industrial facilities, multi-family developments, churches, 
residential subdivisions, and general retail centers.  Pavement projects 
that Mr. Borjon has been involved with include highways, industrial 
parks, heavy duty concrete/asphalt paving, freight centers, and industrial 
applications. 
 
Mr. Borjon’s responsibilities as a Director of Engineering include 
coordination of field personnel, communication with the client, 
generation of daily logs and weekly status reports, training of 
technicians, evaluating laboratory and field construction materials 
testing data, and scheduling and managing field personnel. 

 

  
AFFILIATIONS 
American Society of Civil Engineers 
Construction Institute 
American Concrete Institute 
Texas Society of Professional Engineers 
EDUCATION 
Graduate of Edinburg High School 
Edinburg, Texas 
2005 
Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering 
University of Texas at Austin, 
Austin 
2009 
WORK HISTORY 
MEG Engineers, Texas 
Director of Engineering, 2023 
MEG Engineers, Pharr, Austin Texas 
Materials Engineer/CMT Technical 
Manager, 2018-2022 
Terracon Consultants, Pharr, Texas 
Senior Staff Engineer, 2014-2018 
Halff Associates, McAllen, Texas 
Civil Engineer, 2012-2013 
SWG Engineering, Weslaco, Texas 
Project Engineer, 2010-2012 
REGISTRATIONS 
Texas Board of Professional Engineers: 
Registration Number 121570 is Current 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROJECT EXPERIENCE – TEXAS 
EDUCATION 
 Carmen Anaya Elementary School Paving Improvements, 

PSJA ISD – Pharr, Texas 
 Bulldog Drive Improvements, McAllen ISD - McAllen, 

Texas  
 Robert Vela High School Performing Arts Center – ECISD 

– Edinburg, Texas 
PAVEMENTS 
 Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority BSIF 

Connector – Hidalgo County, Texas 
 Texas A&M University Kingsville Campus Pavements – 

Kleberg County, Texas 
AIRPORT 
 Valley International Airport Improvements – Harlingen, 

Texas 
 McAllen International Airport Concrete Cores – McAllen, 

Texas 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMERCIAL 
 Love’s Travel Stop – Donna, Texas 
 Pharr Town Center – Pharr, Texas 
 At Home Store – Pharr, Texas 

 
PUBLIC 
 McAllen NWWTP Pump Station Improvements – 

McAllen, Texas 
 Hidalgo County County-Wide Mechanic Shop – Pharr, 

Texas 
 SWSC Elevated Water Storage Tank – Mission, Texas 
 McAllen ISD Homer J. Morris Middle School Paving 

Improvements – McAllen, Texas 
 McAllen ISD Ben Milam Elementary School Pavilion – 

McAllen, Texas 
 South Texas/UTRGV Medical Academic Building – 

Edinburg, Texas 
 Chick-fil-A – McAllen, Edinburg, Pharr, Texas 
 Raising Cane’s – Edinburg, Weslaco, Pharr, Harlingen, 

Texas 
 
 
 

JUAN M. 
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––– 

BORJON P.E. 
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––– 

 

–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––– 

 

mailto:jborjon@megengineers.com


 

 
                                                                                                  /                           /                      /                 /             /          /       /     /    /  MEG ENGINEERS
 

CHIEF GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER 
Phone  Email 
956-300-2500 rpalma@megengineers.com 
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––– 
PROFILE 
 Mr. Palma is a licensed Professional Engineer with over 39 years of 
experience in geotechnical engineering, construction materials testing, management, 
and engineering design of highways, streets, and utilities.  Mr. Palma has directed and 
completed a wide variety of geotechnical projects throughout the Central Texas region. 
As Chief Geotechnical Engineer of the San Benito, Texas office he is responsible for 
overall operations management of the San Benito Office.  
As geotechnical project manager, he is responsible for coordination and completion of 
geotechnical engineering projects. His experience includes subsurface explorations, 
laboratory testing, foundation investigation and design; slope stability assessments and 
remediation design, pre-load fill design; geotechnical plans and specifications 
preparation; and construction monitoring. Client relationships have included city and 
county agencies; engineering and architectural firms; municipal and utility districts, as 
well as private developers and constructors.  
During Mr. Palma’s employment with the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT), 
Mr. Palma gained an extensive background in the area of geotechnical and materials 
engineering serving as the District Materials Engineer for a centralized laboratory for 
TxDOT in the Pharr District located in Pharr, Texas. As the District Materials Engineer 
he was responsible for overseeing the testing and approval of materials for all 
construction projects in the Cameron, Hidalgo Starr, Zapata, Jim Hogg, Brooks, Willacy 
and Kennedy counties. At the end of his tenure with TxDOT, the Pharr District had a 
construction program of approximately $170 million dollars of construction per year. He 
oversaw all the geotechnical exploration and soil testing for all bridge and retaining wall 
structures in these same counties.  Mr. Palma also served as the assistant to the State 
Concrete and Physical Testing Engineer at the Materials & Tests Division of TxDOT 
and during this period he gained extensive experience in concrete, concrete 
admixtures, reinforcing steel, and pre-stressed steel.  Mr. Palma’s extensive experience 
in the area of materials and geotechnical engineering gives our firm a unique ability to 
provide services of the highest professional caliber. 
 

 

  
AFFILIATIONS 
American Society of Civil Engineers 
GEO Institute 
American Concrete Institute 
EDUCATION 
Graduate of Edinburg High School 
Edinburg, Texas 
1978  
Bachelors of Science in Civil 
Engineering 
Princeton University, Princeton, New 
Jersey 
1982, Cum Laude 
WORK HISTORY 
MEG Engineers, Austin, Texas 
President / Chief Geotechnical 
Engineer 
2001- Present  
Texas Department of Transportation 
Pharr, Texas 
District Materials Engineer 
1990-2001  
Texas Department of Transportation 
Pharr, Texas 
Design Engineer 
1983-1989 
REGISTRATIONS 
Texas Board of Professional Engineers: 
Registration Number 65656 is Current 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROJECT EXPERIENCE – TEXAS 
HIGHWAY AND BRIDGES 
 US Highway 83 – FM 494 to Bus 83, Texas Department of 

Transportation – Mission, Texas 
 US 83 Highway  – FM 1426 to FM 493, Texas Department 

of Transportation – Alamo, Texas 
 US Highway 83/77 Interchange, Texas Department of 

Transportation – Harlingen, Texas 
 US Highway 77/83 – US 83 S. to LP 499, Texas 

Department of Transportation – Harlingen, Texas 
 US Highway 77/83, Texas Department of Transportation – 

Brownsville, Texas 
 
HEAVY INDUSTRIAL 
 North Edinburg Industrial Park Phase 1, Edinburg EDC – 

Edinburg, Texas 
 North Edinburg Industrial Park Phase 2, Edinburg EDC – 

Edinburg, Texas 
 Pharr Produce District Subdivision Industrial Park, City of 

Pharr – Pharr, Texas 
 
 
 
 

 Weslaco Industrial Park, Weslaco EDC – Weslaco, Texas 
 IBTC Corridor, Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 

– Hidalgo County, Texas 
PUBLIC 
 Edinburg Public Safety Building, City of Edinburg – 

Edinburg, Texas 
 Daniel Sekula Memorial Library, City of Edinburg – 

Edinburg, Texas 
 Pharr International Bridge Improvements, City of Pharr – 

Pharr, Texas 
 Edinburg City Hall, City of Edinburg – Edinburg, Texas 
 Hidalgo Wastewater Treatment Plant, City of Hidalgo – 

Hidalgo, Texas 
 
 
 
 
 

RAUL 
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––– 

PALMA P.E. 
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––– 

 

–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––– 

 

mailto:rpalma@megengineers.com


 

 

 

Recent TxDOT Projects  
 
1. I-2/I69C Interchange Project 

Dragados-Pulice Joint Venture 
3700 N. Cage Blvd. 
Pharr, TX 78577 
Nathan D. Rodriguez, P.E. 
956-566-7675 
NatRodriguez@dragados-USA.com  
 

2. US 77 (CSJ 0102-04-097) 
VRX, Inc 
2500 Dallas Parkway, Suite 450 
Plano, TX 75093 
Juan Bosquez Jr 
469-867-9571 
Juan.bosquez@vrxglobal.com 
 

3. City of Mission Taylor Road Project (SCS22-
0432) 
Sam Construction Services 
4801 Southwest Parkway 
Building 2, Suite 100 
Austin, TX 78735 
Sam Watson 
512-895-5172 
sam.watson@sam-cs.biz  

 
4. Rehabs 506, 800, & 1479 (SCS20-0316B) 

Sam Construction Services 
4801 Southwest Parkway 
Building 2, Suite 100 
Austin, TX 78735 
Sam Watson 
512-895-5172 
sam.watson@sam-cs.biz 

 
5. Laredo District Asphalt Overlay (SCS20-

0316A) 
Sam Construction Services 
4801 Southwest Parkway 
Building 2, Suite 100 
Austin, TX 78735 
Sam Watson 
512-895-5172 
sam.watson@sam-cs.biz 
 

6. BMT SH99 
AECOM Technicial Services, Inc 
19219 Katy Freeway, Suite 100 
Houston, TX 77094 
Brent Patterson 
281-579-5376 
brent.patterson@aecom.com 
 

7. CEI ELIT IH Kendall Co 
AECOM Technicial Services, Inc 
19219 Katy Freeway, Suite 100 
Houston, TX 77094 
Brent Patterson 
281-579-5376 
brent.patterson@aecom.com 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

mailto:NatRodriguez@dragados-USA.com
mailto:sam.watson@sam-cs.biz
mailto:sam.watson@sam-cs.biz
mailto:sam.watson@sam-cs.biz
mailto:brent.patterson@aecom.com
mailto:brent.patterson@aecom.com


    /           /            /       /       /          /       /     /    /  MEG ENGINEERS

The scope of work to be performed under this 
contract is the scope of work that MEG performs 
daily for our clients in Texas. MEG has the 
necessary capacity to meet Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority needs for Professional 
Services. MEG has the resources and 
experience to provide concurrent project 
construction services to an individual client for 
your detailed project scope of work. Our 
resources can be shifted for operations and our 
staff and inspectors are cross-trained for proper 
allocation of personnel for this specific reason. 

Based on the current workload, resources, and staff of MEG it is estimated that current operations capacity is at 70%. 
There is currently no backlog with our testing Services. Our staffing plan is to never be above 85% capacity, so we  

 are able to expedite services when needed to meet critical project schedules. 

 Based on current and future assignments, it is estimated that during the duration of the project Millennium 
Engineers Group, Inc. will be operating at 80% of capacity. Engineers, Staff, and Inspectors will be able to complete the 
daily anticipated project tasks for this project along with current projects tasks. MEG is proficient in completing daily 
project tasks and expediting the testing and inspection results to the project team for the projects benefit. The project 
team included in this submittal that will be allocated to this project will devote the necessary time to meet your schedule 
and often will be various percentages of their time based on your program needs. Inspectors that are assigned to this 
project will devote 100% of their time to this project when required and additional inspector resources will be available on 
an as needed basis for this project will be devoted 20% to 50% of their time for additional services as needed. 



125 EAST 11TH STREET, AUSTIN, TEXAS 78701-2483 | 512.416.4700 | WWW.TXDOT.GOV 

 

 

OUR VALUES:  People • Accountability • Trust • Honesty 
OUR MISSION:  Connecting You With Texas 

An Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
 

9/21/2023 
 
Raul Palma 
Millennium Engineers Group Inc 
5804 N. Gumwood Street 
Pharr, TX 78577 
 
Re: Annual Update Affidavit (AUA) 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)        
 
Dear Raul Palma: 
 
Upon review of the AUA and supporting documentation, TxDOT has determined that Millennium Engineers 
Group, Inc. continues to meet the eligibility requirements of the federal [DBE] program. 
 
DBE certification does not expire, however, to remain certified it is incumbent on you to submit the AUA on or 
before your next certification anniversary date. A courtesy reminder will be sent from the Diversity Management 
System (DMS) in advance of the AUA due date.  
 
Firms listed in the Texas Unified Certification Program (TUCP) directory located at https://txdot.txdotcms.com 
are currently certified DBE/ACDBEs. All DBEs certified pursuant to 49 CFR Part 26, are automatically certified 
in TxDOT’s Small Business Enterprise (SBE) Program. TxDOT encourages you to utilize the TUCP directory as a 
marketing tool. In that respect you should periodically verify your firm’s certification description and North 
American Industry Classification System (NAICS) code(s) closely describe the goods or services your firm 
provides. 
 
Should your firm be awarded an opportunity to participate on a federally funded project, your firm must 
perform a commercially useful function (CUF). A DBE performs CUF when it is responsible for execution of the 
work of the contract and is carrying out its responsibilities by performing, managing, and supervising the work 
involved. To perform a CUF, the DBE must also be responsible, with respect to materials and supplies used on 
the contract, for negotiating price, determining quality and quantity, ordering the material, and installing (where 
applicable) and paying for the material itself.  
 
For information on TxDOT’s contracting and procurement opportunities visit https://www.txdot.gov. 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 

Michael D. Bryant 
Director 
Civil Rights Division 
 
Cc: Monique Pettaway  



  

 
 

 
 FINANCIAL REFERENCE 

 

MEG has good financial standing and a relationship with the same financial institution for over 
20 years. 

Their contact information is as follows: 
 

Mrs. Cristina Hinojosa 
Highway District 21 Federal Credit Union 

800 W. Ferguson Avenue            
Pharr, Texas 78577 

956/787-2701 
 

 INSURANCE COVERAGE & LEGAL  
 

MEG does not have any key terms of our errors and omissions insurance coverage.   
 
MEG maintains the insurance policies needed for this contract as for all additional contracts 
listed below.  

 
2 million professional liability coverage 

1 million commercial general liability coverage 
1 million umbrella liability coverage 

 
MEG does not have any claims, judgments, and arbitration proceedings, suits pending or 

outstanding against itself or its officers. MEG audited financial statements are available upon 
request. 

 
MEG meets the legal requirements of this request for qualifications as well as all the 

requirements required by the State of Texas and the Texas Board of Professional Engineers. 
 

MEG is a professional engineering firm registered in the State of Texas that has complied with 
all of its obligations, certifications, accreditations, licenses, and procedures required to operate 

in the State of Texas and be accredited by USACE and AASHTO. 
 



      /           /            /       /       /          /       /     /    /  MEG ENGINEERS

Our services encompass all related services to the client including, but not limited to, the following: 

 Conducting initial discussions with the Owner and Design team for specific project requirements, project
schedule, design requirements, and any additional information that will be beneficial to the Owner.
 Conducting a review of local geology at the project location.
 Conducting field soil exploration and testing services.
 Conducting the geotechnical laboratory testing program to meet the project requirements.
 Discussion with the Owner and Design team prior to report preparation to include updated project

changes, requirements, or additional geotechnical options.
 Prepare precise, innovative, cost-effective geotechnical engineering recommendations for all aspects of

the project.
 Discussion after the geotechnical report submittal with the Owner and the Design team to support
implementation of geotechnical recommendations that will be beneficial to the owner.

MEG Engineers exceptional levels of service since 2001: 
- Material Inspection
- Forensics
- Analysis
- Design
- Quality Assurance
- Consulting
- Contract Management
- In-Depth Studies
- Investigations
Construction Management services since 2020:
- Soil On-Site Observation and Testing
- Concrete On-Site Observation and Testing
- Asphalt On-Site Observation and Testing
- Masonry On-Site Observation and Testing



     /           /            /       /       /          /       /     /    /  MEG ENGINEERS

MEG is committed to your projects, program, goals, and timelines for project schedule. We will provide the 
essential staff, equipment, and resources to be available and responsive daily to the Hidalgo County Regional 
Mobility Authority needs based on the district scope of services. Our offices are equipped and trained to provide the 
level of service and responsiveness required by Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. MEG has extensive 
local resources and expertise   to complete large project programs. The key personnel presented in this Statement 
of 
Qualifications are committed to the Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority projects and will be 
available throughout the life  of the project.  

 Project Communication
Communication is the key to all successful projects.
The management of the testing and inspection
program for the project will begin with the introduction
of the project team members. Upon notification of
award, our engineers and staff will meet with
members of the project team who have an active role
in the project. This is a critical phase in to
communicate project information, goals, timelines, or
potential conflicts.
 Review of Construction Schedule
MEG will review the most up-to-date construction
schedule by task after design documents are
completed. The testing and inspection program can
best support regulated testing and control final testing
costs if we clearly understand the project testing
requirements.
 Construction Meetings
From the initiation of the project until the completion,
we propose biweekly or monthly management
meetings with the construction manager or his
representative and other project team members. At
these meetings it is necessary, to review and discuss
testing results, project progress, and project schedule.

MEG has been reliable and responsive to our testing needs. 
– Mr. Ariel Chávez II, PE/RPLS/ Director of Engineering
Services

 Daily Communication
MEG on site representative will maintain daily communication with the contractor’s superintendent, and the designated
project team members in order to schedule the required services and to communicate inspection and test results. Our
project manager will communicate the results of critical off-site testing and inspections to the designated project team
representatives the same day testing is performed.



 
                                                                                                /                           /                      /                 /             /          /       /     /    /  MEG ENGINEERS
 

Internal Quality Management  
Our firm follows a reporting structure that will best benefit our clients. Steps and processes are performed in every task 
of our services to give the client the best product possible. Our client first attitude, service approach, methodology of 
doing business, and internal quality control program allow us to continue providing services throughout the State of 
Texas building long term business relationships.    
 
Reporting Structure  
Reporting Structure starts within our management team. MEG is called for the requested services and to make the 
necessary arrangements to initiate the project. Our dispatcher will dispatch one of our highly trained technicians to the 
requested project site. At this point the technician will perform the requested task(s) and then complete his/her field-
testing report. Field Testing reports are turned in daily and our project managers review the testing reports.  The testing 
reports and then turned into our administrative staff and are typed for second review of the project managers. The 
reports are then reviewed and signed by the office engineer before they are sent to the client. The testing reports 
provided by MEG include all the necessary data that is often requested by the Owner and members of the design team.    
 
Decision Making  
Decision Making by MEG starts within our management team. The decisions made by our staff and key personnel come 
only after consulting with the principal engineer. Timing and scheduling are important factors of construction, and every 
decision made will consider the best interest of our client. Engineering Recommendations are only made by a 
Professional Engineer that is registered in the State of Texas.  
 
Quality Control Plans  
Quality Control is monitored by MEG in every aspect of our work. Our office maintains a quality control program that has 
been approved by the American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) and the State of 
Texas, Department of State Health Services Radiation Control Program. Quality control is monitored and documented 
by our (QA/QC) Manager and Radiation Safety Officer.     
 
Reporting and Billing Quality Assurance  
Quality assurance is maintained by MEG in every aspect of our administrative work. Our office maintains an internal 
quality control program that is used by our administrative staff to audit every process of our reporting and billing 
procedures. This quality assurance measure allows us to maintain the quality service that is essential to our client’s 
business.  
 

 



   /           /            /       /       /          /       /     /    /  MEG ENGINEERS

MEG utilizes a Management System, which facilitates the management of both the Construction Material Testing (CMT) 
and Geotechnical Engineering Testing (GEO) Departments. The system consolidates all aspects of the business workflow, 
from proposal to the final invoice. It allows an organization the ability to set up clients/projects, schedule work orders 
(dispatch requests), report and distribute pertinent data to clients via email or website, employ management tools for lab 
and field testing, and prepare invoices for each project that could be exported to the organization’s accounting system. The 
system also gives the organization’s clients the ability to retrieve reports from the customized reporting website. 

Our team makes recommendation on the course of action to the 
Client when issues of potential delays or increased costs arise 
during the project. Close communication and coordination 
between the contractor, third parties involved in the project and 
our team will be a priority by our team for a successful project. 
Our team operate as a representative of Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority and oversee the day-to-day 
construction activities of the prime contract assigned. Our team 
has extensive experience in administering construction 
contracts and overall management. Our team has experience 
on multiple projects performing Construction Engineering, 
Inspection and Construction Materials Testing services for 
numerous clients in Texas. Our scope of services includes but 
not limited to:  
 Construction Administration Procedures
 Field Reports
 Monthly Progress Reports
 Progress Photos
 Project Progress Meetings
 Schedule Review
 Change Order Review-
 Quality Control
 Safety and Health
 Submittal/ Shop Drawing Control
 Payment Application Review

Millennium Engineers has always provided great, 
professional, friendly service. I highly recommend them. 

Ramiro Gutierrez, P.E., R. Gutierrez Engineering Corp. 
 



     /           /            /       /       /          /       /     /    /  MEG ENGINEERS

Construction Engineering and Management: MEG ensures that the project is completed on time, and on budget and 
within scope. This will be accomplished through review and tracking of baseline schedules and monthly updates, monthly pay 
estimates, change orders, plan quantities and overall project costs. We provide timely processing of contractor submittals, 
shop drawings, and Request for Information (RFIs). We will also work with the Engineer of Record (EOR) as needed 
regarding RFI’s, potential design changes, or plan errors and omissions. We conduct regular progress meetings to promote 
partnering between all parties. We conduct pre-construction meeting with the contractor, Client, and other stakeholders prior 
to the start of the project. During this meeting, an escalation ladder is established to provide guidelines for resolution of 
 construction issues.  
 Construction Administration and 
Inspection: MEG performs all 
necessary inspection to verify work is 
completed in accordance with plans 
and specifications. Daily Work Reports 
(DWR’s) or other required reports will 
be completed to document construction 
progress and inspection activities as 
well as quantities for payment. Our 
inspectors inspect all construction 
activities daily, determine daily need for 
construction materials testing of work in 
progress and materials in use, traffic 
control devices on a daily basis for 
compliance with Traffic Control Plan  
 and TMUTCD. SW3P inspections as per environmental requirements performed in accordance with subject guidelines. 
Construction Materials Testing: MEG performs construction materials testing on all required construction activities and 
materials to ensure compliance with project plans and specifications in accordance with Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority guidelines for sampling and testing. If independent assurance testing is required coordination with the third-party 
testing agency is scheduled at appropriate schedules and frequency. 

Document Control: MEG ensure that all project progress and financial reporting is completed in accordance with contract 
requirements. We log all project correspondence, submittals, change orders, RFI’s, shop drawings, pay estimates, MOH, etc. We 
also verify that the contractor is complying with Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE), Equal Employment (EEO) and Buy 
America guidelines. All DWR’s, pay sheets and material test reports are reviewed for accuracy before submittal.  

Close Out Procedures: Thorough and accurate records is maintained throughout. We generate a project specific close out 
checklist. The checklist is distributed to all parties at the beginning to resolve all discrepancies. The checklist allows for a guide 
during both construction and close out phases. Another part of quality program includes formal audits conducted at 30%, 60%, 
and 90% of construction completed.  
Another tool that we use is performing thorough constructability reviews during the pre-construction phase. We review approved 
plans, specifications, general notes, TCP phasing, baseline schedule, etc. to identify potential plan errors, quantity 
discrepancies, utility conflicts, or potential maintenance issues. All findings during the constructability review are provided to 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority for review and further discussion.  















z

MEG proposes to utilize the latest measurement techniques to effectively perform the services of this agreement 
with our current staff as proposed in our organizational chart. We understand that we need to respond quickly to 
some service requests, and we are practiced in having staff available on short notice, if necessary. Our current 
and projected workloads are such that we are confident of our ability to Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority expectations in terms of having appropriate staff resources available when they are needed. The 
organization chart below reflects the staff we anticipate using for the proposed projects; however, we have 
additional personnel that can also be utilized if needed. 

Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility 

Authority  TEAM PROJECT LEAD 
President / Chief Engineer 

Raul Palma P.E. 

MANAGING ENGINEER 
Principal Engineer 
Raul Palma P.E. 

Construction Material Service Manager 
Juan Borjon, P.E. 

Geotechnical Services Manager 
Juan Palma, R.S.O. 

Environmental Services 
Manager & GeoScientist 

Oscar Bounds 

Geo-Structural Services Manager 
Dr. Thang Pham, PhD, P.E. 

Facilities 
Specialist 

Humberto Palma 
NICET, CWI

Facilities Division 
Manager 

Javier Solis

Director of Administration 
and Project Manager 
Sergio Tovar  

Accounts Administrative Staff 
Receivables Administrative Staff 
Dispatching and Logistics

Graduate Engineers 
Cronos Oros EIT 
Mario Suarez EIT 

Salma Martinez 
Leticia Puente 
Raul A. Palma 

Construction Materials Inspectors 
Construction Materials Technicians 

Material Testing Laboratory and Field Staff 

Material Testing Specialist 
Adolfo Vela 

 

Material Testing Specialist 
Adolfo Vela 

Project Manager

Director of Administration 
and Project Manager 
Sergio Tovar  Facilities Project 

Manager 
Robert Estrada

Facilities 
Specialists 
Architects 
Engineers 
Scientists 
Contractors

Facilities 
Administration

  /           /            /       /             /          /       /     /    /  MEG ENGINEERS











https://megengineers.com/index.php/teaming

MEG has minority certifications and accreditations from numerous organizations specific 
our company. Please click on the hyperlink below to view the detailed certification. If you 
have any questions, please contact: Andres Palma: apalma@megengineers.com 
 

Pharr, Texas, USA 
http://s202091680.onlinehome.us/wp-

content/uploads/2020/03/AASHTO-Accreditation-053119-1.pdf 

 

Austin, Texas, USA 
http://s202091680.onlinehome.us/wp-

content/uploads/2020/03/AASHTO-Accreditation-053119-1.pdf 

Pharr, Texas 
 

http://s202091680.onlinehome.us/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/MEG-
USACE-Validation-Certificate-1.pdf 

 

Pharr, Texas 
https://megengineers.com/index.php/teaming/ 

 

Odessa, Texas 
https://megengineers.com/index.php/teaming/ 

 

Houston, Texas 
https://megengineers.com/index.php/teaming/ 

 

Laredo, Texas 
https://megengineers.com/index.php/teaming/ 

 

 
                                                                                               /                           /                      /                 /             /          /       /     /    /  MEG ENGINEERS
 

 
 





SOUTH CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL CERTIFICATION AGENCY 
 

Your unified certification source 
www.sctrca.org

 
June 2, 2023  
 
 
Raul Palma 
Millennium Engineers Group, Inc. 
PO Box 4569 
Edinburg, TX 78540 
 
Dear Raul Palma: 
 
We are pleased to inform you that your application for certification in our Small, Minority, Woman and Veteran Business
Enterprise (S/M/W/V) Program has been approved. Your firm met the requirements of the SCTRCA Policy and Procedure
Manual and is currently certified as a: 
 
*ESBE HABE MBE SBE 
 
Certification Number: 223066103 
Certification Expiration: June 2, 2025 
 
Providing the following products or services: 
NAICS 541330: CIVIL ENGINEERING SERVICES 
NAICS 541370: LAND SURVEYING SERVICES 
NAICS 541380: GEOTECHNICAL TESTING LABORATORIES OR SERVICES 
NAICS 541990: ALL OTHER PROFESSIONAL, SCIENTIFIC, AND TECHNICAL SERVICES 
 
On the two year anniversary date of your certification, you are required to provide a renewal application affirming that no
changes have occured affecting your certification status. The SCTRCA will send you a Certification Renewal reminder sixty (60)
days prior to your expiration date. The SCTRCA will no longer include a certificate upon certification renewals. Your expiration
date is June 2, 2025. 
 
Please notify this office within thirty (30) days of any changes affecting the size, ownership, control requirements, or any
material change in the information provided in the submission of the certification application. Thank you in advance. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Sandra Ramos 
Executive Director



Texas Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Certificate

Certificate/VID Number: 1742996684300 
Approval Date: September 28, 2023 
Scheduled Expiration Date: September 28, 2027 

The Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts (CPA), hereby certifies that

Millennium Engineers Group Inc

has successfully met the established requirements of the State of Texas Historically Underutilized Business
(HUB) Program to be recognized as a HUB. This certificate printed September 28, 2023, supersedes any
registration and certificate previously issued by the HUB Program. If there are any changes regarding the
information (i.e., business structure, ownership, day to day management, operational control, business
location) provided in the submission of the business; application for registration/certification as a HUB, you
must immediately (within 30 days of such changes) notify the HUB Program in writing. The CPA reserves
the right to conduct a compliance review at any time to confirm HUB eligibility. HUB certification may be
suspended or revoked upon findings of ineligibility.

Statewide HUB Program
Statewide Procurement Division

Note: In order for State agencies and institutions of higher education (universities) to be credited for utilizing this business as a HUB, they must award
payment under the Certificate/VID Number identified above. Agencies, universities and prime contractors are encouraged to verify the company’s HUB
certification prior to issuing a notice of award by accessing the Internet (https://mycpa.cpa.state.tx.us/tpasscmblsearch/index.jsp) or by contacting the HUB
Program at 512-463-5872 or toll-free in Texas at 1-888-863-5881.





















AGGREGATE

Aggregate - C 29 - Unit Weight and Voids in Aggregate
Aggregate - C 40 - Organic Impurities
Aggregate - D 75 - Sampling
Aggregate - C 88 - Sulfate Soundness
Aggregate - C 117 - Material Finer than 75 μm (No. 200) Sieve

Aggregate - C 127 - Specific Gravity & Absorption in Coarse Aggregate
Aggregate - C 128 - Specific Gravity & Absorption in Fine Aggregate
Aggregate - C 136 - Sieve Analysis of Aggregates
Aggregate - C 142 - Clay Lumps
Aggregate - E 329 - Standard Specification for Agencies Engaged in Construction Inspection, Testing, or Special Inspection
Aggregate - C 566 - Total Moisture Content
Aggregate - C 702 - Reducing Samples to Testing Size
Aggregate - C 1077 - Concrete and Concrete Aggregate Testing Standards (Quality Standards)
Aggregate - D 2419 - Sand Equivalent Value
Aggregate - D 3666 - Minimum Requirements for Agencies Testing and Inspecting Road and Paving Materials
Aggregate - D 4791 - Flat and Elongated Particles in Course Aggregate
Aggregate - D 5821 - Percentage of Fractured Particles in Coarse Aggregate

BITUMINOUS

Bituminous - TEX 206 - TEXAS DOT - Compacting Asphalt with Texas Gyratory Compactor
Bituminous - Tex-F 208 - Test for Stabilometer Value of Bituminous Mixtures
Bituminous - E 329 - Standard Specification for Agencies Engaged in Construction Inspection, Testing, or Special Inspection
Bituminous - D 546 - Sieve Analysis of Mineral Filler
Bituminous - D 979 - Sampling Bituminous Paving Mixtures
Bituminous - D 2041 - Theoretical Maximum Specific Gravity & Density (Rice)
Bituminous - D 2726 - Bulk Specific Gravity and Density
Bituminous - D 2950 - Density of Bituminous Concrete in Place by Nuclear Methods
Bituminous - D 3203 - Percent Air Voids

USACE CERTIFICATE
OF

LABORATORY VALIDATION

Millennium Engineers Group, Inc.
5804 North Gumwood Avenue

Pharr, TX, United States
Andres Palma
(956) 702-8500

has demonstrated, by abbreviated audit of its AASHTO accreditation, or by inspection of required records, equipment, procedures,
facilities, and/or final reports, its proficiency to perform testing of construction materials, as established by the quality standards

of AASHTO R 18 guidance and the requirements of the applicable ASTM standards.

THIS USACE CERTIFICATE OF LABORATORY VALIDATION IS ACCURATE AS OF ITS DATE AND TIME OF
GENERATION:

14 FEB 2023 AT 11:01 HOURS

ALL METHODS LISTED ON THIS CERTIFICATE OF VALIDATION WILL EXPIRE ON 02/13/2025

PLEASE CONFIRM THE CURRENT VALIDATION STATUS OF THIS LABORATORY USING THE SEARCH FEATURE ON
OUR PUBLIC WEBSITE: https://mtc.erdc.dren.mil

Chad A. Gartrell, PE, Director
USACE Materials Testing Center

Vicksburg, Mississippi, USA

MTC
MATERIALS TESTING

CENTER

https://mtc.erdc.dren.mil/searchvalidation.aspx


Bituminous - D 3549 - Thickness or Height of Compacted Asphalt Mixture Specimens
Bituminous - D 3666 - Minimum Requirements for Agencies Testing and Inspecting Road and Paving Materials
Bituminous - D 5444 - Mechanical Size Analysis of Extracted Aggregate
Bituminous - D 6307 - Asphalt Content of Hot-Mix Asphalt by Ignition Method
Bituminous - D 6926 - Preparation of Bituminous Specimens using Marshall
Bituminous - D 6927 - Marshall Stability and Flow of Bituminous Mixtures

CONCRETE

Concrete - C 31 - Making and Curing Test Specimens in the Field
Concrete - C 39 - Compressive Strength of Cylindrical Specimens
Concrete - C 42 - Drilled Cores and Sawed Beams
Concrete - C 78 - Flexural Strength by Third Point Loading
Concrete - C 138 - Unit Weight and Air Content by Gravimetric
Concrete - C 143 - Slump
Concrete - C 172 - Sampling
Concrete - C 173 - Air Content by Volumetric ***required if C231 not performed***
Concrete - C 231 - Air Content by Pressure ***required if C173 not performed***
Concrete - C 511 - Moist Cabinets, Moist Rooms, Water Storage Tanks
Concrete - C 617 - Capping Cylindrical Specimens
Concrete - C 1064 - Temperature of Concrete
Concrete - C 1077 - Concrete and Concrete Aggregate Testing Standards (Quality Standards)
Concrete - C 1231 - Unbonded Caps
Concrete - C 1542 - Measuring Length of Concrete Cores

MASONRY

Masonry - C 511 - Mixing Rooms, Moist Cabinets, Cure Tanks
Masonry - C 780 - Evaluation of Mortars for Plain and Reinforced Unit Masonry
Masonry - C 1019 - Sampling and Testing Grout

SOILS

Soils - G 51 - Measuring pH of Soil for Use in Corrosion Testing
Soils - G 57 - Field Measurement of Soil Resistivity Using the Wenner Four-Electrode Method
Soils - G 187 - Measurement of Soil Resistivity Using the Two-Electrode Soil Box Method
Soils - E 329 - Standard Specification for Agencies Engaged in Construction Inspection, Testing, or Special Inspection
Soils - D 421 - Dry Preparation for Particle Size Distribution & Soil Constants
Soils - D 558 - Moisture-Density of Soil-Cement
Soils - D 698 - Compaction Characteristics by Standard Effort
Soils - D 854 - Specific Gravity of Soils
Soils - D 1140 - Material Finer than 75 �m (No. 200) Sieve
Soils - D 1556 - Density & Unit Weight by Sand Cone
Soils - D 1557 - Compaction Characteristics by Modified Effort
Soils - D 1883 - CA Bearing Ratio (CBR)
Soils - D 2166 - Unconfined Compressive Strength
Soils - D 2216 - Water Content
Soils - D 2434 - Permeability of Granular Soils (Constant Head Method) (Withdrawn 2015)
Soils - D 2435 - One-Dimensional Consolidation Properties
Soils - D 2487 - Classification of Soils
Soils - D 2488 - Description & Identification of Soils (Visual-Manual Procedure)
Soils - D 2850 - Unconsolidated, Undrained Strength in Triaxial Compression
Soils - D 2937 - Density by Drive Cylinder Method
Soils - D 3740 - Soil and Rock Testing Standards (Quality Standard)
Soils - D 4318 - Liquid & Plastic Limits & Plasticity Index
Soils - D 4546 - One-Dimensional Swell or Settlement Potential
Soils - D 4643 - Determination of Water Content of Soil by Microwave Oven
Soils - D 4718 - Correction of Unit Weight and Water Content for Soils Containing Oversize Particles
Soils - D 4767 - Consolidated-Undrained Triaxial Compression
Soils - D 4829 - Expansion Index of Soils
Soils - D 4943 - Shrinkage Factors of Cohesive Soils by the Water Submersion Method
Soils - D 4972 - pH of Soils
Soils - D 5084 - Hydraulic Conductivity using a Flexible Wall Permeameter
Soils - D 6913 - Particle-Size Distribution of Soils Using Sieve Analysis
Soils - D 6938 - Density and Water Content by Shallow Depth Nuclear Method
Soils - D 7928 - Fine Grain Distribution with Hydrometer



 

Geotechnical /  Environmental  / Forensic  / Construction Materials Testing  /  Consulting  /  Geostructural  /  Facilities  
 

 
MEG Engineers – Pharr 

www.megengineers.com,  5804 N. Gumwood Ave. 
Pharr, Texas 78577 

 
956-702-8500, apalma@megengineers.com 





M  1, 2024 

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS TO PROVIDE 

CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS TESTING, LABORATORY 

AND FORENSIC SERVICES 
 

FOR  

SOQ – CMT LAB AND FORENSIC SERVICES – 2024‐01 

S   

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL  

MOBILITY AUTHORITY  

(HCRMA) 

ATTN: MS. PILAR RODRIGUEZ, P.E. 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

203 W Newcombe Avenue,  

Pharr, Texas 78577 

 

 



 

 

Intertek-PSI 
2020 North Loop 499, Suite 302 
Harlingen, TX 78550 

Tel +1 956 423 6826 
Fax +1 956 423 5735 
intertek.com/building 
  

March 1, 2024 
 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 
Pilar Rodriguez, P.E. 
Execu�ve Director 
203 W Newcombe Ave 
Pharr, Texas 78577 
 
Re.: Statement of Qualifica�ons for Construc�on Materials Tes�ng Laboratory Services and Forensic Inves�ga�on 
and Evalua�on of In-Place Construc�on Materials 365 Tollway Project – 2024-01. 
 
Dear Mr. Rodriguez, 
 
Professional Service Industries, Inc. (PSI), an Intertek company, would like to express our interest in providing Materials 
Tes�ng Laboratory and Forensic services to the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA).  PSI is a 
na�onwide engineering and consul�ng firm dis�nguished as a leader in providing Geotechnical Engineering, 
Construc�on Materials Engineering and Tes�ng Services, Environmental Consul�ng, Storm Water Consul�ng and 
Inspec�on, Roof Consul�ng and Facili�es Engineering. PSI has solid creden�als and brings the following benefits to 
your project: 

LOCAL EXPERIENCE - The predecessor companies of PSI were established approximately 100 years ago.  The Harlingen 
office of PSI was established in 1974 and currently has approximately 15 employees. PSI currently has 17 offices within 
the State of Texas and approximately 100 offices na�onwide to service this project. PSI is uniquely qualified to perform 
the requested services for the HCRMA. 

NATIONAL EXPERTISE - PSI has conducted geotechnical engineering, construc�on materials tes�ng and inspec�on for 
numerous municipali�es and coun�es throughout the U.S. 

APPROACH - Quality is a process, not a des�na�on, and we work to imitate our successes and overcome any 
shortcomings. Our goal for quality performance is to provide professional services of such quality that our clients 
receive superior value and our employees grow and share in our firm’s success. 
 
FINANCIAL STABILITY - PSI, with annual building and construc�on revenues of $1.1 billion, is a leading independent 
engineering and tes�ng firm and ranked #23 by ENR Top 500 Design Firms List. 
 
We are confident that upon review of PSI’s qualifica�ons and experience, you will determine that we are excep�onally 
well-qualified to join your project team. We are commited to the success of our clients, not only in the successful 
comple�on of their projects, but also in con�nuing to develop strong working rela�onships, resul�ng in a teamwork 
environment.  At the appropriate �me, we would be pleased to further discuss our service capabili�es for your project.  
If there are any ques�ons, please contact our office. 

Respec�ully submited,  
Professional Service Industries, Inc.  
Texas Firm Registra�on No. F-3307 

 
 

 

Edward Pruske Raymundo G. Martinez, P.G. S. Peter Gonzales, P.E.  
Business Development  Manager Branch Manager Project Manager CMT Services  

http://www.intertek.com/


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

FIRM INFORMATION ...................................................................................................................................................... 1 

EXPERIENCE- PROJECT PROFILES ................................................................................................................................... 7 

CURRENT WORKLOAD ................................................................................................................................................... 9 

SUBCONSULTANTS ....................................................................................................................................................... 10 

LITIGATION DISCLOSURE .............................................................................................................................................. 11 

LIABILITY INSURANCE COVERAGE ................................................................................................................................ 12 

BANK REFERENCE ........................................................................................................................................................ 14 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ........................................................................................................................................ 15 

STANDARD FORM 330 .................................................................................................................................................. 20 

FIRM’S ABILITY ............................................................................................................................................................. 21 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST ................................................................................................................................................ 22 

 



FIRM INFORMATION 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 1 

FIRM INFORMATION 
 
1. Firm name, including the addresses of all firm offices iden�fying in which office the work will be performed. 
 
Name: Professional Service Industries, Inc. (PSI) 
 
Local Office: 
2020 N. Loop 499, Suite 302 
Harlingen, Texas 78550 
Phone: 956.423.6826 
 
Professional Service Industries was incorporated in Delaware, June 26, 1972. However, the name was not used in the 
marketplace un�l the 1980’s. The company was founded as A&H Materials Tes�ng in 1961 in Champaign-Urbana, 
Illinois. An addi�onal former name is Pitsburgh Tes�ng Laboratories (1881- 1986). 
In 2015 Professional Service Industries, Inc. was acquired by Intertek, but con�nues to do business as Professional 
Service Industries, Inc. (PSI). We s�ll fill out our prequalifica�on statements as Professional Service Industries, Inc. (PSI). 
PSI is headquartered at 545 E. Algonquin Road, Arlington Heights, IL 60005. 

Professional Service Industries, Inc. (PSI) is a na�onally recognized consul�ng engineering and tes�ng firm providing 
integrated services in several disciplines, including environmental consul�ng, geotechnical engineering, construc�on 
materials tes�ng and engineering. We are a leader among the na�on’s independent tes�ng organiza�ons and rank 
among the country’s largest consul�ng engineering firms. 

PSI has been providing industry businesses with accurate, objec�ve and useful informa�on for more than 100 years. 
Today, we employ approximately 1,800 skilled personnel in 100 offices na�onwide. Our Harlingen Office has been 
ac�ve since 1974, and it has successfully managed numerous projects over the last 40 years. We have been team 
members with municipali�es in Central/South Texas: City of Edinburg; City of Mercedes; City of Pharr; City of Harlingen, 
City of Cotulla, City of Aus�n, City of San Antonio, City of Round Rock, City of Cedar Park, City of Killeen, and the City 
of Harker Heights, just to name a few. 

Addi�onal Office Loca�ons 
PSI currently has 17 offices within the State of Texas and approximately 100 offices na�onwide to service this project. 
All services will be performed from our local office in Harlingen. See below our addi�onal Texas offices loca�ons. 
 

Aus�n 
2600 McHale Court, Suite 
125 Aus�n, TX 78758 
P: 512.491.0200 

Elmendorf  
16015 Shady Falls Rd,  
Elmendorf, TX 78112 
P: (210) 635-8100 

Harker Heights 
1200 South Amy Lane, Bldg. 4 
Harker Heights, TX 76548 
P: 254.699.1314 

Plano 
1909 10th Street, Suite 100 
Plano, TX 75074 
P: 972.542.1447 

Clute 
7000 Lewis Street 
Clute, TX 7751 
P: 979.265.2509 

El Paso 
4601 Ripley Drive 
El Paso, TX 79906 
P: 915.584.1317 

Houston 
3730 Dacoma Street 
Houston, TX 77092 
P: 713.224.2047 

San Antonio  
3 Burwood Lane 
San Antonio, TX 78216 
P: 210.342.9377 

Corpus Chris� 
810 South Padre Island Dr. 
Corpus Chris�, TX 78416 
P: 361.854.4801 

Fort Worth 
7550 Sand Street 
Fort Worth, TX 76118 
P: 817.284.3783 

La Porte 
1413 W. Barbours Cut Blvd. 
La Porte, TX 77571 
P: 281.471.2900 

Spring 
240 Spring Hills Dr, Ste 415 
Spring, TX 77386 
P: 281.209.1024 

Dallas 
4087 Schilling Way 
Dallas, TX 785237 
P: 214.330.9211 

Grapevine 
1215 Mustang Drive 
Grapevine, TX 76051 
P: 817.601.3853 

Odessa 
2700 West 42nd Street 
Odessa, TX 79764 
P: 432.614.0688 

Victoria 
402 Stephenson Street 
Victoria, TX 77904 
P: 361.575.0281 

 



FIRM INFORMATION 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 2 

 
2. Name, posi�on, phone, email, and fax numbers of contact person. 

Raymundo G. Mar�nez, P.G 
Branch Manager 
raymundo.mar�nez@intertek.com 
Mobile    956.254.6537 
Office      956.423.6826 
Fax  956 423 5735 
 
3. Names of principals in the firm; years firm has been in business. 

PSI and predecessor companies have a history of over 142 years of con�nuous opera�on (1881). PSI was incorporated 
in 1972 (52 years). 

Execu�ve Team 

Name Title Loca�on Years with 
Intertek 

Years of Experience 
in Industry 

Carlos Velasco President La�n 
America and Global 

B&C 

200 Westlake Park Blvd. 
Houston, TX 77079 

20 20 

Ajay Agarwal Chief Financial Officer 
B&C North America 

545 Algonquin Road, 
Arlington Heights, IL 60005. 

 

11 11 

Todd Andrews Secretary 545 Algonquin Road, 
Arlington Heights, IL 60005. 

5 27 

Amanda Bellgardt VP Human Resources 
USA & Canada 

4700 Broadmoor SE 
Kentwood, MI 49512 

12 20 

Julian Burge Treasurer 200 Westlake Park Blvd. 
Houston, TX 77079 

9 9 

 
4. Number of staff by discipline in the office that will be working on project, copies of their resumes and appointed 
project manager for proposed projects. 

Locally, the Harlingen branch has 15 full �me employees.  

Discipline Number of Staff 
Engineer and Graduate Engineer 2 
Project Managers 4 
Technicians 9 

 

In addi�on, we have the dis�nct advantage of being able to draw resources, when necessary, from nearby offices.  PSI 
has 17 offices in the State of Texas from which it can provide engineers, scien�sts, technicians and experts in the field 
to ensure that all jobs are completed to the sa�sfac�on of our clients.  This allows us to be able to handle virtually any 
size or combina�on of projects.   

The project manager for the proposed projects will be S. Peter Gonzales, P.E. See below Resumes for the key personnel.  

 



FIRM INFORMATION 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 3 

• RAYMUNDO MARTINEZ, P.G. 
BRANCH MANAGER, HARLINGEN, TEXAS 
STARTED WITH INTERTEK-PSI: 1998-2005, 2018 /YEARS IN INDUSTRY: 24 
Education  
B.S. in Geology, University of Texas, San Antonio, 2000 
Certifications/Registrations/Technical Training  
License Geoscientist (P.G.)  
Professional Experience  
Mr. Martinez currently serves as Branch Manager for the PSI Harlingen office and is responsible for leadership, 
administering and managing all geotechnical, environmental and construction material testing services for the PSI 
Gulf Coast Region. Mr. Martinez served as a project manager with PSI between 1998-2005. During that time, his 
background included scheduling and coordinating drilling, drilling equipment and procedures, logging, laboratory 
testing on soils, maintaining laboratory calibration on equipment, collaborating closely with clients and writing 
proposals and reports. He also has extensive experience in managing multiple projects involving 
exploration/production in oil and gas industries for the past 13 years. This includes being responsible for updating all 
projects to higher management and geoscientist; oversaw multiple drilling operations in the Powder River Basin and 
Wind River Basin in Wyoming; stayed abreast of changing local, state, and national environmental laws, and policies 
to ensure compliance and the utmost standards. 
Representative Project Experience 
• City of Pharr TxDOT WA 1, Contract No.36-01DP0011 Highway/Roadway 
• CDBG-FILMORE STREET IMP, Construction Materials Testing, City of Harlingen 
• 2022 ST IMP. PROGRAM PROJECT, Construction Materials Testing, City of Harlingen 
• TXDOT LOOP 499 SIDEWALK PRJT, Construction Materials Testing, City of Harlingen 
• Burns road street imp #2, Construction Materials Testing, Cameron County 
• Primera road (City of Primera), Construction Materials Testing, Cameron County 
• Scott Sloane Parking lot imp., Construction Materials Testing, Cameron County 
• VARIOUS STREET IMP - CIP #1, Construction Materials Testing, City of Brownsville 
• SOUTHMOST NATURE TRAIL - PH II, Construction Materials Testing, City of Brownsville 
• IDEA Public Schools, Harlingen Academy/College Prep_Ph1, - Harlingen, Tx 
• Thrive School Addition– IDEA Toros, Edinburg, TX: Project consisted of a one-story 3,500 sq. ft. building addition 

which will be wood frame structure 
• Burns Motor Jeep Dealership: Project consisted of a one-story 12,916 sq. �. building with 45,684 sq. �. of 

parking space area.  
• Rayos Del Sol Solar Project, observed and tested on 435 axial and lateral pile load tests for a total of 36 solar 

array blocks. In addition, provided densities for all utilities trenches and access roads. 
• USBP Remote Camera Surveillance Towers– Laredo, TX  
• Eight Story La Quinta – Downtown San Antonio, TX  
• Proposed Landfill Study – Los Fresnos, TX  
• Calaveras Dam – San Antonio, TX  
•  Braunig Dam – San Antonio, TX   
• El Paso Pipeline – San Antonio, TX 
 

 

 

 

 



FIRM INFORMATION 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 4 

• WILLIAM CIGGELAKIS, P.E. 
CHIEF ENGINEER – PRINCIPAL IN CHARGE 
STARTED WITH INTERTEK-PSI: 1997 /YEARS IN INDUSTRY: 44 
Education  
B.S., Civil Engineering, Rutgers University, 1977 
Certifications/Registrations/Technical Training  
Professional Engineer, #52549, Texas, 1982 
TxDOT Personnel Sequence, #000002723 A2LA ISO 
17025 
Examiner for Field Testing Technician (ACI), Grade I, 
Nationwide, 1985 
Examiner for Flat Work Finishers (ACI), Nationwide, 
1985 
Examiner for Laboratory Technician (ACI), Nationwide, 
1985  
Asphalt Mix Designs, Asphalt Institute 

Basics of Repair Materials, NRMCA 
Certifications (NRMCA), Nationwide  
Concrete Inspector (ACI), 318 Building Code 
Certified Nuclear Density Gauge Operator, #18329, 
Texas, 1991 
Repair & Rehabilitation of Concrete Structures, ACI 
Repair of Parking Structures (NRMCA) 
Repair of Slabs on Grade (ACI) 
Structural Concrete Repair Methods (NRMCA) 
Welding Inspections (AWS), 1980 

Memberships/Affiliations 
• American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE) 
• Texas Council of Engineering Laboratories (TCEL) 
• American Concrete Institute (ACI) 
• Committee C610 Member, Field Technician Certification 
• Committee C620 Member, Laboratory Technician Certification 
• Committee 228 Member, Nondestructive Examination Committee 543 Member, Concrete Piles and Auger Cast 

Piers 
Professional Experience  
Mr. Ciggelakis is the Chief Engineer for the SW United States Operations and has approximately 44 years of 
Engineering Experience.  He is Pre-Certified with Texas Department Of Transportation in work category’s 11.1.1-
Roadway Construction Management And Inspection, 11.2.1-Major Bridge Construction Management And Inspection, 
12.1.1 Asphaltic Concrete, 12.1.2- Portland Cement Concrete, 12.2.1 - Plant Inspection And Testing, 14.1.1-Soil 
Exploration, 14.2.1-Geotechnical Testing And 14.3.1-Transportation Foundation Studies. He is a national member of 
ACI and serves as a technical reviewer for the publication Concrete International. He is an examiner for the laboratory 
and field certification program for engineering technicians, as well as flat work finishers.  He has been the testing 
services manager for many large and varied projects worldwide, including offshore oil terminal facilities, convention 
centers, high-rise buildings, international airport facilities and international corporate office headquarters. He has 
provided forensics and expert witness testimony for numerous concrete related issues. 
Representative Project Experience 
• City of Pharr TxDOT WA 1, Contract No.36-01DP0011 Highway/Roadway 
• Precast / Prestressed Concrete Institute (2015)  
• TXDOT- (2003-2013) Project Manager for the inspection and quality control of prefabricated products to include 

structural steel with critical weld analysis and pre-stressed concrete bridge elements. 
• National Precast Concrete Association  
• Post Tension Institute; Worldwide- Certification of plants manufacturing pre-stressed steel wire strand. 
• City Creek Rising, Salt Lake City, UT, Quality Control Consultant  
• Harris County: North Harris County, Texas – Project manager of several miles of road construction and two bridges 

jointly funded by VIA Metro and Harris County. 
• Valero World Headquarters, San Antonio, TX,  
• Off-site Structural Steel Fabrication Inspection for the U.S. Moscow Embassy, San Angelo, TX 
• City of San Antonio, San Antonio International Airport; CIP Project 426. 
• City of San Antonio, San Antonio International Airport; Reconstruction of Taxiway Hotel 
• City of San Antonio, San Antonio International Airport; Overnight Parking and Approach Apron 
• City of San Antonio, San Antonio International Airport; Reconstruction of Taxiway ‘G’ 



FIRM INFORMATION 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 5 

• S. PETER GONZALES, P.E. 
PROJECT MANAGER CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL TESTING SERVICES  
STARTED WITH INTERTEK-PSI: 2010 /YEARS IN INDUSTRY: 30 
Education  
B.S., Ocean Engineering, Texas A&M University, College Station, 1993 
M.S., Civil Engineering, Texas A&M, University, College Station, 1999 
Certifications/Registrations/Technical Training  
Registered Professional Engineer #97592, Texas 
City of San Antonio Special Inspector (No. 97592) 
TxDOT Precertification:  
• 12.1.3 Materials Engineering 
• 14.1.1 Soil Exploration 
• 14.2.1 Geotechnical Testing 
Memberships/Affiliations 
Board of Directors Bexar Chapter of Texas Society of Professional Engineers 
Professional Experience  
Mr. Gonzales has extensive knowledge in managing the Construction and Materials Engineering Testing department 
leading special inspectors, engineering technicians, and administrative staff to provide testing and inspection services 
for commercial, institutional, municipal, and federal clients. His experience includes estimating level of effort, 
sampling and testing quantities and defining inspection scopes of work. His work also includes reviewing testing 
reports, inspection reports, and utility installation testing reports; preparing and submitting reports of required special 
inspections to the Registered Design Professional in Responsible Charge; interpreting plans, specifications, and 
geotechnical reports and implement testing programs to meet project requirements;  provides support to project 
teams to solve constructability issues; trains field and laboratory staff in the performance of ASTM, AASHTO and 
TxDOT Testing Methods. He serves as a mentor to project management staff in report writing, communications skills, 
and managing budgets. 
Mr. Gonzales develops and maintains department quality system, oversees proficiency sample program and interact 
with ASSHTO re:source, CCRL, and USACE Materials Testing Center.   
Representative Project Experience 
• City of Pharr TxDOT WA 1, Contract No.36-01DP0011 Highway/Roadway 
• CDBG-FILMORE STREET IMP, Construction Materials Testing, City of Harlingen 
• 2022 ST IMP. PROGRAM PROJECT, Construction Materials Testing, City of Harlingen 
• TXDOT LOOP 499 SIDEWALK PRJT, Construction Materials Testing, City of Harlingen 
• Burns road street imp #2, Construction Materials Testing, Cameron County 
• Primera road (City of Primera), Construction Materials Testing, Cameron County 
• Scott Sloane Parking lot imp., Construction Materials Testing, Cameron County 
• VARIOUS STREET IMP - CIP #1, Construction Materials Testing, City of Brownsville 
• SOUTHMOST NATURE TRAIL - PH II, Construction Materials Testing, City of Brownsville 
• Trinity University Science Building, San Antonio, Texas 
• NEISD Krueger Middle School- Campus Replacement Phase II 
• SWISD Legacy Highschool- Stadium Seating, HS Stadium Visitor Parking 
• AJ Brewmeister Middle School- Additions and Renovations 
• Seguin High School Stadium Concrete Flatwork Study 
• Kerrville ISD Hal Peterson- Post Pad Installation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FIRM INFORMATION 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 6 

• ERNESTO GOMEZ 
PROJECT MANAGER CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS TESTING 
STARTED WITH INTERTEK-PSI: 2010 /YEARS IN INDUSTRY: 36 
Education  
• High School Diploma - John Marshall High School 
Certifications/Registrations/Technical Training 
• Project Management Cer�fica�on Program, PSI YEAR 2011 
• Cer�fied Moisture/Density Gauge Operator 
• TXDOT SuperPave Cer�fied Technician 
• Asphalt Ins�tute SuperPave Cer�fied Technician 
• TXDOT Level 1A Certified Asphalt Plant Specialist 
• TXDOT Level 1B Certified Asphalt Roadway Specialist 
• TXDOT Agg 101 Certified Aggregate Specialist 
• TXDOT Level II Certified Asphalt Design Specialist 
Professional Experience  
Mr. Gomez has 13 years as a Project Lead in PSI and over 36 years of quality control experience in construc�on 
materials tes�ng and inspec�on services. During that �me, he has conducted reinforcing steel inspec�ons, drilled pier 
sha� inspec�on, concrete tes�ng, field density tes�ng and extensive asphalt materials inspec�on and tes�ng. His 
laboratory experience includes soil moisture-density rela�ons, sieve analysis of soil, aggregate, and asphalt. Site 
experience includes City of San Antonio Street Renova�on projects, hospitals, TXDOT and military projects, schools, 
residen�al and commercial projects. He serves as a Project Manager and as an Asphalt Supervising Laboratory and 
Field technician Supervisor for Intertek- PSI. 
Representative Projects Experience 
• TXDOT CONTRACT #36-0IDP0011. Materials Testing performed and supervised all sampling, testing, inspection 

work and related services for Asphaltic and Concrete construction for the following project: CSJ: 2660-01-011, 
CSJ: 0483-01-056 and CSJ: 0037-09-033 for various locations in the Laredo District. 

• Taxiway R. Rehabilitation & MSW Removal, San Antonio, Texas. City of San Antonio Aviation Department. Project 
Manager Materials Testing. Monitor project budget, Purchase Orders and invoice submission. Perform asphaltic 
lab testing.  

• W. Commerce (Frio to Colorado St), San Antonio Texas. Project Manager Materials Testing. Monitor project 
budget, Purchase Orders and invoice submission. Perform asphaltic lab testing. Our services included field density 
observations and testing, asphalt observations and testing, asphalt coring, concrete observations and testing and 
Hamburg wheel test. 

• Fire Station no. 24, San Antonio Texas. Project Manager Materials Testing. Monitor project budget, Purchase 
Orders and invoice submission. Perform asphaltic lab testing. Our services included lab and field testing of soil, 
field density observations and testing, reinforcing steel and concrete observations and testing. 

• Wheatley Heights Sports Complex, San Antonio, Texas. Project Manager Materials Testing. Monitor project 
budget, Purchase Orders and invoice submission. Perform asphaltic lab testing. Our services included field density 
observations and testing, concrete observations and testing, reinforcing steel observations, structural steel 
observations.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXPERIENCE – PROJECT PROFILES 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 7 

EXPERIENCE- PROJECT PROFILES 
 
5. List at least three related tes�ng verifica�on projects with TxDOT, USACE, Toll Authority/Regional Mobility 
Authority Projects of a transporta�on nature conducted within last five (5) years. 
 
TR - 365 PROJECT MCALLEN, TX. 
 

Client/Owner:                                       Pulice 
 
Contact Information:   Rocio de los Reyes Cadenas 
  Corporate Quality Director 
  713-324-4120 
  rreyes@dragados-usa.com 
                                                              
Project Location:                                  McAllen TX             
 
Performance Period:                         12/04/2023 – (Ongoing) 
 
Services Provided:                               Construction Materials Testing 
 
Descrip�on:                                      PSI has teamed up with Dragados-Pulice for the TR-365 Project to take place in 

Hidalgo County. PSI is in charge of sampling and testing of all concrete trial mix 
design, as well as all laboratory testing. PSI will provide experienced qualified 
technicians and engineers to assist Dragados for this project. In addition, PSI has 
also teamed up with Dragados-Pulice in construction materials testing for the 
IH2/IH69 interchanged project for City of Pharr. 

 
TXDOT WA 1, CONTRACT NO.36-01DP0011 Pharr District 

Client/Owner:   Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT) 
    Sergio Cantu, P.E. 
    956-702-6262  

Sergio.Cantu@txdot.gov 
  
Project Location:  Pharr District  
 
Project Value:    $457,499 (PSI fees) 
 
Performance Period:  09/30/2021 – July 2025 (Ongoing) 
 
Services Provided:  Construction Materials Testing 
 
Description:  PSI is performing and supervising all sampling, testing, inspection work and 

asphaltic, soils/flexbase and concrete for the State on the highway projects for 
the Pharr District.  

 
 
 
 
 



EXPERIENCE – PROJECT PROFILES 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 8 

 
 
 
TXDOT WA 2 CONTRACT NO. 36-0IDP0011 Laredo District.  

Client/Owner:   Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT) 
    Luis Cas�llo, P.E. 

956-712-7750   
Luis.Cas�llo@txdot.gov   

  
Project Location:  Pharr District  
 
Project Value:    $699,631.1 (PSI fees) 
 
Performance Period:  03/15/2023 – July 2025 (Ongoing) 
 
Services Provided:  Construction Materials Testing 
 
Description:  PSI is performing and supervising all sampling, testing, inspection work and 

related services for Asphaltic and Concrete construction for the following project: 
CSJ: 2660-01-011, CSJ: 0483-01-056 and CSJ: 0037-09-033 for various locations in 
the Laredo District. 

 
 
 MILE 9 NORTH ROAD- STREET WIDENING IMPROVEMENTS, City of Weslaco 

Client/Owner:   City of Weslaco 
  Albert J. Aldana 
  aaldana@weslacotx.gov 
  
Project Location:  City of Weslaco  
 
Project Value:    $10,009 (PSI fees) 
 
Performance Period:  03/20/2023- Ongoing 
 
Services Provided:  Construction Materials Testing 
 
Description:  PSI is performing Construction Materials Testing on Mile 9 Street Widening 

Project. Services includes: Concrete Testing, Asphalt Testing, Masonry Testing, 
Soils Testing and Compressive Strength Tests.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



CURRENT WORKLOAD 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 9 

CURRENT WORKLOAD 
 
6. Current workload of the staff and laboratory personnel that would be responsible for the project(s). 
 
Resources will be made available to the project manager from all support offices to ensure �mely comple�on of any 
project or task assigned during the contract period. PSI has excess capacity available to perform the work described in 
the RFQ. PSI will ensure that all staff members with knowledge specific to the project area are available to complete 
the assigned work. By having senior leadership of Mr. Peter Gonzales, P.E., as the Project Manager for the HCRMA 
projects, we can guarantee a priority will be placed on ac�vi�es rela�ng to HCMRA projects during the contract period. 
 
Presently the PSI Harlingen office has a moderate workload. PSI Harlingen can accommodate HCRMA projects with 
exis�ng staff augmented by field and technical assistance from our adjacent San Antonio, Corpus Chris� and Aus�n 
offices with occasional technician assistance, as required. 
 
PSI can mobilize and start services twenty-four (24) hours a�er being awarded the project.  Once awarded the project 
and nego�ated a contract, PSI is prepared to start work at once. The PSI Team has, by history, shown a commitment 
to complete projects and tasks in a manner consistent with the client’s needs and �ming. Project scopes from simple 
inves�ga�ons to mul�-facility design and implementa�on have been completed in �me frames mee�ng the client’s 
desire as either on �me or completed before the due dates.  PSI’s team approach to assuring �mely comple�on of 
projects, including methods used for schedule recovery if necessary. 

The nature of our consul�ng business rests in the management from different sources of many projects which must 
be priori�zed and responded to in a limited �meframe. We have been doing this successfully for many years and the 
number of repeat assignments that we have received from our clients demonstrates our success in mee�ng their 
needs for responsive service.  It is our philosophy that a commitment to meet the needs and expecta�ons of a client 
must come not only from our senior management, but also from each and every member of a project team.  We take 
commitments very seriously and will commit our local and na�onal resources to provide the level of service every 
client should expect for their project.  We will be available to HCRMA 24 hours a day and 7 days a week. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SUBCONSULTANTS 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 10 

SUBCONSULTANTS 
 
7. Names, disciplines, and firm profiles (with resumes listed under key personnel) for any sub-consultants (if any) 
proposed for the project. 
 
PSI has the capabili�es to perform all required services for this contract with its own in-house team from our Harlingen, 
Texas office. All work will include engineering or scien�fic interpreta�on, field and laboratory services and reports as 
required by HCRMA. All tests will be conducted under the guidance and direc�on of a registered professional engineer 
or professional licensed to work in the State of Texas, as required by law.  
 
8. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) and Affirma�ve Ac�on status of firm and sub-consultants. 
 
Professional Service Industries, Inc. is not a DBE. At PSI, we are dedicated to collabora�ng with DBE, Small Woman 
Minority Business Enterprise (SWMBE) and Historically Underu�lized Business (HUB) firms to achieve our goals and 
promote their growth and development. These firms are our valued teaming partners, and we always priori�ze their 
resources and services for successful project execu�on.  
 
PSI has a long-standing commitment to teaming objec�ves and the growth and development of DBE, Small Woman 
Minority Business Enterprise (SWMBE) and Historically Underu�lized Business (HUB) firms. These firms are some of 
our most trusted teaming partners who we con�nually turn to first to provide resources and services for successful 
project execu�on. 
 
PSI carefully selects DBE, SWMBE and HUB team members with the requisite exper�se and geographical resource base 
to support PSI personnel in the field, providing the best possible value to our clients. 
 
Our basis for selec�ng these DBE, SWMBE and HUB team members for a project includes: 
  

• Established working rela�onships with Intertek-PSI, with compa�ble business philosophies in technical and 
management approaches. 

 
• Proven performance with an ability to consistently enhance the iden�fied services throughout contract 

execu�on. 
 

• A strong safety record and program, and financial stability, minimizing performance risk on the projects to 
which they may be assigned. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LITIGATION DISCLOSURE 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 11 

LITIGATION DISCLOSURE 
 
9. Lis�ng of all pending li�ga�on against or involving the firm or its agents or employees with respect to any work 
performed. 
 
PSI, from �me to �me, has been involved in legal or administra�ve proceedings as a plain�ff or defendant.  With annual 
fees exceeding $250 million and with approximately 1,800 employees na�onwide, we do not maintain a 
comprehensive historical lis�ng of claims. 
 
With assets exceeding $300 million, no claim, individually or claims collec�vely could adversely affect your project. 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LIABILITY INSURANCE COVERAGE 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 12 

LIABILITY INSURANCE COVERAGE 
 

10. Amount of professional liability insurance coverage carried by your firm. 

 



LIABILITY INSURANCE COVERAGE 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 13 

  
 



BANK REFERENCE 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 14 

BANK REFERENCE 
 

11. Name and phone number of person to contact at the bank where the firm does business. 
 
Bank of America   Account Name: Professional Service Industries, Inc.  
2690 W. Lucas Road  Account #: 4427970188  
Lucas, TX 75002   ABA for ACH:  111000012  
Phone: 972-649-0209  ABA for wires:  026009593 
 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 15 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
12. Any other items which the consultant deems necessary. 
 
Construc�on Material Tes�ng/ Laboratory Services 
PSI maintains complete facili�es and equipment for inspec�on and tes�ng of soils and founda�ons, concrete, 
pavements, masonry, structural, metals, roofing, and specialty areas.  In addi�on, PSI performs a full range of 
consul�ng engineering services: inves�ga�on and evalua�on of materials failures and/or deteriora�on, forensic 
evalua�on of all types of construc�on materials and/or structures, and establishment of QA/QC procedures for 
construc�on projects. 

As an Independent Tes�ng Laboratory, sa�sfying the requirement of ASTM E 329, PSI proposes to provide the QA/QC 
func�ons represen�ng the owner.  These services may include review and tes�ng, pre-qualifica�on of construc�on 
material submitals as well as field tes�ng and construc�on surveillance.  PSI is the largest single provider of 
construc�on materials tes�ng in the na�on.  PSI offers a complete single source of tes�ng services to include soils, 
concrete, asphalt, structural steel welded and bolted connec�ons, masonry glazing, pain�ng, roofing, and with 
na�onal capabili�es to address many unique and specialized services tailored to individual project needs. 

PSI offers American Concrete Ins�tute Cer�fied technicians to monitor and test placement of fresh concrete.  Field 
tests include slump, air content, temperature, unit weight, and molded specimens for compressive strength.  PSI has 
cer�fied AWS inspectors for the visual examina�on of welds and ASNT technicians for ultrasonic, radiographic, dye 
penetrant, and magne�c par�cle tes�ng of welds.  PSI has capabili�es to field calibrate impact wrenches with a 
Schmidt-Wilhelm Calibra�on Block as well as calibrated torque wrenches to verify the �ghtness of bolted connec�ons. 
We are also capable of providing specialty services such as forensic inves�ga�on of exis�ng structures if requested. 

Quality Control/Quality Assurance 

PSI’s Quality Control/Quality Assurance (QC/QA) process is outlined in PSI’s Quality Assurance Manual QA- M-5, 
Revision 15, June 13, 2022. The objec�ve of PSI’s Quality Management System (QMS) is to establish controlled 
condi�ons to assure that the tests and inspec�ons performed by PSI personnel are accurate, valid, documented and 
comply with applicable codes, project specifica�ons, and regulatory requirements. PSI has standard opera�ng 
procedures for all organiza�onal levels and each individual within the organiza�on. 

PSI’s QMS meets the requirements for both AASHTO R-18 and A2LA. PSI’s policies and programs implement a 
comprehensive quality check system se�ng standards for all tes�ng and laboratory compliance. Our project-specific 
QC/QA programs will define, establish, and implement a formal and comprehensive descrip�on of ac�vi�es to ensure 
proper inspec�on protocols, tes�ng and repor�ng. We address and document all construc�on quality acceptances 
and material tes�ng for a project to verify that it is in conformance with the specified standards and contractual 
requirements. In order to achieve this PSI has developed a set of Quality Acceptance Procedures (QAP) which can be 
easily modified and adopted to specific projects. These QAP developed include inspec�on checklists to ensure a 
comprehensive inspec�on protocol in the field. 

To provide documented quality, we adhere to the following objec�ves: 
• Par�cipa�on in recognized laboratory reference sample programs, 
• Con�nual implementa�on of a personnel qualifica�on and training program, 
• Maintenance of a comprehensive measuring and tes�ng equipment (M&TE) program traceable to NIST, 
• Assure and maintain accredita�on by na�onally-recognized ins�tu�on per ISO 17025 or AASHTO, and 
• Equipment maintenance and calibra�on per manufacturer and na�onally recognized standards. 

The PSI QC/QA Program will outline our quality philosophy, organiza�on of personnel, personnel training, M&TE 
program, facili�es, test methods, documenta�on, and audit procedures. These guidelines will delineate the 



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 16 

opera�onal procedures and sequence of ac�vi�es to ensure the “competency” of all aspects of the field and laboratory 
opera�ons. 

TECHNICIAN CERTIFICATES 

PSI cer�fied technicians assigned to the (QMS) will apply tes�ng and inspec�on work approved by the following 
professional groups: 

• American Concrete Ins�tute (ACI) 
• Texas Department of Transporta�on (TXDOT) 
• Na�onal Ins�tute for Cer�fica�on in Engineering Technologies (NICET) 
• American Welding Society (AWS) Cer�fica�on for Welding Inspectors (CWI) 
• American Society for Non-Destruc�ve Tes�ng (ASNT) Technician Cer�fica�on for Radiographic, Ultrasonic, 

Magne�c Par�cle and Penetrant Tes�ng Personnel 

LABORATORIES ACCREDITATION 

PSI maintains and calibrates tes�ng equipment in accordance with the American Society for Tes�ng and Materials 
(ASTM) Publica�on E 329 and E 543.  Project facili�es will meet inspec�on standards for accredita�on through the 
following groups: 

• A2LA 
• AMRL / CCRL 
• AASHTO R-18 Standards and Cer�fica�on 
• Texas Department of Transporta�on (TXDOT) 

Project Specific Laboratories will be established geographically to support the Projects. 

STANDARDS AND SPECIAL INSPECTION 

All field inspec�ons will be performed in general accordance with the applicable standards or as dictated by the project 
specifica�ons.  Where no applicable standard is available, the tes�ng performed in accordance with the geographically 
local industry standard of care. 

ON-SITE PROJECT MANAGEMENT TEAM 

As previously discussed, PSI proposes to accomplish the required CQAF on the projects by providing an inspec�on 
team coordinated by an on-site project team.  Over the course of the project, some varia�on in the Project 
Management Team posi�on(s) could occur with no�fica�on/approval by the client. 

PSI Onsite project management team will be responsible for: 
• Coordina�ng and Planning Field Inspec�ons 
• Assigning and Tracking Laboratory Test Programs 
• Communica�ng Test Results to Appropriate Par�es. 
• Review of Field Reports and Prepara�on of Daily and Weekly Summary Reports. 
• Maintaining a Project Log Detailing Unresolved Tests, Sampling Loca�ons and Mee�ng Notes. 

PSI proposes to staff the project with qualified field personnel whose principal du�es will be to provide complete 
tes�ng and visual observa�on to verify the quality of construc�on materials and processes used during the project.  
Our field technicians will have the necessary training and experience in concrete, soils and hot mix asphalt.  Our 
technicians are ACI, NICET and TxDOT cer�fied. 

 

 



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 17 

Addi�onal Professional Services:  

PSI Environmental Overview 

PSI is at the forefront of environmental consul�ng with a forward-
thinking program that can be tailored to provide a customized suite 
of expert consul�ng solu�ons. We priori�ze prac�cal answers to 
intricate challenges, ensuring efficiency in both �me and resources. 
Dis�nct from other environmental firms, PSI stands out for its vast 
service range, deep resources, and widespread coverage. 

 Our in-depth environmental services aid clients in evalua�ng their 
environmental impact, mi�ga�ng risks, safeguarding employee 
health, developing management and remedia�on strategies, 
mee�ng all the applicable regula�ons, and more. In a landscape filled 
with over 10,000 pages of federal regula�ons, along with individual 
local and state s�pula�ons, naviga�ng the maze of compliance is 
daun�ng. Our expansive network of 100 plus offices countrywide 
guarantees that we can meet the requirements of any project and 
tackle any regulatory challenge.  

Our engineering experts, equipped with the latest techniques and equipment, provide precise environmental 
evalua�ons and cost-effec�ve remedia�on solu�ons that help guide your projects toward full compliance with any 
regula�on or business objec�ve. 

Our Service Portfolio 
 
Environmental Due Diligence 
• ASTM E1527 Phase I Esa 
• Radon, Asbestos, and Lead-Based Paint      
• Assessments 
• Vapor Intrusion Screenings 
• Wetlands Evaluations 
 
In-Depth Environmental Analysis 
• Contaminant Source Identification 
• Site Character Evaluations 
• Vapor Intrusion Evaluations 
• Groundwater Tracking 
• Wetlands Delineation and Licensing 
 
Remediation Planning and Execution 
• Designing Remedial Alternatives 
• Feasibility Evaluations 
• Innovative Treatment Methods 

• Vapor Intrusion Mitigation Strategies 
• Risk Evaluations 
 
Storage Tank Management 
• AST/UST Compliance 
• AST/UST Removals 
• UST Reimbursement Plans 
  
Water Protection 
• Stormwater Management 
• Drinking Water Testing 
• Aquifer Studies 
• Biological Evaluations 
  
Regulatory Adherence 
• RCRA Compliance 
• Waste Management 
• Chemical Reporting 
• PCB And Pesticide Assessments 

 

 

 

 



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 18 

Geotechnical Engineering 
Where infrastructure improvements are concerned, conditions below grade are often as important as surface 
conditions. The most cost-effective way to ascertain subsurface conditions is by obtaining geotechnical services 
provided by the professionals at PSI. 

 Geotechnical conditions play a crucial role in proper construction of buildings, roads, runways, bridges, dams and 
other structures. A solid foundation is an essential prerequisite for any well-constructed improvement. A thorough 
subsurface exploration can result in a more cost-effective foundation design and reduce construction delays caused 
by unforeseen conditions.   

 Quality is an integral part of PSI’s approach to geotechnical work. Our Principal Consultants, professional engineers 
with years of demonstrated experience, are the crux of our quality assurance program. These principal consultants 
review all reports and documentation on each project to make certain that PSI’s methodologies and contractual 
agreements are strictly followed and that conclusions and recommendations are valid, effective and practical.  In 
addition, field and laboratory personnel receive intensive training from seasoned veterans before they begin working 
in the field. 

 PSI is experienced. Tens of thousands of subsurface explorations have been performed by PSI personnel on a wide 
variety of projects. Our experience ranges from projects requiring a few soil borings to large projects requiring several 
hundred borings. 

Equipment and Facili�es 
PSI maintains a large variety of land and marine subsurface exploration equipment, along with laboratory and office 
facilities.  We have more than 100 fully equipped exploration crews with drill rigs mounted on all types of carriers to 
allow access to virtually any condition on land or water. The principal type of drilling equipment we maintain are CME 
and mobile auger rigs. Typically, the crews are supervised in the field by an engineer or graduate geologist. The variety 
of sizes and types of equipment and our crews’ broad experience permit flexibility in sampling and drilling techniques 
and in scheduling. 

Preliminary or General Studies 
• Site prepara�on specifica�ons 
• Early site selec�on  
• Design of pond and landfill liners 
• Preliminary soil and founda�on evalua�on  
• Embankment setlement 
• Founda�ons for structures  
• Vibra�on studies 
• Slope stability and design 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Geotechnical Engineering (continued) 

Founda�on/Specialty Analysis 

• Risk assessment 
• Founda�ons/construc�on over compressible soils 
• Subsoil modifica�on 
• Analysis of high-rise founda�ons 
• Dewatering concepts 
• Soil mechanics research 
• Specialty founda�ons 
• Retaining walls 
• Interpreta�on of cone penetra�on test data 
• Landfill founda�on studies 
• Earthen dam analysis 
• Pile driving analyzer 
  

Environmental/Permi�ng 

• Environmental permits 
• Groundwater studies 
• Soil suitability analysis 
• Effluent disposal evalua�on  
• Well and pollu�on source inventory 
• Design of pond and landfill liners 
• Water supply tes�ng and permi�ng 
• Sep�c tank design and permi�ng 
• Drawdown effects on wetlands 
• Sanitary landfill permi�ng 
  

Effluent Disposal 
• Percola�on pond design, Rapid Infiltra�on Basins 

(RIBs) 
• Wetland disposal assessment 
• Development of groundwater monitoring plans  
  

Groundwater Monitoring Plans 

• Design and implementa�on of groundwater 
monitoring plans 

• Installa�on of monitoring wells 
• Sampling of groundwater from monitoring wells 
  

 

 

Roadway/Transporta�on Studies 
• Corridor study/fatal flaw analysis 
• Bridge founda�ons (shallow and deep) 
• Pavement design 
• Field and Drilling Services 
• Standard test borings 
• Auger borings 
• Rock coring 
• Monitoring well installa�on 
• Con�nuous sampling 
• Environmental sampling 
• Undisturbed thin-walled tubes 
• Groundwater sampling 
• Bulk disturbed samples 
• Mineral explora�on 
  

Laboratory Services 
• Soil classifica�on 
• Strength parameters 
• Consolida�on 
• Compac�on 
• Permeability 
• CBR 
• Soil cement 
• Triaxial 
• Rela�ve density 
  

Addi�onal Services 
• Hydrology 
• Earthquake geology and engineering  
• Environmental geology 
• Soil stabiliza�on 
• Geophysical inves�ga�ons 
• Soil/rock dynamics 
  

 



STANDARD FORM 330 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 20 

STANDARD FORM 330 
 
13. Executed Architect-Engineer Qualifica�ons (Standard Form 330). 

 
 



FIRM’S ABILITY 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 21 

FIRM’S ABILITY 
 
14. Describe the Prime Firm’s proven ability to deliver quality tes�ng on �me and at the least cost to the Owner. 
 
Many companies make ini�al commitments to start significant projects such as this. However, not all companies can 
stay the course and finish projects successfully. PSI, on the other hand, has the equipment, the personnel, and the 
experience with a proven track record, and we have demonstrated �me a�er �me that we can start and finish projects 
while mee�ng or exceeding the expecta�ons of our clients. 

During peak workloads, PSI has the unique capability to pull addi�onal staff and resources from other area offices with 
no addi�onal cost realized to our clients. This ensures HCRMA that PSI will always have Texas- licensed staff available 
and on stand-by, ready to work on your project. Our ability to draw on resources for manpower, equipment and 
technical exper�se enables us to overcome service problems associated with project schedules. 

Our top-level managers and technicians are available to staff your projects as soon as the scope of work is finalized. 
During periods of peak construc�on ac�vi�es, we an�cipate occasional surges in manpower demands and are 
prepared to cover those demands on very short no�ce. Resources will be made available to the project manager from 
all support offices to ensure �mely comple�on of any project or task assigned during the contract period. PSI has 
excess capacity available to perform work during the period. PSI will ensure that all staff members with knowledge 
specific to the project are available to complete the assigned work. We take our commitments very seriously and will 
commit our local and na�onal resources to provide the level of service every client should expect for their project. We 
will be available to HCRMA 24 hours a day and 7 days a week.  

PSI has a track record of performing projects within budget and on �me. Construc�on materials tes�ng projects are 
most o�en unit price base with a not to exceed limita�on based on the contractor’s schedule.  We endeavor to provide 
a quality product on a �mely basis for each and every project.  We have found that developing rela�onships with the 
project team members and maintaining constant communica�on throughout the project is the best way to ensure 
excellent customer service. 

15. Describe Prime Firm’s ability to maintain ethical standards and industry best prac�ces as it pertains to perceived 
or actual conflicts of interest in assigning tasks to Prime or Subconsultant staff that have previously provided Geotech 
or CMT services on HCRMA Projects. 
 
Our responsibility is to conduct all business according to the highest professional and ethical standards and prac�ces. 
PSI’s work shall be carried out in an independent and impar�al manner, using appropriate methods and procedures 
and in accordance with local and interna�onal laws. A conflict of interest arises when an employee’s personal 
rela�onships, external interests or ac�vi�es could interfere with their judgment, objec�vity, independence or loyalty 
to PSI. We require employees to avoid conflicts of interest, or the appearance of one, at all �mes, to ensure the quality 
of our business decisions and the integrity of the person and Company. 
 
We make our Code of Ethics available to our partners who include contractors, sub-contractors, correspondents, 
agents, intermediaries and suppliers so that they understand the principles with which we operate, and are 
transparent and responsive to our customers’ requests for informa�on to verify PSI’s corporate, ethical and social 
responsibility creden�als. We conduct due diligence on prospec�ve partners, in accordance with PSI’s due diligence 
policy when dealing with intermediaries, so that we appoint on merit, do not deal with those known to be involved in 
bribery and ensure that our rela�onship with them follows the principles of our Code of Ethics. All our business 
partners have access to our Code of Ethics.  
 

 



CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 22 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST  
 

16. Respondents are required to file form CIQ Conflicts of Interest Ques�onnaire for Vendor and Other Persons Doing 
Business with Local Governmental En�ty, with their proposal. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 23 

  

 



CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 

 
SOQ – CMT LAB & FORENSIC SERVICES -365 TOLLWAY PROJECT-2024-01 
HCRMA 24 

 

17. HCRMA may not enter into a contract with a company for goods or services unless the contract contains a 
cer�fica�on that the company does not boycot Israel and will not boycot Israel during the term of the contract. 
 
Professional Service Industries, Inc. does not boycot Israel and will not boycot Israel during the term of the contract. 
 
18. HCRMA may not enter into a contract with a company that is iden�fied on the Texas Comptroller of Public 
Accounts’ list of companies that do business with Iran, Sudan, or designated foreign terrorist organiza�ons. 
 
Professional Service Industries does not and will not do business with Iran, Sudan, or designated foreign terrorist 
organiza�ons. 



ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING 

GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING 

CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS TESTING & INSPECTION 

INDUSTRIAL HYGIENE SERVICES 

BUILDING SCIENCE SOLUTIONS 

PAVEMENT EVALUATION SERVICES 

SPECIALTY ENGINEERING  

& TESTING SERVICES 

TOTAL QUALITY. ASSURED. 

Professional Service Industries Inc., (PSI) 

Raymundo Martinez 

Branch Manager 

2020 North Loop 499, Suite 302 

Harlingen, Tx 78550 

956 423 6826  

Raymundo.martinez@intertek.com 

www.intertek.com/building 



 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 3D 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     WORKSHOP ITEM            3D_____                     

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED       03/19/2024                     
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE    03/26/2024  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item: RESOLUTION 2024-08 – CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF AWARD OF 

CONTRACT TO MITRES SERVICES, LLC, FOR THE GRANJENO WETLAND MITIGATION 
SITE PROJECT._______                                                                                           __________                    

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of award of contract to MitRes Services, LLC, for the Granjeno 

Wetland Mitigation Project.                    _______                ____________________________                        
  
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas 

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                                                      
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2024-08 – Consideration and 

Approval of Award of Contract to MitRes Services, LLC, for the Granjeno Wetland 
Mitigation Site Project, as presented. ____________________________________________                    

    
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _   Approved          Disapproved       X_   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
11.  Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved      X    None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X    Approved          Disapproved         _  None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Memorandum 
Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Ramon Navarro IV, PE, Chief Construction Engineer 

March 21, 2024 

Consideration and Approval of Award of Contract to MitRes Services, LLC for the Granjeno 
Wetland Mitigation Project  

Background 
The Granjeño Wetland Mitigation Project consists of the restoration of 23.88 acres of land planned specifically 
for wetland restoration of 80.2 acres of  HCRMA property dedicate to wetlands to compensate environmental 
justice for impacts resulting from the 365 Toll project. The remaining acres of restored wetland area at the 
mitigation site will be held in reserve for application toward future projects within the watershed. The project 
consists of grading and compaction of approximately 19 Acres to establish a wetland which includes 
placement of a clay liner and plant root zone soil strata. It also includes berm grading and compaction of 
approximately 6 Acres of upland area. Construction of an access driveway and road including maintenance 
and brush clearing/tree trimming, of a groundwater well with controls and approximately 3,000 linear feet of 
PVC pipe distribution, and a security fence for the groundwater well and associated equipment. 

History 
December 6, 2023, a Bid Opening for subject project took place. We received two electronic bids via 
CivCast; however, due to plan errors all bids were rejected. Design was amended and letting process was 
re-initiated. The Engineer’s O p i n i o n  o f  P r o b a b l e  C o n s t r u c t i o n  C o s t  for the project was 
$2,630,000. 

March 13, 2024, a Bid Opening for Project BID#2024-004, the Granjeño Wetland Mitigation Site (Granjeño) 
Project took place. We received one electronic bids via CivCast. The bids are as follows: 

Estimate $4,000,000.0 % Over/Under Contractor

Bidder 1 $      MitRes Services LLC Hallsville, TX 

The Engineer’s O p i n i o n  o f  P r o b a b l e  C o n s t r u c t i o n  C o s t  for the a m e n d e d  project 
was $4,000,000. The low bidder is over the Engineer’s estimate . 

Options 
The Board of Directors may choose to not disclose bid, reject all bids and re-advertise the project; or, 
approve the award of contract, 

Recommendation 
Based on review by this office, it is recommended to award the construction contract to the lowest, 
responsive and responsible bidder MitRes Services, LLC. for construction of the Project.  



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY BOARD 
RESOLUTION 2024- 08 

CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF AWARD OF CONTRACT TO MITRES 
SERVICES, LLC,  FOR THE GRANJENO WETLAND MITIGATION SITE 
PROJECT 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 26th day of March, 2024 by the Board of Directors of the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 

 WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the "Authority"), 
acting through its Board of Directors (the "Board"), is a regional mobility authority 
created pursuant to Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the "Act"); 

 WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in and 
around Hidalgo County, including the development of the 365 Toll project (the "Project"); 

 WHEREAS, the Project was environmentally cleared in 2015; 

 WHEREAS, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers issued Individual Permit No. 
SWG-2013-00175 ( the "Permit") for the Project; 

 WHEREAS, the Permit requires the Authority to conduct a compensatory 
wetland mitigation (the "Mitigation Plan"); 

 WHEREAS, the Permit additionally requires that the area on which the Mitigation Plan 
is to be conducted be covered by a conservation easement held by an approved wildlife 
conservation organization in perpetuity, which easement is to be recorded in the real 
property records of Hidalgo County, Texas (the "Conservation Easement"); 

 WHEREAS, the Valley Land Fund Inc., a Texas non-profit corporation, is a 
wildlife conservation organization established to preserve, enhance, and expand the native 
wildlife habitat of the Rio Grande Valley; 

 WHEREAS, the governing body of the Valley Land Fund Inc. has or will approve 
its acceptance of the Conservation Easement; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board now finds it to be in the best interest of the Authority to 
provide the open space and environmental values described in the Conservation Easement; 

 WHEREAS, on August   24, 2021 the Board authorized Executive Director, to accept 
and execute the Conservation Easement, as approved by the Valley Land Fund Inc. in final 
form and  have the same recorded in the real property records of Hidalgo County, Texas. 



 WHEREAS the Authority publicly advertised and conducted a mandatory attendance, 
Pre-bid Meeting on Tuesday, November 21, 2023; 2:00 P.M. C.S.T., at the Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority Offices; the HCRMA entertained Questions / RFI’s via the 
project’s CivCAST listing, and provided timely answers up and till 3:00 P.M. C.S.T. on 
Wednesday, November 29, 2023 

 WHEREAS, at 2:45PM on December 6, 2023 the Authority received two (2) formal 
sealed, electronic bids for the Project; and at 3:05 p.m., the Authority opened and read into 
the record two (2) formal sealed, electronic bids for the Project from: (i) JMJ Constructors, (ii) 
and MitRes Services, LLC. in amounts ranging from $3,229,980.00 to $5,117,103.16 for 
construction of the Project; and 

 WHEREAS, due to discovered plan error, and in the best interest of the 
Authority; HCRMA Staff and GEC (HDR) on January 29, 2024 rejected all bids; 

 WHEREAS,  the Authority publicly re-advertised and conducted a mandatory 
attendance, Pre-bid Meeting on Tuesday, February 20, 2024; 2:00 P.M. C.S.T., at the Hidalgo 
County Regional Mobility Authority Offices,and via TEAMS [Meeting ID: 256 105 661 
046]  ; the HCRMA entertained Questions / RFI’s via the project’s CivCAST listing, and 
provided timely answers up and till 3:00 P.M. C.S.T. on Friday, March 8, 2024; 

 WHEREAS, at 1:39PM on March 13, 2024 the Authority received one (1) formal 
sealed, electronic bids for the Project; and at 3:05 p.m., the Authority opened and read into 
the record one (1) formal sealed, electronic bids for the Project from: (i) MitRes Services, LLC. 
in amount of  $5, 850,993.87 for construction of the Project; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act the Board finds that awarding the construction contract 
to MitRes Services, LLC. in the amount of $5,850,993.87 for construction of the Project is in 
the best interest of the Authority;  HCRMA Staff and GEC (HDR) reviewed proposals; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if      
fully restated. 

Section 2. The Board hereby awards the Granjeno Wetland Mitigation Project to    MitRes 
Services, LLC. and approves the Contract attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

Section 3. The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute the Contract. 
*** 



#5585020.2 

PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING on the 26th day of March, 2024, at which 
meeting a quorum was present. 

S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman

Juan Carlos Del Ángel, Secretary/Treasurer 



ATTACH P





MitRes Services, LLC
209 Renaissance Dr
Hallsville, TX 75650
903.660.7527
mitigate.pro

March 13, 2024

Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
203 W. Newcombe Ave
Pharr, Texas 78577

Dear Mr. Rodriguez,

With great pride and excitement, we submit our response to the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 
(HCRMA) Request for Sealed Bids on behalf of MitRes Services, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mitigation 
Resources of North America (MRNA).

We have carefully assembled a team of our own Texas-based employees that leverages engineering, 
permitting, and construction professionals with in-depth knowledge of the ecosystem and environment. Our 
team is nationally recognized for successfully delivering large-scale stream and wetland restoration. In 
addition, in September 2022, the Railroad Commission of Texas (RCT) selected us as its preferred vendor 
for large-scale abandoned mine land restoration work throughout the State of Texas.  We recently completed 
a restoration project for RCT in Bastrop on time and budget. We believe this, along with our many successful 
projects listed below, demonstrates that our team is highly experienced, fully equipped and able to deliver 
the highest-quality results to HCRMA on time and budget.

Three key strengths frame our qualifications for this effort:

• The experience of our team, both locally and nationally

• Certainty and accountability

• A commitment to client service

First, experience: Our project team has a significant track record of delivering successful mitigation services 
to large-scale infrastructure projects, including restoring over 359,000 linear feet of streams and over 1,500 
acres of wetlands. In Texas alone, we have planted 9.1 million trees and 18,300 acres of native grasses. 
Additionally, we have extensive local networks, relationships with key partners, and experience 
implementing best practices in community engagement that allow us to execute projects promptly and cost-
effectively. Notably, we have foundational working relationships with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
(USACE) and institutional knowledge that will aid in project efficiency and success.



2

MitRes Services, LLC
209 Renaissance Dr
Hallsville, TX 75650
903.660.7527
mitigate.pro

Second, certainty: Providing certainty for our clients is a shared value across the MitRes Services team.
We hold ourselves accountable for a fair, fixed-price commitment to full delivery. While we recognize the 
dynamic nature of mitigation work often creates uncertainty, our financial structure (parent company with 
over $80 million in cash and minimal debt) ensures we can fully absorb project costs when unanticipated 
barriers to progress arise and remove mitigation liability from our clients. We pride ourselves on our ability 
to prevent budgetary bottlenecks from impeding timely progress and not burdening our clients with 
unexpected costs or delays.

Third, client service: We are committed to maximizing local labor to ensure our team is highly skilled, 
responsive, and “on call” to serve as an extension and steward of HCRMA. We recognize the value in 
employing those who know the landscape, people, and nuances of the area while being readily available at 
all times. Further, we view our clients as team members and institute these practices into all aspects of our 
workflow. We believe client service should not be added value but a critical component of project success. 
From detailed progress reports, consistent and proactive communication, and adequate systems to track 
milestones, we pride ourselves on fostering relationships with clients built on candor. You can expect 
consistency, transparency, and collaboration in decision-making, problem-solving, and project progression 
– without surprises or superfluous change orders.

We appreciate the opportunity to submit a response. After reviewing the digital design files, our assessment 
suggests a deficiency of 110,000 cubic yards of available material needed to complete the project.
Our bid includes hauling in suitable material from offsite.  Our proposal assumes that this material 
consists of 59% Clay (Caliche) and 41% Planting Soil per the HCMRA’s engineer’s recommendation. 
If a mutual agreement is reached confirming that the required material is or will be on-site rather 
than needing to be hauled in, the total bid price could be decreased.

As a deeply experienced, leading Texas-based restoration and mitigation deliverer, MitRes Services is well-
positioned to provide the engineering, design, construction, monitoring, and day-to-day management to 
meet HCRMA’s needs.

Thank you for your time and consideration,

Eric Anderson
President
MitRes Services, LLC



3

MitRes Services, LLC
209 Renaissance Dr
Hallsville, TX 75650
903.660.7527
mitigate.pro

Workload and Staffing

Position Personnel Name
Years of Experience 

Performing Role
Years with Company



4

MitRes Services, LLC
209 Renaissance Dr
Hallsville, TX 75650
903.660.7527
mitigate.pro

General Company information.

Company Name:

Physical Address:

Mailing Address:

City: State/Zip:

Telephone: Fax:

Primary Contact Name:

Primary Contact Email:

Secondary Contact Name:

Secondary Contact Email:

Project Name Owner Agency

Current Project Phase 
(designate as Design, 

Construction, or 
Monitoring)

Contract Value
Expected

Completion Date Description of Work



5

MitRes Services, LLC
209 Renaissance Dr
Hallsville, TX 75650
903.660.7527
mitigate.pro



6

MitRes Services, LLC
209 Renaissance Dr
Hallsville, TX 75650
903.660.7527
mitigate.pro

Invasive Species Management:

As per 4.2.2.2 of the Draft Mitigation Plan (plan), bermudagrass is currently established throughout the site 
and treatment with glyphosate is proposed.  Additional invasives observed during the November 28, 2023, 
site visit includes buffelgrass (Cenchrus ciliaris), king ranch bluestem (Bothriochloa ischaemum) and salt 
cedar (Tamarix ramosissima). Similarly problematic aggressive native species included retama 
(Parkinsonia aculeata), honey mesquite (Prosopis glandulosa) and huisache (Vachellia farnesiana).
Although native, these species establish very quickly in disturbed areas and often increase competition 
resulting in reduced diversity.  Herbicide treatments alone for the bermudagrass, buffelgrass and KR 
bluestem alike have been proven ineffective in drastically reducing plant densities.  These invasive and 
aggressive natives are considered undesirable when re-establishing a diverse native plant community. 
Accordingly, additional measures are proposed to control these species more effectively by reducing 
accumulated seedbank stores.  This process of seedbank mining requires multiple treatments which in 
combination are more effective than herbicide alone. 

The following sequence of treatment is proposed to reduce invasive seedbank stores prior to planting.  For 
best results, this treatment is typically administered over a two-year period, however this process may be 
conducted in a single year if rainfall is adequate to stimulate seedbank germination before and after each 
treatment.  If flood irrigation is practical, this measure may be used to promote seedbank germination and 
enhance results.

(1) whole-field application of non-selective herbicide post emergence of seedbank (Mar-Apr)
(2) summer prescribed burn of desiccated plant residues (Apr-May)
(3) shallow disking (≤ 2 inches) (Apr-May)
(4) a secondary whole field application of non-selective herbicide (May-July)
(5) individual plant treatment (IPT) of woody invasives & aggressive natives (May-July)
(6) seeding with a no-till drill into standing plant stubble (Aug 15-Oct 15)

With adequate rainfall, undesired species are likely to re-establish quickly.  Therefore, initial whole-field 
herbicide treatment (Step 1) may be possible 3 to 4 weeks following final grading.  Seedbank stores will be
allowed to develop adequate growth prior to Step 1 for (1) maximum kill results from herbicide treatment 
and (2) development of adequate fine fuel for prescribed summer burning.  If inadequate fine fuel results 
from the initial growth and herbicide application, Step 2 will not be administered.  Disking to promote 
seedbank development will be limited to the top 2 inches of topsoil.  IPT of seedling woody species shall be 
performed as needed following Step 4.  In addition to herbicide, disking and burning, the following planting 
methods will reduce potential of undesirable species establishment. Competition from planted desirable 
species will minimize establishment of undesired species.  To maximize establishment of native permanent 
cover, annual forbs and cover crops will be excluded from initial planting mixes.  Cover crops will be added 
to seed blends only if warranted due to seasonal planting limitations or increased erosion potential. 
Additionally, mulching will be avoided when practical to minimize the introduction of invasive plant materials. 
Seed will consist of locally adaptive species and fertilization will be avoided to minimize competition from 



7

MitRes Services, LLC
209 Renaissance Dr
Hallsville, TX 75650
903.660.7527
mitigate.pro

undesired species.  Final seeding will be conducted using a no-till drill to minimize soil disturbance and
potential seedbank stimulation. Table X below details the cost associated with the management of invasive 
species.

Table X Invasive Species Treatment Cost Estimate

6. Optional treatment area if berm structure needed (see mitigation work plan location map).

Revegetation:

Seeding
Seed blends will be derived from plant materials developed specifically for South Texas, and planting rates 
will follow recommendations by the NRCS for Texas Planting Zone 3 (see Table X below).  Planting will be 
performed with a no-till drill with separated fluffy and slick seedboxes.  As recommended by the Ceasar 
Kleberg Wildlife Research Institute South Texas Native program, seeding will be conducted with a no-till drill 
as early as August 15 through October 15. Seeding will be administered directly into standing plant stubble 
to minimize potential seedbank stimulation. If needed, treated areas will be mowed prior to planting to ensure 
ideal seed-to-soil contact. 

Woody stocking
As per the Plan, woody stocking will be restricted to a scrub-shrub planting zone along the wetland mitigation 
area fringe with a mix of species Table 4-3.  Woody plant materials will be locally grown and planted at a 
minimum of 150 stems per acre.  Plant materials will consist of a mix of both containerized and bareroot 
(plugs) plants, with no one species constituting more than 20 percent of the final mix.  Irrigation will be used 
to ensure 70 percent survival by project completion.  Woody stocking materials will be locally grown based 
on seasonal availability.  Planting will be conducted during the dormant season from October 1 to March 31,



8

MitRes Services, LLC
209 Renaissance Dr
Hallsville, TX 75650
903.660.7527
mitigate.pro

with targeted peak dormancy from Dec 1 – Feb 15.  Woody stocking will be conducted in the immediate 
winter following final seeding.

Table X Proposed Seeding Cost Estimate

Planting Zone

Acres Native Seeding

(approx.) Seeding Seed Seed Seed Labor5 Total

(PLS
lb./ac.)

($/PLS 
lb.)

($/ac.) (Total $) (Drill/ac.) Labor

Upland1 11 12 $40.00 $480.00 $5,280.00 $312.00 $3,432.00 

Scrub-shrub 
(PSS)2 3 12 $40.00 $480.00 $1,440.00 $312.00 $936.00 

Emergent 
(PEM)3 15 12 $60.00 $720.00 $10,800.00 $312.00 $4,680.00 

Woodline4 5 12 $40.00 $480.00 $2,400.00 $312.00 $1,560.00 

$19,920.00 $10,608.00

Footnotes:

1. Seeded with upland mix (Kings South Texas Native Grass Mix)

2. Seeded Douglas King custom blend per Table 4-2 + tree/shrub plugs (locally grown)

3. Seeded Douglas King custom blend per Table 4-2
4. Optional revegetation if berm structure needed (see mitigation work plan location
map).
6. Labor cost includes
mobilization

Migratory Birds:

During November 28, 2023, site inspection suitable nesting habitats for migratory birds were observed 
throughout the project area.  In compliance with the Migratory Bird Treaty Act of 1918, the US Fish and 
Wildlife Service and Texas Parks and Wildlife recommend avoidance of clearing suitable nesting habitats 
during the peak nesting season of March 15 – September 15. Accordingly, clearing will be avoided when 
practicable during the peak nesting season.  However, if clearing is required during peak nesting, MRNA 
shall perform a nest survey of suitable habitat at the cost of the client.  Surveys will be conducted to 
document any active nest sites by a qualified biologist.  Survey results will be provided to the client within 
48 hours of completion.  Survey results will be considered valid for one week (7 days) of active clearing.  In 
the event that an active nest is found, a 150-foot buffer will be placed around the nest site until young birds 
have fledged from the nest.  This may take 2 to 6 weeks, during which no work will be conducted within the 
buffer zone.  Once all immature birds have fledged, a follow-up survey of the buffer zone will be conducted,
and work in the area will resume. MRNA shall not be held accountable for work delays resulting from project 
scheduling conflicts and compliance with the Migratory Bird Treaty Act. 



MitRes Services, LLC
209 Renaissance Dr
Hallsville, TX 75650
903.660.7527
mitigate.pro

List of Potential Subcontractors

Blackland Environmental, LLC
8803 Timmerman Cove, Garden Ridge, Texas 78266
Jeremiah McKinney
210-834-4368
jeremiah@bk-land.com

Cosby Mesquite Clearing
908 N County Rd 101, Falfurrias
Joshua Cosby
361-474-3222

Engineering Resources, LLC
P.O. Box 9155, Longview, Texas 75608
Dan Metcalf, P.E.
903-234-4570
dmetcalf@engr-res.com

Novus Electrical Systems, LLC
2601 Arlington Road, Marshall, Texas 75672
Ronnie Holland
903-926-2557
novuselectrical@gmail.com

J and S Water Wells
1056 East First, Bellville, Texas 77418
Shaun Grell
979-865-2393
monterichardson@me.com

Soil Tech Advance, INC
1100 East Hackberry, McAllen, Texas 78501
David Navarro
956-668-7645
STAINC.NET



MitRes Services, LLC
209 Renaissance Dr
Hallsville, TX 75650
903.660.7527
mitigate.pro

Whitaker Plumbing, INC
601 W Wellington St, Carthage, TX 75633
Mark Whitaker
903-693-8866
mark@whitakerplumb.com



MitRes Services, LLC 
209 Renaissance Dr 
Hallsville, TX 75650 
903.660.7527 
mitigate.pro 

List of Potential Suppliers 

Soil Tech Advance, INC 
1100 East Hackberry, McAllen, Texas 78501 
David Navarro 
956-668-7645
STAINC.NET

Delta Fuels 
PO Box 737514, Dallas, Texas 75373 
Sam Ferguson 
(318) 757-7610
Delta Fuel – Propane, Gas, Diesel & Lubricants

Quintanilla Dirt Work 
PO Box 545, Sebastian, Texas 78594 
(956) 746-7511
Quintanilla's Dirt Work | Facebook



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 3E 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     WORKSHOP ITEM            3E_____                     

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED       03/19/2024                     
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE    03/26/2024  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item: RESOLUTION 2024-24 – CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF CHANGE 

ORDER NUMBER 1 TO THE CONTRACT WITH SICE, INC. TO PROVIDE TOLL 
COLLECTION SYSTEM INSTALLATION, INTEGRATION, AND MAINTENANCE FOR THE 
365 TOLLWAY PROJECT.                                                                                              _______                     

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of CO No. 1 to the contract with SICE, Inc. for the 365 Tollway 

Project._____________________________________________________________________                      
  
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas 

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                                                      
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2024-24 – Consideration and 

Approval of Change Order number 1 to the contract with SICE, Inc. to provide Toll 
Collection System Installation, Integration, and Maintenance for the 365 Tollway project, 
as presented.  ______                   _______                             ____________  _____________                     

    
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _   Approved          Disapproved       X_   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
11.  Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved      X    None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X    Approved          Disapproved         _  None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CONTRACT AMENDMENT SUMMARY 

Amount   _________________ 

___________

_________

✔                  

2024-24

$ 13,980,669

1

2023-22

$ 645,171.17

$ 13,980,669.00AOC - Toll Collection System 

$ 0.00

single-gantry structures and veh. class system2024-24

$ 13,980,669.00

Approval of Change Order No. 1 introducing at each location a single-gantry (monogantry) structure and 
system of classifying vehicles based on axles and height to provide a net capital cost savings, increased 
revenue and maintain system accuracy.

$ 645,171.17

$ 645,171.17

 
 $ 14,625,840.17

Ramon Navarro, Const.

Approved Amendments 

Resolution No. Description Amount

Goals & Options: 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2024 - 24 

CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDER 
NUMBER 1 TO THE CONTRACT WITH SICE, INC. TO PROVIDE 
TOLL COLLECTION SYSTEM INSTALLATION, INTEGRATION 

AND MAINTENANCE FOR THE 365 TOLLWAY  

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 26th day of March, 2024 by the Board of Directors 
of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), 
acting through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority created 
pursuant to Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, on November 17, 2005, the Texas Transportation Commission (the 
“Commission”) created the Authority pursuant to (i) the Act; (ii) Title 43, Texas 
Administrative Code; (iii) a petition of the Hidalgo County Commissioners Court (the 
“County”); and (iv) findings by the Commission that the creation of the Authority would 
result in certain direct benefits to the State of Texas (the “State”), local governments, and 
the traveling public and would improve the State’s transportation system; and 

WHEREAS, the Act allows the Authority to construct transportation projects 
within the County, including the 365 Tollway Project (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority issued a competitive, best value procurement, RFP 
2022-02: Toll Collection System Installation, Integration, and Maintenance for the Project 
(the “RFP”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority received five qualified responses to the RFP; 

WHEREAS, on March 14, 2023, the evaluation committee recommended SICE as 
the best value respondent and the Board authorized the Authority to enter into negotiations 
with SICE Inc.; and 

WHEREAS, a contract was negotiated with SICE Inc. for Toll Collection System 
Installation, Integration, and Maintenance for the Project (the “Contract”); 

WHEREAS, on April 25, 2023, the Authority approved Resolution 2023-22 Award 
of Contract for the 365 Tollway Toll Collection System Installation, Integration and 
Maintenance Contract to SICE Inc.; and  

#5585020.2 



#5585020.2 

 WHEREAS, the Authority finds it necessary to approved Resolution 2024-24 –
Consideration and Approval of Change Order number 1 to the Contract with SICE, Inc. to 
provide Toll Collection System Installation, Integration and Maintenance for the 365 
Tollway Project.  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 

restated. 

Section 2.    The Board hereby approves Change Order number 1 to the contract with         
SICE, Inc. for the 365 Tollway Toll Collection System Installation, Integration 
and Maintenance, attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

Section 3. The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute Change Order      
number 1. 

***** 



#5585020.2 

PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING on the 26th day of March, 2024, at which 
meeting a quorum was present. 

S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman

Juan Carlos Del Ángel, Secretary/Treasurer 



#5585020.2 

Exhibit A  

Change Order Number 1  

to the Contract with  

SICE, INC.  

for Toll Collection System 
Installation, Integration and 

Maintenance for the 365 
Tollway Project  



365 TOLLWAY PROJECT 

TOLL COLLECTION SYSTEM INSTALLATION, INTEGRATION, AND MAINTENANCE 

 CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 

Project Information ISSUANCE DATE: M A R C H  2 6 ,  2 0 2 4  

Project 365 Tollway Project, TCS Installation, Integration, and Maintenance 

CONTRACT NO. 2022-002 

Owner Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA) 
Description and Reason for the Change Order 

 
This change order is the result of the conditional contract award requiring: 

1. Change from a Dual Gantry RSS to a Mono gantry Design covering the following 
components. 

• Mono gantry Design and Documentation 
• Bracket Design 
• Additional Hardware required to implement a Mono gantry solution. 

2. Implementation of Large Truck Classification System based on Height and 
Width using Lidar (SICK unit) 

• Roadside System and Transactional Back Office System Software Changes to support 
the functionality. 

• RSE and TBOS Software Changes 

Purpose and Intent. By using a monogantry design instead of a traditional dual-gantry model, 
the overall footprint of the gantry is reduced – resulting in better accessibility and easier 
maintenance of gantry equipment. It also removed most of the in-pavement equipment. 
However, to accommodate this change, larger and additional brackets will be necessary to 
mount the equipment and additional overhead equipment is needed. 

   
  Through this solution, the HCRMA benefits from: 

• Lower net capital costs; 
• The same system reliability, accuracy, and redundancy; 
• Additional height/width data for identifying commercial vehicles; 
• Additional revenue from higher toll rates for tall commercial vehicles; and 
• Improved pavement integrity and reliability due to removed in-pavement equipment. 

Costs. As part of this change order, SICE will be paid in the amount of $645,171.17 for this 
Change Order in accordance with the payment schedule documented in the change order 
proposal. 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 



365 TOLL PROJECT, TCS  
CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 
 

For TxDOT/HCRMA/FHWA use only: 

Days FHWA Non-Participating 
Co Portion FHWA Non-Participating 

N/A 
$0.00 

Project Schedule 
 

Substantial Completion Date: 
Final Acceptance Date: 

 
TBD 
TBD 

Signatures 

ACCEPTED: 
SICE 

 
 
Signature: _________________________                           

Salvador Castromil – Vice President 
 
       Date: 03/28/2024 

ACCEPTED: 
HCRMA 

Signature:   
   Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director 

 
Date:  0 3 /28/2024  



Memo 
Date: Tuesday, March 26, 2024 

Project: HCRMA 365 TCS 

To: HCRMA 

From: HDR 

Subject: HCRMA 365 TCS Change Order: Monogantry & Revised Classification 

Introduction 
HCRMA staff are requesting approval by the board for a change order of $645,170 for the Toll System 
Integrator to modify their design. The original design included two-gantries (dual-gantry) and an axle-
based solution to classify vehicles and determine toll rates. However, HDR found that a single-gantry 
(monogantry) structure and classifying vehicles based on axles and height would provide a net capital 
cost savings, increased revenue, and maintained system accuracy.  

Gantry & Classification Design 
By using a monogantry design instead of a traditional dual-gantry model, the overall footprint of the gantry 
is reduced – resulting in better accessibility and easier maintenance of gantry equipment. It also removed 
most of the in-pavement equipment. However, to accommodate this change, larger and additional 
brackets will be necessary to mount the equipment and additional overhead equipment is needed. 
Through this solution, the HCRMA benefits from: 

• Lower net capital costs;
• The same system reliability, accuracy, and redundancy;
• Additional height/width data for identifying commercial vehicles;
• Additional revenue from higher toll rates for tall commercial vehicles; and
• Improved pavement integrity and reliability due to removed in-pavement equipment.

Capital Cost Savings: 
The revised design results in the capital cost savings for 
the gantry structures and pavement, but requires 
additional hardware and equipment on the gantry. It 
results in an estimated net savings of $549,610, subject 
to negotiating the reduced cost of the gantry structures 
with Pulice.  

Additional Revenue: 
The new equipment’s ability to detect height and width 
allows HCRMA to use this data to identify commercial 
vehicles (particularly 2-axle box trucks) and charge them 
a higher rate. This results in approximately 3 percent in 
additional revenue as estimated by C&M Associates. 

Conclusion: 
This modified design results in an estimated net capital 
cost savings of $549,610 and additional revenue capture 
of $2.9M over 10 years. HCRMA staff recommend the 
Board approve the Change Order with SICE for 
$645,170. The infrastructure cost savings is being 
negotiated with the Civil Contractor. 

Year 

Forecast Revenue ($ Thousands) 
Axle 

Based  
(Original) 

Axle + 
Height  

(Proposed) 

Additional 
Revenue 

2026 $ 2,894  $ 2,989 $  95  
2027 $ 4,014  $ 4,160 $146  
2028 $ 5,373  $ 5,522 $149  
2029 $ 6,918  $ 7,108 $190  
2030 $ 8,686  $ 8,946 $260  
2031 $10,144  $10,436  $292 
2032 $10,735  $11,061  $326 
2033 $11,373  $11,691  $318 
2034 $12,004  $12,359  $355 
2035 $12,687  $13,049  $362 
2036 $13,349  $13,734  $385 

10 Year 
Total 

$98,177  $101, 055 $2,878  

% Increase 3% 

Capital Cost Savings 

Infrastructure Savings (Estimated) $ 1,194,780 

Hardware & Software Costs $ ( 645,170) 

Net Capital Cost Savings $    549,610 



Board of Directors 
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman
Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Vice Chairman
Juan Carlos Del Ángel, Secretary/Treasurer
Gabriel Kamel, Director
Francisco “Frank” Pardo, Director
Sergio Saenz, Director
Michael J. Williamson, Director

February 29, 2024 

Salvador Castromil 
Project Principal 
SICE, Inc. 
3610 Willowbend Blvd – Suite 1026 
Houston, TX 77054 

RE: HCRMA 365 Tollway, Change Order Acceptance for Monogantry & Classification System 

Mr. Castromil, 

The Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA) sincerely appreciates your cooperation in 
proposing the revised Mono Gantry Tolling Solution with improved vehicle classification based on height 
and width using Lidar. The HCRMA 365 Tollway Team has reviewed the submitted proposal and accepts 
the revised design and cost. 

In summary, the scope of this proposed change order includes: 

1. Change from a Dual Gantry RSS to a Mono gantry Design covering the following components.
a. Mono gantry Design and Documentation
b. Bracket Design
c. The Additional Hardware required to implement a Mono gantry solution.

2. Large Truck Classification based on Height and Width using Lidar (SICK unit)
d. Roadside System and Transactional Back Office System Software Changes to support the

functionality.
e. RSE and TBOS Software Changes

As part of this change order, SICE will be paid in the amount of $645,171.17 for this Change Order in 
accordance with the payment schedule documented in the change order proposal. Please consider this 
letter a formal approval of your Change Order proposal titled MONOGANTRY & LARGE TRUCK 
CLASSIFICATION (365Toll-COR-000) V2. The HCRMA is eager to move forward with this solution and 
appreciates your efforts to develop a more efficient and featureful design. 



Page 2  
Change Order Acceptance for Monogantry & Classification System 
Salvador Castromil 
February 29, 2024 
 
 
 

 
 

If you should have any questions or require additional information, please feel free to contact me at 
956-402-4762 or at prodriguez@hcrma.net. 

 
 
Sincerely, 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 

 
 
 
 
 

Pilar Rodriguez, PE 
Executive Director 
203 W Newcombe Avenue 
PO Box 1766 
Pharr, Texas 78577 
 
Enclosure:  

Change Order Proposal - MONOGANTRY & LARGE TRUCK CLASSIFICATION (365Toll-COR-000) V2  
 
cc:  Álvaro Rincon – SICE  

Ramon Navarro, PE, Chief Construction Engineer – HCRMA 
Celia Gaona, CIA, Chief Auditor/Compliance Officer – HCRMA 
Jose Castillo, Chief Financial Officer – HCRMA 
Sam Saldivar, PE, Project Manager – HDR 
Andrew Cadmus, PE, Tolling Practice Lead – HDR 
Navdeep Virk, PMP, Senior Tolling Project Manager - HDR 

 

 

mailto:prodriguez@hcrma.net


 

 
 

 

 

HCRMA-365 TCS 

MONOGANTRY & LARGE TRUCK CLASSIFICATION  

(365Toll-COR-000) V2 

 



  

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS  

 

1 PURPOSE ....................................................................................................... 1 

2 MONOGANTRY TOLLING SOLUTION ........................................................................ 1 

2.1 ASSUMPTIONS USED IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE ECONOMIC PROPOSAL ......................... 1 

2.2 SOLUTION DESIGN .............................................................................................. 1 

2.3 SCHEDULE OF PAYMENT ...................................................................................... 3 

3 LARGE TRUCK CLASSIFICATION ............................................................................ 4 

3.1 ASSUMPTIONS USED IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE ECONOMIC PROPOSAL ......................... 4 

3.2 SOLUTION DESIGN .............................................................................................. 4 

3.3 SCHEDULE OF PAYMENT ...................................................................................... 6 

4 DELIVERY SCHEDULE ......................................................................................... 6 

 

 

  



 

 
 

MONOGANTRY & LARGE TRUCK CLASSIFICATION 
+34 91 623 22 00 – sice@sice.com - sice.com 

 

 

Confidential: This document is the property of SICE Technology and Systems. Both he and the information it contains is highly sensitive and strictly confidential. Thus, it is not 
allowed to be used for purposes other than those created. Neither the document nor its contents may be disclosed to third parties, nor copied in whole or in part, without the 
express written permission of SICE Technology and Systems. 

  

 

1 PURPOSE 

The purpose of this document is to present a proposal for HCRMA as part of the 365 Tolling Project to design and 

install a monogantry tolling solution and to develop, test implement, operate and maintain a classification solution 

that allows the system to differentiate vehicles by height and width in addition to axle count in order to charge 

taller vehicles at a different rate.  

2 MONOGANTRY TOLLING SOLUTION 

2.1 ASSUMPTIONS USED IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPOSAL  

For developing the proposal, SICE has taken into account the following considerations: 

1) Toll sites will be reduced from dual gantry to monogantry 

2) Monogantry structure will be identical as previously design structures 

3) Monogantry structure design and installation remains out of the scope of this change order 

4) Project documentation will need to be updated with new design 

5) The implementation of this proposal shall not cause any increment on the operation and maintenance 

rates. No other costs or change orders will be needed to incorporate these modifications into the project 

6) The monogantry solution shall meet all SLA and KPI requirements as stated in the pertinent section of the 

RFP and contract documents.  

2.2 SOLUTION DESIGN  

The monogantry solution requires that the device brackets extend away from the structure to obtain the images 

in the correct angle. The vehicle classification requires a perpendicular-to-the-road laser installed over the piezo 

sensor in order to assign to each vehicle the correct number of axles. 

The schematic below provides a comparison of what was proposed vs what is now the revised proposal from a 

Gantry Solution perspective 

Dual gantry Mono gantry

Front view Piezo sensors

Top view

C
la

ss
ifi

ca
ti

o
n

 li
n

e

Ex
it

 d
et

ec
ti

on
 L

in
e 

 

A
V

I L
in

e

En
tr

y 
d

et
ec

ti
on

 li
n

e

Ex
it

 d
et

ec
ti

on
 L

in
e 

 Front view

Laser Laser

Antenna

Piezo sensors

Top view

C
la

ss
ifi

ca
ti

o
n

 li
n

e
En

tr
y 

d
et

ec
ti

on
 li

n
e

 



 

 
 

MONOGANTRY & LARGE TRUCK CLASSIFICATION 
+34 91 623 22 00 – sice@sice.com - sice.com 

 

 

Confidential: This document is the property of SICE Technology and Systems. Both he and the information it contains is highly sensitive and strictly confidential. Thus, it is not 
allowed to be used for purposes other than those created. Neither the document nor its contents may be disclosed to third parties, nor copied in whole or in part, without the 
express written permission of SICE Technology and Systems. 

  

 

 
 

 
  

Classification 
• AVC: vehicle classification 

• Axle count 
• Vehicle measurements 



 

 
 

MONOGANTRY & LARGE TRUCK CLASSIFICATION 
+34 91 623 22 00 – sice@sice.com - sice.com 

 

 

Confidential: This document is the property of SICE Technology and Systems. Both he and the information it contains is highly sensitive and strictly confidential. Thus, it is not 
allowed to be used for purposes other than those created. Neither the document nor its contents may be disclosed to third parties, nor copied in whole or in part, without the 
express written permission of SICE Technology and Systems. 

  

 

2.3 SCHEDULE OF PAYMENT 

The following table shows SICE proposal for the design, procurement, and installation of a monogantry tolling 

solution: 

 

 
LS-> Lump Sum 

 

 

Item 3 Additional hardware breakdown 

 

 
 

 

The total amount of this scope of works is $371,451.17 

 
Payment for this work will be as follows: 

• 25% on approval of this Change Order 

• 60% on installation of the equipment on site 

• 15% on SAT completion 
  

Economic Proposal
ID ITEM Unit Qtys. Unit price Item price total

Monogantry design and documentation review

1 Monogantry design and documentation review Hours 1 36,312.50$    36,312.50$     

2 Bracket design (PE services) Hours 1 18,666.67$    18,666.67$     

3 Additional Hardware Required for Monogantry LS 1 316,472.00$  316,472.00$   

Sale prices

# Hardware Component
Add. 

Brackets

(AVC laser)

Brackets modification

(adapted for 

monogantry)

AVD lasers

(1 per 

direction)

1 TP - MGT #1 (Lanes 2 - Shoulders 2) - HW Installation 2 26 2

2 TP - RGT #1 (Lanes 1 - Shoulders 1) - HW Installation 1 13 1

3 TP - RGT #2 (Lanes 1 - Shoulders 1) - HW Installation 1 13 1

4 TP - RGT #3 (Lanes 1 - Shoulders 1) - HW Installation 1 13 1

5 TP - MGT #2 (Lanes 4 - Shoulders 2) - HW Installation 2 38 2

6 TP - RGT #4 (Lanes 1 - Shoulders 1) - HW Installation 1 13 1

7 TP - RGT #5 (Lanes 1 - Shoulders 1) - HW Installation 1 13 1

8 TP - MGT #3 (Lanes 4 - Shoulders 2) - HW Installation 2 38 2

9 TP - MGT #4 (Lanes 4 - Shoulders 2) - HW Installation 2 38 2

Count 13 205 13

Price per item 884.00$        884.00$                           9,520.00$       

Total price 11,492.00$  181,220.00$                   123,760.00$  

Additional Hardare

Hardware



 

 
 

MONOGANTRY & LARGE TRUCK CLASSIFICATION 
+34 91 623 22 00 – sice@sice.com - sice.com 

 

 

Confidential: This document is the property of SICE Technology and Systems. Both he and the information it contains is highly sensitive and strictly confidential. Thus, it is not 
allowed to be used for purposes other than those created. Neither the document nor its contents may be disclosed to third parties, nor copied in whole or in part, without the 
express written permission of SICE Technology and Systems. 

  

 

3 LARGE TRUCK CLASSIFICATION BASED OF VEHICLE HEIGHT & WIDTH 

3.1 ASSUMPTIONS USED IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPOSAL  

For developing the proposal, SICE has taken into account the next considerations: 

1) Solution will be incorporated into the monogantry design 

2) Classification threshold will be provided by HCRMA. SICE will develop a translation table at RSE (Roadside 

Equipment) level to facilitate fine tuning of these thresholds if needed 

3) Project documentation will need to be updated with new classification 

4) The implementation of this proposal shall not cause any increment on the operation and maintenance 

rates. No other costs or change orders will be needed to incorporate these modifications into the project 

 

3.2 SOLUTION DESIGN  

The solution will require changes at RSE and TBOS (Transactional Back Office System) level. The RSE will obtain 

the approximated physical height and width of the vehicles and assign the appropriate vehicle class. An 

additional TBOS module will be deployed that generates and maintain historical information of all vehicles 

detected. This table will be used to analyze RSE information and, following the project business rules, to send 

the transaction to image review or to modify/complete RSE information. 

RSE level: 

The Lidar unit installed for classification purposed is able to provide reliable vehicle mapping for the vehicles 

travelling on the nearby lanes. This laser will be used to determine height and width measurements for all 

vehicles travelling on the tolling lanes.  

  
 

Classification 
• AVC: vehicle classification 

• Axle count 
• Vehicle measurements 



 

 
 

MONOGANTRY & LARGE TRUCK CLASSIFICATION 
+34 91 623 22 00 – sice@sice.com - sice.com 

 

 

Confidential: This document is the property of SICE Technology and Systems. Both he and the information it contains is highly sensitive and strictly confidential. Thus, it is not 
allowed to be used for purposes other than those created. Neither the document nor its contents may be disclosed to third parties, nor copied in whole or in part, without the 
express written permission of SICE Technology and Systems. 

  

 

 

For sites with 2 lanes + shoulder (MTG#2, MTG#3, and MTG#4), measurement of vehicles travelling in the shoulder 

would have a lower reliability what could lead to a lower classification success rate. Please note that this refers 

only to the volumetric/large trucks classification performance. Axle-base classification performance on shoulders 

will not be affected on these sites. 

For these sites, a second Lidar unit could be installed to improve large truck classification in shoulder. At the 

time of this proposal, HCRMA has decided not to proceed with these additional Lidar units laser but will 

reevaluate its necessity at a later stage, if required. 

Information about vehicle speed and length will also be obtained. Vehicle speed is calculated using entry and 

exit laser detections as 𝐿/(𝑇2−𝑇1). The accuracy of this calculation depends on the vehicle travelling at constant 

speed within the detection area. Speed values obtained will be less accurate if vehicle speed is not constant. The 

accuracy of the vehicle speed calculation will directly impact the vehicle length calculation accuracy as it is 

calculated using the time the vehicle was detected by the classification laser. Therefore, vehicle length will be 

recorded and part of the transaction record, but not used for volumetric classification purposes. 

 

 

 

The accuracy of the new classification system at RSE level cannot be projected with high precision at this point 
and will be revisited as the project proceeds.  
  



 

 
 

MONOGANTRY & LARGE TRUCK CLASSIFICATION 
+34 91 623 22 00 – sice@sice.com - sice.com 

 

 

Confidential: This document is the property of SICE Technology and Systems. Both he and the information it contains is highly sensitive and strictly confidential. Thus, it is not 
allowed to be used for purposes other than those created. Neither the document nor its contents may be disclosed to third parties, nor copied in whole or in part, without the 
express written permission of SICE Technology and Systems. 

  

 

TBOS level: 
 
 
To support the new RSE classification system an additional TBOS module will be deployed. This module generates 
and maintains a historical table for all vehicles (LPNs) detected across the project. 
 

• Table is created using RSE information and Image Review as well as any information provided on TVL 
from CBOS. 

• New functionality that will be implemented: 
• Complete transaction data if LPN, Class, or TAG information is missing or not reliable 
• Send to Image Review first detection of new vehicles to validate RSE information 
• Modify transaction data if RSE information doesn’t match with historical data 
• Send transaction to Image Review if RSE doesn’t match historical data 

 
The system business rules will be configured to validate the classification method, so the first transaction of each 
vehicle will be processed as image-based transaction, this way an operator will review and verify the vehicle 
class. This event will be registered in our historical tables for future reference and class validation. 
 

3.3 SCHEDULE OF PAYMENT 

The following table shows SICE proposal for the design, development, testing and deployment of the large 

commercial vehicle classification system at RSE and TBOS level. 

 

 
LS-> Lump Sum 

 
Payment of this works will be as follows: 

• 25% on approval of this Change Order 

• 40% on completion of FAT 

• 20% on completion of SAT 

• 15% upon two months after go-live 

4 DELIVERY SCHEDULE 

This proposal assumes that the developments will be implemented together with the rest of the developments of 
the Project and therefore only minor adjustments are required to the overall project scheduled. 
 
At the time of this proposal, it is expected that the implementation of this change order will affect the RSS and 
TBOS development cycle as well as the procurement for the first site installation. The scheduled dates for the 
formal execution of RSS FAT and TBOS FAT will be adjusted on the master project schedule.  
No further master plan changes are expected and the RSS continuous deployment phase and TCS Go-Live date 
shouldn’t be affected by this design change. 
The master project schedule is currently under review, and it will be presented to HCRMA for its approval. 

Economic Proposal

ID ITEM Unit Qtys. Unit price Item price total

1

RSE and TBOS software changes to calculate and store vehicle 

measurements, and assign new classification type for large trucks 

using historical tables

LS 1 309,912.00$  309,912.00$      

2 Special Discount LS 1 (36,192.00)$   (36,192.00)$      

TOTAL LS 1 273,720.00$      

Sale prices

Large Truck Classification


	Notice of Agenda
	Agenda Item 1A - Report on Program Management Activity for 365 Tollway Project 
	Agenda Item 1B - Report on Construction Activity for the 365 Tollwasy Project
	Agenda Item 2A - Approval of Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held February 27, 2024 and the Special Board Meeting held March 5, 2024
	Agenda Item 2B - Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from February 8, 2024 to March 6, 2024
	Agenda Item 2C - Approval of Financial Reports for January 2024
	Agenda Item 2D - Resolution 2024-16 – Consideration and Approval of one-year extension to the Investment Advisory Service Agreement between Hilltop Securities Asset Management, LLC and the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
	Agenda Item 2E - Resolution 2024-17 – Consideration and Approval of a no-cost time extension to the Professional Service Agreement with Leonel Garza & Associates to provide appraisal services for the 365 Tollway Project
	Agenda Item 2F - Resolution 2024-18 – Consideration and Approval of a no-cost time extension to the Professional Service Agreement with HLH Appraisal Services to provide review appraisal services for the 365 Tollway Project
	Agenda Item 3A - Resolution 2024-19 – Approval of Award of Contract to Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP, Cantu Law Company, and Br
	Agenda Item 3B - Resolution 2024-20 – Approval of Award of Contract to Plains Capital Bank, to provide Banking Depository Services for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
	Agenda Item 3C - Resolution 2024-23 – Consideration and Approval of Award of Contract to Intertek PSI and MEG Engineers for Construction Material Testing Lab and Forensic Services of the 365 Tollway Project
	Agenda Item 3D - Resolution 2024-08 – Consideration and Approval of Award of Contract to MitRes Services, LLC,  for the Granjeno Wetland Mitigation Site Project
	Agenda Item 3E - Resolution 2024-24 – Consideration and Approval of Change Order number 1 to the contract with SICE, Inc. to provide Toll Collection System Installation, Integration, and Maintenance for the 365 Tollway project



